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Unless stated to the contrary, or unleesctintext otherwise requires, references to "Intvibe company,” "our company," "our," or

"we" in this report include Inovio Biomedical Comation and subsidiaries.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report contains forward-looking statersewithin the meaning of the Private Securitiggyhtion Reform Act of 1995,
including statements with regards to our revenpensling, cash flow, products, actions, intentigians, strategies and objectives. These
statements are not based on historical facts auofent conditions. All such forward-looking statemts are inherently uncertain. We have
based those forward-looking statements on, amolmgr ¢hings, projections and estimates regardingegbenomy in general, the biomedical
industry and other factors that impact our reswfperations and financial condition. Forward-lang statements include, without limitation,
any statement that may predict, forecast, indicateimply state future results, performance or agkiments, and may contain the words
"believe," "anticipate,” "expect," "estimate," "&rtd,"” "plan,” "project,” "will be," "will continué,"will result," "could," "may," "might,"

"should" or any variations of such words with sianimeanings, including the negatives of such wobahy. such statements are subject to risks
and uncertainties that could cause our actual restd differ materially from those which are manamgat's current expectations or forecasts.
Such information is subject to the risk that suxpestations or forecasts, or the assumptions ugdeylsuch expectations or forecasts, become
inaccurate and there can be no assurance thatdheard-looking information in this report will iratt transpire or prove to be accurate. All
subsequent written and oral forward looking statetaeittributable to us or persons acting on ourdéhre expressly qualified in their

entirety by this introduction.

Our forward{ooking statements involve known and unknown risksertainties and other factors that may causeamiual results, leve
of activity, performance or achievements to be nedtg different from any results, levels of activiperformance or achievements expresse
implied by any forward-looking statements. Certafithese risks, uncertainties and other factorsdiseussed in Item 1A—"Risk Factors" and
elsewhere in this report. We operate in a very agtitipe and rapidly changing environment. New fs&tors emerge from time to time and we
cannot predict all such risk factors, nor can weess the impact of all such risk factors on ouiiess or the extent to which any factor, or
combination of factors, may cause actual resultditier materially from those contained in any fand looking statements. Given these risks
and uncertainties, investors should not place undliance on forward-looking statements which refflmanagement's view only as of the date
of this report, as a prediction of actual resulfge undertake no obligation to amend this repontestise publicly these forward-looking
statements (other than pursuant to requirement®gag on registrants pursuant to Item 1A under Rast Form 10-Q) to reflect subsequent
events or circumstances. Readers should also direfwiew the risk factors described in other domnts we file with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, or SEC, particularly our gedytreports on Form 1-Q, and the cautionary statements contained inpyass releases
from time-to-time which may contain forward-looking inforriet.

Investors should also be aware that while we damftime to time, communicate with securities analyge do not disclose any material
non-public information or other confidential comroiat information to them. Accordingly, individuahould not assume that we agree with
any statement or report issued by any analyst,ndigas of the content of the report. Thus, to tktera that reports issued by securities ana
contain any projections, forecasts or opinions,tsteports are not our responsibility.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

Inovio Biomedical Corporation, or "Inovia'Delaware corporation, organized in 2001, isra[Si@agobased biomedical company focu:
on the development of next-generation vaccineseawent or treat cancers and chronic infectiousadiss. Such vaccines, which could
potentially protect millions of people from dehdliton or death from diseases without adequatentexats, may represent multi-billion dollar
market opportunities. Historically, successful depenent of this new generation of vaccines—DNA waes—has been hindered by the lack
of safe, efficient and cost effective DNA delivanethods capable of enabling their potency. Howdnewio's electroporation-based DNA
delivery technology has shown potential in preiclhand clinical studies to play a pivotal rolefatilitating delivery and enhancing the
potency of preventive and therapeutic vaccines.

Inovio is a leader in developing DNA deliyesolutions based on electroporation, which uses,lcontrolled electrical pulses to create
temporary pores in cell membranes and enable iseteeellular uptake of a useful biopharmaceutidake the DNA vaccine enters a cell, it
can then "express" the proteins it was encodeddadyze. These proteins, or antigens, are designkd tniguely associated with a targeted
cancer or infectious disease, and may then stimalahore powerful immune response if the immun&egy£ncounters the targeted diseast
subsequent time.

Inovio's business strategy to realize védwehe company and its stockholders is as foltows

First, Inovio has leveraged its patentetht@logies through licensing and collaborationshsas its licensing arrangements with
Merck & Co., Inc., or "Merck," Wyeth Pharmaceutiabr "Wyeth" and Vical Inc., or "Vical," among ethresearch-driven biopharmaceutical
companies as well as government and non-governagamicies. Inovio is licensing the use of its etgmration-based DNA delivery systems
for partners to use in conjunction with their priefary DNA vaccines or DNAased immunotherapies. These arrangements provog@lwith
some combination of upfront payments, developmees fmilestone payments, royalties and a suppbeaggnt. These partners are pursuing
development of proprietary agents or conductingaesh using Inovio's technology. However, thenedsssurance that these licensing par
will continue these electroporation-based actigiti@urrently, Merck has completed electroporatiasda treatments in their initial Phase |
cancer trial. Merck licensed from Inovio a secomdjét in December of 2007 for which it has filedldD. There is no assurance that Merck
will continue to develop either program into a RhHsstudy. In addition, Wyeth continues to evadugiternal strategic options prior to
initiating further development of electroporatioasied infectious disease programs.

Second, Inovio is pursuing proprietary iaeaevelopment or co-development, resulting in levlow partial ownership in promising
vaccines to prevent or treat cancers and chrofectious diseases.

Inovio's technology is protected by an esiee patent portfolio covering in vivo electropiioa. Inovio's patent portfolio encompasses a
range of apparatuses, methodologies, conditiortsapplications including oncology, gene delivergseular, transdermal as well as ex vivo
electroporation.

Inovio's Core Technology

Most drugs and biologics must enter intkthrough a cell membrane in order to perforgirtintended function. However, gaining
entry into a cell through the outer cell membraae be a significant challenge. In the 1970s it diasovered that the brief application of high-
intensity, pulsed electric fields can create terappand reversible permeability, or pores, in takk membrane. This pulse-induced
permeabilization of the cellular membrane is gelheraferred to as electroporation. One observaiffiect of cell membrane electroporation is
less restricted exchange of molecules
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between the cell exterior and interior—the benading that it allows and enhances the uptake oexample, a biopharmaceutical agent
previously injected into local tissue. The extehtn@mbrane permeabilization depends upon varicrgal, physical, chemical, and
biological parameters.

The transient, reversible nature of thectical permeabilization of membranes is the ullydey basis of Inovio's electroporation
instruments, which are designed to harness thisgrzhenon by delivering controlled electrical pulsgs tissue to facilitate the uptake of use
biopharmaceuticals. Inovio's technology generdtssréc fields in target tissues to induce electn@ion, which increases cellular uptake even
for large molecules such as DNA. Most cell typed issue can be successfully electroporated asderapplicators with the appropriate
configuration of needle electrodes can be usedpose cells and tissues to the electric field.

DNA vaccines have potential as therapeadients for treating various diseases. One of thekstacles to the successful developmen
commercialization of DNA vaccines has been thetlitions associated with current delivery systemterAative approaches based on the use
of viruses and lipids are complex and expensivd,feve in the past created concerns regardingys&fietctroporation provides a
straightforward, cost effective method for delivgriDNA into cells with high efficiency and minimebmplications (as compared to viral
vectors) and, importantly, inducing clinically retat levels of gene expression.

Inovio has multiple systems designed taelifferent electroporation conditions for diffat applications. The current systems consist of
two basic components: a pulse generator and afcappithat is inserted into selected tissue.

MedPulse® DNA Electroporation System

Inovio's MedPulser® DNA Electroporation &m was designed to create conditions to deliveAlMo tumor cells that promote optimal
responses to gene-based immunotherapeutic cytokihescytokine-encoding plasmid is first injecteihna syringe/needle into the selected
tumor. Using a remote control, the pulse generatewitched on. Highvoltage electrical pulses are generated and delivéirough an attach
electrical cord into the injected tissue througtebettrode-needle array on the applicator. Thetrelde-needle array consists of a total of six
needle-electrodes. The needle-electrode arrayavaikable in different sizes and configurationdaailitate access to tumors of different sizes
and in different locations.

MedPulse® DNA Delivery System

The MedPulser® DNA Delivery System (DDS)sweveloped to optimize the delivery of DNA intosule cells. The modified system is
similar to the MedPulser® Electroporation Systee primary differences are in the parameters oéteetric pulses delivered by the
generator and the needle- electrode configuratidheoapplicator. The pulse is designed specifjcfali DNA delivery with a lower strength
electrical field of longer duration than for tunelectroporation. The applicator has a four neetdetede array consisting of one set of
opposite pairs. They are available in a range ofigarations to meet the requirements of a varidtgipplications.

Elgen Syster

The Elgen® DNA Delivery System, Inovio'sarest generation of electroporation systems, isgshesi primarily for muscle delivery. It
consists of a computeentrolled, motorized two needle delivery devicattimjects DNA and delivers electroporation puldgsugh one pair ¢
needles. An earlier prototype version of this eipental system is currently under evaluation invints clinical trial for a prostate cancer
vaccine at the University of Southampton in the U.K
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Choice of Tissue for DNA Delivery
Muscle Delivery

Inovio's proprietary electroporation mettomshsists of a DNA delivery system designed tooiitice a plasmid vector into muscle, skin or
tumor tissue. The plasmid(s) may be encoded fonpwuitic protein(s) for gene therapy, or antigemgrhimunization.

Skeletal muscle has been a core focus kedais mainly composed of large elongated ceith multiple nuclei. Muscle cells are non-
dividing, hence long-term expression can be obthimghout integration of the gene of interest itlte genome. Muscle cells have been shown
to have a capacity for secretion of proteins ihlood stream. Secreted therapeutic proteinstheagfore act systemically and produce
therapeutic effects in distant tissues of the bawlyhis respect, the muscle functions as a fadwryhe production of the biopharmaceutical
needed by the body. It is envisioned that deli@#rNA by electroporation to muscle cells will airmvent the costly and complicated
production procedures of viral gene delivery vestprotein-based drugs, conventional vaccines amboilonal antibodies. This approach may
therefore provide long-term stable expression thfesapeutic protein or monoclonal antibody at dasnsd level.

For vaccination the DNA cause muscle dellgroduce antigenic proteins that the immune systél identify as foreign and against
which it will mount an immune response. As with gentional vaccines, the immune system will theneligy memory of this antigen (and
related disease) for future reference. Intra muasaiglivery by electroporation of DNA encoded aetig has been shown to induce both
humoral (antibody) and cellular (T-cell) immunepesses. Inovio is currently collaborating in thodieical programs (Merck, Tripep and the
University of Southampton) related to DNA delivéoymuscle for immunization.

Tumor Delivery

Inovio has an extensive intellectual préypeosition relating tan vivodelivery of genes directly into tumor cells. Tunoetls can be
readily transfected with genes encoding selectéokayes or potentially lethal proteins for the treant of a variety of cancers. The goal of
effective tumor delivery is the ultimate eliminatiof the transfected tumor, and Inovio has expegdrvery few concerns regarding the safety
of the procedure in its trials to date. A Phaseclihical immunotherapy trial conducted by Vicahsvdesigned to deliver IL-2 directly to
accessible melanoma lesions. In December 2008idramnounced final results of a similar clinicaldy conducted by Moffitt to deliver IL-12
directly to accessible melanoma lesions.

Skin Delivery

While Inovio has generated preclinical gneliminary clinical evidence that intramusculaeatoporation-based DNA delivery will be
effective for a number of vaccines, electroporattbthe skin may also be a relevant route of adstiaiion. Skin or intradermal administration
is important and is becoming an attractive sitarfununization given its high density of antigengaeting cells (APCs). Unlike muscle, skin is
the first line of defense against most pathogensisitherefore very rich in immune cells and molesuSkin specifically contains certain cells
that are known to help in generating a robust iment@sponse. With intradermal administration of etgaoration, Inovio may be able to
demonstrate a comparable immune response to mielolery. Inovio will continue to invest researatdgpatenting resources into developi
viable skin electroporation system for clinical exaion.
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Applications of DNA Vaccine Technology

Inovio and its partners are developing Déi&livery technology for two broad applications:
Cancer

Cancer is a disease of uncontrolled ceiwgn. Although cancer has been a major focus ofrphaeutical companies for decades, cancer
remains one of the leading causes of death in tlieet) States. Traditionally, three approaches leeen available for treatment of cancer:
surgery, radiation therapy, and chemotherapy. Wietected early and still confined to a single lmrgtcancer may be cured by surgery or
radiation therapy. However, neither surgery noiatoh therapy can cure cancer that has spreaddghowut the body. Although chemotherapy
can sometimes effectively treat cancer that hasagbthroughout the body, a number of mancerous cells, such as bone marrow cells, ao
highly susceptible to chemotherapy. As a resudtséhtypes of treatments cause significant sidetsfend morbidity. Finally, it is common to
see cancer return after apparently successfuhtedtby each of these means. The limitations afeaticancer treatments are clearly
demonstrated by the mortality rate of this disease.

For many decades, it has been suggesteththammune system should also be able to recegrdncer cells as abnormal and destroy
these cells. However, cancer cells have developszhanisms that allow them to escape the survedlafithe immune system.
Immunotherapy, a process which uses the patientismmune system to treat cancer, may have advesitager surgery, radiation therapy,
and chemotherapy. Many cancers appear to haveagecethe ability to "hide" from the immune systéirtreatment that can augment the
immune response against tumor cells by making &ineer more "visible" to the immune system woul@lljkrepresent a significant
improvement in cancer therapy. Immune- enhancioteprs such as IL-2 and IL-12, used by partneRhase /Il trials, have shown
encouraging results. There is also a need to sttmal stronger cellular immune response (i.e. g¢ingrT-cells) to specifically attack
cancerous cells. This requires the use of techyadagh as DNA vaccines.

Electroporation offers effective deliverfy@NA and may help Inovio develop novel cancer #pées. Inovio's current clinical-stage
approaches consist of directly injecting tumorshweiértain plasmids followed by intratumoral eleptation as well as directly delivering
certain plasmids into muscle followed by intramuacelectroporation. Upon uptake into cells, thesphid directs the production of the
encoded immunostimulatory proteins. The conveniemzkability to repeat administration may offer adtages over current modalities of
therapy. In addition, cancer therapies using noal@NA delivery may offer an added margin of sgfedmpared with viral-based delivery, as
no viral DNA/RNA or viral particles are containadthe formulation. Studies in animals have demauestrthe safety and potential efficacy of
electroporation-based delivery. Subsequently, imdu studies, a very low incidence of treatmenttesl serious adverse events has been
observed.

In addition to immunotherapy approachesperous cancer antigens have been identified oeepalst few decades and better
identification tools are under development by athérovio will continue to evaluate opportunitiesacquire or partner cancer antigens that
be useful for large market cancers such as breast.and prostate.

Infectious Disease

DNA vaccines for infectious diseases ustiguus of the genetic code of a pathogen to causéobst to produce proteins of the pathogen
that may induce an immune response. Compared withentional vaccines that use live, weakened, ad g@thogens to produce an immune
response, this method potentially offers supeifety and ease of manufacturing, as well as coemeistorage and handling characteristics.
DNA vaccines have the potential to induce potegellresponses against target pathogens as weigger production of antibodies. Over the
past decade, many scientific
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publications have documented the effectivenesshvh Daccines in contributing to immune responseddrens of species, including non-
human primates and humans. Since electroporatioincaease uptake of DNA into cells, it may consagly increase the potency of DNA
vaccines. Increased T-cell responses and antibaxtiuption when DNA vaccines are delivered usingtetgoration has been demonstrated in
a large number of species including non human gema

Vaccines are generally recognized as thst cwst-effective approach for infectious diseasadthcare. However, the technical limitations
of conventional vaccine approaches have constrairedevelopment of effective vaccines for mangases. Development of vaccines based
on conventional methods requires significant irtftature in research and manufacturing. In additiba safety risks associated with certain
conventional vaccine approaches may offset thegmi@l benefits. Inovio believes its potential eme products may be simpler to
manufacture than vaccines made using live virusgsaiein subunit approaches, including those imwngl mammalian, avian or insect cells, or
egg-based culture procedures. In addition, InoNA delivery technologies may accelerate certapegts of vaccine product development
such as non-clinical evaluation and manufacturing.

Similar to the requirements for fightingnear, it is apparent that an effective approactaéiztressing chronic infections, which are also
deadly and debilitating, requires the ability tongrate a strong cellular immune response. Thisg@veration of vaccines—DNA vaccines—is
showing this capability. In addition to the targabseady partnered, Inovio has been evaluatingr@btential disease targets in its internal
development program.

Business Strategy

Inovio's objective is to be a biomedicainmany focused on developing and commercializinglpets that address significant unmet
medical needs and, as a result, improve patiensity of life. To achieve this objective, Inovidisisiness strategy currently includes the
following key elements.

Therapeutic Drug and DNA Delivery

Inovio develops equipment designed to enttid use of electroporation to achieve efficientt eost-effective delivery into patients of
DNA vaccines targeting a variety of illnesses. Alilgh there are many diseases for which improved driDNA delivery is important, Inovio
believes that its greatest opportunities lie inlgipg electroporation to DNA-based therapies (inlihg immunotherapy) in the areas of cancer
and chronic infectious diseases.

Advancing Inovio's Product Pipelir

The strategy to advance Inovio's produgeline has two key components: Inovio has leverdigquhtented technologies through licen:
arrangements with companies such as Merck, Wyeath/éoal, among other research-driven biopharmacaliiompanies, as well as
collaborations with government and non-governmegehaies. These partners are pursuing developmemobpfietary agents or conducting
research using Inovio's electroporation-based DEKvdry systems. Resources used to support Inopaters in these efforts are funded by
its partners. In addition, these arrangements geokriovio with some combination of upfront paymenesvelopment fees, milestone payments,
royalties and a supply agreement.

In addition to expanding and providing éleporation delivery expertise, Inovio is directirgsources to proprietary vaccine development
or co-development, resulting in whole or partialn@sship in DNA vaccine candidates. Inovio is foogson the development of DNA-based
therapies in the areas of cancer and chronic iofigstdiseases. The selection of targets for Inewimlependent or co-development programs is
driven by four key criteria: complexity of the prazt development program, competition, cost of dgwelent and commercial opportunities.
Inovio intends to retain significant participationproduct development and commercialization of BINA vaccines and
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therapeutics in pre-clinical and human trials tieaeive regulatory approval, although it may chaosgecure additional partnerships to
accelerate product development and commercializatimvio currently has a collaborative commereiaion agreement with Tripep AB to co-
develop a novel DNA hepatitis C virus (HCV) therafie vaccine.

Expand Market Opportunit

Inovio is continually evaluating and implenting opportunities to enhance its core technelbgind assessing other DNA delivery
technologies. Inovio is developing future prodummdidates based on these technologies throughipreatand clinical testing to determine
their safety and efficacy. Inovio also seeks toaligy additional applications for its technologigstésting new approaches to disease control or
prevention. These efforts could lead to furtheejehdent product development or licensing oppdiasiln addition, Inovio continually
evaluates compatible technologies or productsrttest be of potential interest for in-licensing ogaisition.

Expand the Application of Inovio's Technologies &méble Product Development Through Strategic Guitations

In pre-clinical trials and early clinicaials, Inovio's technology has enabled high leeéIBNA uptake and gene expression without
significant acute side effects. Based on the reslitained, Inovio believes that its technologwédl positioned and is as capable as competing
technologies to meet the delivery requirement©fdA vaccines and immunotherapy. Inovio's strategipidevelop DNA vaccine and
immunotherapy applications with major pharmaceltimatechnology and government agency partnergeuss reasonable and/or possible to
license its DNA delivery technology for specificrgs or specific medical indications. In most paitrggsituations, Inovio provides proprietary
instruments and expertise to optimize the deli\@#rpNA for particular applications and the parteempany provides its proprietary gene,
allowing Inovio access to complementary technolegiegreater resources. Inovio believes that ergento selective collaborations as part of
its product development programs can enhance tteess of Inovio's product development and commigzataon, diversify Inovio's product
portfolio and enable Inovio to better manage itsrafing costs. Inovio's collaboration with partnaitews pre-clinical research, clinical trials
and mutually beneficial opportunities to expandvints product pipeline, which may lead to the iduotion of a new treatment and/or prodt
in the marketplace at a rate and range which Inmag not be able to support on its own. Additionadluch collaborations enable Inovio to
leverage investment by its collaborators and redsaget cash burn while retaining significant emoic rights. Inovio's goal is to enter into
additional agreements to license its electroponatahnology for use in the delivery of DNA for sjji targets.

8
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Products and Product Development

Together with Inovio's licensees and calltalors, Inovio is currently developing a numbebdfA-based vaccines and therapeutics fo
prevention or treatment of cancer and chronic tides diseases. Inovio's current independent dpwedmt focus is on these areas as well. The
table below summarizes progress in Inovio's inddpen collaborative and out-licensed product dgualent programs as of December 5,

2008.

Product Area
DNA Delivery Immunotherap

DNA Delivery Tumor-associated antigen therapeutic
vaccines

DNA Delivery Infectious disease vacci

X = Completed
P = In Progress
* = Final data pending

DNA Vaccines and Immunotherapies

Pre-Clinical
Studies Development Status
Phas¢ Phase Phase Phase
Product Target and In In
Indication(s) Vitro Vivo | I 11 \Y Development
Malignant Melanomi X X X Moffit/RMR
Metastatic Melanom X X X * Vical
HER-2 and CEA-expressing X X P
cancers Merck
Prostate Cance X X P Univ. of Southamptol
hTERT-expressing cance X X IP Merck
Unspecified Cance X X Inovio
HCV Vaccine X X IP Tripep/Inovio
CMV Vaccine X X Vical
Unspecified Target X X Wyeth
Biodefense Targe! X IP US Army
HIV Vaccine X IP National Cancer Institut
X IP International AIDS Vaccine
HIV Vaccine Initiative
Unspecified Target X IP Inovio

The technical limitations of conventionalkceine approaches have constrained the develogheffective vaccines for many diseases. In
addition, the safety risks associated with certainventional vaccine approaches may offset the&ri@l benefits. In the broader vaccine
marketplace, it is important to note a changingadyit. Traditionally, vaccines have been predomigdntused on the pediatric market,
intended to protect children from diseases thatdcoause them serious harm. Today, there is a gigpimiterest in vaccines against diseases
may affect adolescents and adults, which includk bexually transmitted diseases and infectionisdiné&e opportunistically, such as during
pregnancy or in immuno-compromised individuals)uding the geriatric population. Inovio believes iéchnologies, because of their potential
safety and development time advantages, coulddadlydsuited for the development of this new getieneof vaccines. Preclinical studies in

animals have demonstrated the safety and poteftiehcy of this approach.

DNA vaccines are intended to prevent aatisgprophylactic vaccines) or to treat an existiisgase (therapeutic vaccines). A DNA
vaccine consists of DNA plasmid molecules encodirsglected antigen or fragment of an antigen tteindroduced into cells of humans or
animals with the purpose of evoking an immune raspdo the encoded antigen. Information encod#iokivaccine DNA plasmid molecules
directs the cells to produce proteins that may thigger the immune system to mount one or bottwofresponses: the production of
antibodies, also known as humoral immune
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response, and/or the activation of T-cells andekitells," collectively termed cell-mediated imneuresponse. These responses can neutralize
or eliminate infectious agents (viruses, bacten other microorganisms) or abnormal cells (e gignant tumor cells). DNA vaccines have
several advantages over traditional vaccines inttiey are non-pathogenic (meaning they cannotecthesdisease), may be effective against
diseases which cannot be controlled by traditieaatines, and are relatively fast, easy and inesigenio design and produce. DNA vaccines
are stable under normal environmental conditiongktended periods of time and do not require ooatiis refrigeration. Another potentially
major advantage of DNA vaccines is their short ttgu@ent cycle. For example, DNA vaccines againgtipédentified viral agents may be
developed within weeks or months, as opposed tyehes often required to develop a traditional ireecandidate.

DNA vaccines against cancer use a portichegenetic code of a cancer antigen to causesttt produce proteins of the antigen that
may induce an immune response.

Inovio has acquired considerable expeitigbe delivery and efficacy evaluation of DNA vaezs, both against infectious agents and
complex diseases, such as cancer. In most casés s chosen skeletal muscle as the target tfssu@accine delivery as this muscle is
known to facilitate robust and long-lasting immuaeponses. However, skin is also an attractivestdog DNA vaccination and Inovio has
developed and patented technology for DNA delivety skin cells as well.

Inovio is building a DNA franchise arourftetuse of Inovio's proprietary electroporation texthgy together with gene-based treatments.
Inovio's development efforts involve license agreata with Wyeth, Merck and Vical, in which thesenganies are supporting the
development and registration of therapies usingibie devices. To date, most of Inovio's DNA vaecg@evelopment programs have been
primarily initiated by corporate partners who sirsthe majority of the development expenses ane tla ability to conduct the
commercialization activities.

Cancer: DNA-Based Immunotherapies

In December 2004, Inovio initiated a Phiesknical trial sponsored by the H. Lee Moffitt @@er Center using its MedPulser® DNA
Electroporation System to deliver plasmid DNA cagfar IL-12 to tumors with the aim of treating ngaliant melanoma. The study was
designed to assess the use of electrical pulsesaed by Inovio's proprietary electroporation teadbgy to deliver into tumor cells a plasmid
DNA encoding a cytokine, interleukin-12, which stilates adaptive and innate immunity. In Decemb@®82 Inovio reported that final results
of this trial was presented in the peer-reviewedrnal of Clinical Oncologyn a paper prepared by Drs. Adil Daud, Richard étedtt al, titled,
"Phase | Trial of Interleukin-12 Plasmid Electrogiion in Patients With Metastatic Melanoma."

The paper concluded: "This first humanlttiaour knowledge, of gene transfer utilizingvimo DNA electroporation in metastatic
melanoma showed that it is safe, effective, repeie, and titratable.” The findings showed notyordgression of treated melanoma skin
lesions, but also regression of distant untreasithhs, suggesting a systemic immune response foc¢hlized treatment.

Highlights of the study results, as repwitethe paper, include:

. Twenty-four patients were enrolled in seven cohorts wittadating dose levels of plasmid-12 between December 2004 &
February 2007. Locally injected plasmid IL-12 waBdwed by electroporation.

. The experimental regimen was found to be safe aibtalerated, with minimal systemic toxicity. Berse there was no d¢-
limiting toxicity in cohorts one through five, tlexperimental plan was amended to add two additioolabrts. Transient pain
with the administration of the electrical pulseswiae most frequent adverse event experiencedtBnpa

. The study demonstrated significant and ~dependent increases in intratumore-12 protein expression and concomit
increases in intratumoral levels of IFi-
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. Sixty lesions (76%) were observed to have greatan 20% necrosis (death of tumor cells), with 142 having 50% - 99%
necrosis, and 25 (32%) having 100% necrosis.

. Ten subjects (53%) showed evidence of a systergpiorese (either stable disease or a complete respdasng the study.

. Injected lesions and distant non-injected lesidtmtav®d regression after treatment. Of 19 patientls additional sites of disease

outside of the treated lesions, two (10%) with eated distant lesions and no other systemic theshpwing complete
regression of all metastases. These responsesedawer 6 - 18 months, with gradual volume lossuoing at sites distinct
from the electroporated sites, arguing for immuystesn involvement. Neither of these patients hagldped any new evidence
of distant disease to date. Six of 19 (32%) shoslisdase stabilization lasting from 4 - 20 months.

. Electroporated tumors demonstrated CD4+ and CD8hpcytic infiltrate in the treated lesions.

In July 2005, Inovio announced, along vii¢hpartner, Vical, the initiation of a human Phéasénical study of an investigational method
of delivering plasmid DNA coding for interleukin{@_-2), a potent immune system stimulant, for patsewith recurrent metastatic melanoma.
Intravenous delivery of 12 protein is already approved as a treatment fdast&tic melanoma, but frequently causes sevetemigstoxicities
The novel treatment approach being studied inttl@kinvolves direct injection into a tumor lesiofiplasmid DNA (pDNA) encoding IL-2,
followed by electroporation in which local applicat of electrical pulses is intended to enhanceutitake of pDNA into tumor cells. The
pPDNA is designed to cause cells within the tumoproduce high levels of IL-2 protein locally anétbby stimulate the immune system to
attack the tumor without the systemic toxicitiesasated with injected IL-2. Interim results ond&ients from this trial were presented in
June, 2007, and demonstrated that intratumoraletgliof pPDNA encoding IL-2 into melanoma tumord|daed by electroporation, was
administered safely following sedative premedicatido serious adverse events related to the studyat to the administration procedure
were reported and the treatment was well-tolerdted. majority of related adverse events were laedlito the treatment site, with the most
frequent being mild injection site pain. Individuamor responses were seen in 12 of 39 (31%) etltamors after injection of different
escalating doses (0.5 to 5 mg per tumor). Treateubts (7 of 18, or 38%) showed local responses rinegeiently than did untreated tumors (5
of 21, or 24%). No overall clinical responses anstard RECIST (Response Evaluation Criteria indSblimors) criteria were observed amt
the 19 subjects evaluated following one or two egaf treatment. Two subjects (11%) showed activitgistant, untreated tumors, including
one subject showing shrinkage and disappearancagtumors. This trial has completed enrolimen2@fpatients.

Cancer: DNA Vaccines

In April 2005, The University of Southamptmitiated a U.K. Medicines and Healthcare prodiRégulatory Agency (MHRA) approved
Phase I/1l clinical trial undertaken in collabomatiwith Inovio. The study uses Inovio's electropioratechnology to deliver a therapeutic
plasmid-based DNA vaccine to skeletal muscle withaim of treating recurrent prostate cancer. Tihg sponsored and led by the University
of Southampton, is investigating whether the DNA&arae, developed at the University of Southampoam, stimulate patients to develop
immune responses against prostate cancer and whistef Inovio's electroporation system enhantissrésponse. In June, 2008pvio
reported that Dr. Christian H. Ottensmeier, MD, PRRncer Research UK Senior Clinical Research Wwedlothe University of Southampton,
presented updated interim data from this clinitadig at the American Society of Gene Therapy 1Inhual meeting. The data reaffirmed that,
post-treatment, this therapy has proven to beaadevell-tolerated. Additional data further valid&thigher levels of antibody
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and anti-DOM CD4 responses achieved in patientédddeusing electroporation. This academic studyghase I/l study of 30 HLA A2+
patients with biochemical failure of prostate candde study is testing a DNA fusion vaccine, depeld in Southampton, encoding for an
immunostimulant sequence from tetanus linked tecuence from prostate specific membrane antigeMA23). The study is also evaluating
electroporation as a novel delivery strategy fordDiccines compared to DNA delivered without eleptration.

Patient enrollment for this study has beempleted. Monitoring of antibody responses waseted for the 20 patients at the first and
second dose levels. Monitoring of CD4 cellular immty1 had been completed for the 10 patients atdtvest dose. These 10 patients had
additionally been assessed for CD8 T-cell respori®egorted interim results included:

. Vaccination with and without electroporation hasteafe and we-tolerated

. 14 of 20 patients developed increases ir-DOM (the immunostimulant sequence from tetanuspady. Of these increast
responses, 5 of 10 were in the arm not using @potation; 9 of 10 were in the electroporation afmtibody responses were
generally higher in patients treated using elearation compared to those treated with the DNA ireecalone (without
electroporation).

. In 9 of 10 patients in the low dose cohort, sigmfit increases in CD4 responses were observetledatpretreatment. Of the:
increased responses, 4 of 5 were in the electriporarm. Patients treated exclusively with elggtn@tion produced a higher
average CD4 response; patients initially treateatiauit electroporation and later receiving a boestdanjunction with
electroporation also displayed increased CD4 resgmfollowing the electroporation boost.

. In the low dose cohort, the PSMA27 antigen induC&B+ cytotoxic "-cells (measured by cultured IFNg ELISPOT) not deete
before vaccination in 6 of 10 subjects.

In November 2005, Merck initiated a Phaskriical trial of a DNA cancer vaccine based oovio's DNA gene delivery technology that
uses pDNA encoding human epidermal growth factoepeor 2, or HER-2, and carcinoembryonic antigerGBA. As a result of Merck
reaching this milestone, Inovio received a paynoéi$2.0 million. The Phase | trial is evaluating tbafety, tolerability and immunogenicity of
the vaccine.

In December 2007, Inovio received an addal $2.0 million milestone payment from Merck,uisg from the filing of a second
Investigational New Drug (IND) application to thedtl and Drug Administration ("FDA") by Merck foriNA-based vaccine using Inovio's
DNA delivery technology. The milestone relatesriovio's collaboration and license with Merck ini¢id in May 2004 for the development of
certain DNA vaccines. Further development of thedpct may lead to additional milestone paymentsragadlties to Inovio. Inovio received
this milestone payment for its contribution to ttwdlaboration, which has so far demonstrated thé hével of gene delivery and expression
is thought to be necessary for the induction dfeadpeutic immune response. Merck has fundedinital development costs of these
candidates to date.

As of October, 2008, Merck had begun tokmatients for this study, which is using a DNAceine encoding for hnTERT to target non-
small cell lung and prostate cancers. The vacamlivered using Inovio's electroporation DNA detiy technology.

Inovio reported in September, 2008, that preclinical study of a proprietary DNA-basedréipeutic vaccine, in mice with metastatic
melanoma treated with a DNA vaccine via intramuacdElivery, six of eight (75%) were tumor-freefa conclusion of the study.

Numerous cancer antigens have been idedtifver the past few decades and better identdicédols are under development by others.
Inovio will continue to evaluate opportunities tgaire or partner cancer antigens that may be Lsefarge market cancers such as breast,
lung and prostate.
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Infectious Diseases: DNA Vaccines

In January 2006, Inovio signed an agreemtht Sweden-based Tripep to co-develop a therapeatcine for hepatitis C virus (HCV)
using electroporation. The vaccine is based oneptgpproprietary HCV antigen construct and deligidceinfected individuals using Inovio's
MedPulser® DNA Delivery System. The study is betogducted at the Karolinska Institute's Universityspital in Sweden. The terms of the
development agreement call for each party to fupdréon of the Phase | and subsequent Phasald &ind thereafter share profit according to
their contribution. Inovio has 33% ownership in thesrall product with the option to increase tli$0% after the completion of the Phase /11
trial.

In November, 2008, Inovio announced thadp had reported interim results indicating timathie third and highest dose cohort of the
study, two of three subjects demonstrated redustioniral load of 93% and 99.7%. This comparegrviously reported middle dose cohort
results demonstrating an 87% and 98% reductionG¥ h two of three subjects; no anti-viral effecasvobserved in the low dose cohort. No
safety issues have been noted to date in the Thialse data suggest a potential dose response wadcine and support the inclusion of three
additional subjects in the high dose cohort.

In November 2006, Inovio entered into datmbration and license agreement with Wyeth to bigwBNA vaccines against multiple
infectious disease targets. For further discusalmut this agreement, se@drtnerships and Collaborationd¥elow. The selection of targets
its proprietary infectious disease program is drilsg three key criteria: the complexity of the protidevelopment program, competition, and
commercial opportunities.

Inovio reported in July, 2008, that in &gmical study of a proprietary DNA-based therapevaccine, 100% of immunized mice given a
lethal challenge of highly pathogenic H5N1 influandrus (A/Vietnam/1203/04) survived and showedyaninor weight loss. The DNA
vaccine design was based on a different influetrzéns(H1N1) than the influenza strain used in¢hallenge, providing evidence that a
universal vaccine based on conserved genes cononuoanltiple strains of seasonal influenza and ewaeitial pandemic influenza may have
the possibility to provide widespread protectiomiagt such viruses.

DNA Vaccines for Biodefense

With the adoption of the Project Bioshiglct in 2004 by the U.S. government, there is anoopymity to secure development funding for
proof-of-principle DNA vaccine studies for biowarégpathogens. Inovio has been successful in secfuinding from the U.S. government.
Inovio believes DNA vaccines delivered with elepiwoation for bio-defense have the following advgets

establishment of a platform technology that candaelily adapted for new threa

. ability to rapidly manufacture and sc-up vaccine candidates for newly identified pathag
. rapid induction of protective immune responsesfsihg vaccination; and
. long shelf life of products for stockpiling.

As resources obtained from government fogdian be leveraged to enhance the developmeatiofivlogy in the area of cancer and
chronic infectious disease, Inovio will continueptarsue opportunities in the area of biodefenseamexample of potential applications in the
area of biodefense, one of Inovio's partners (RMEG) is currently employing its skin electroporatitechnology in the pre-clinical
development of an anthrax vaccine under a Depattofddefense Small Business Innovation ResearcigrBro (SBIR) grant. Inovio currently
has commercial rights to this skin electroporaigstem. The technology may also be useful witheetsip targets such as the
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Lassa fever virus currently being studied by th8.WArmy in collaboration with Inovio (as furtherttined under Partnerships and
Collaborations below).

Gene Therapy

Over the past decade, classic gene themapgatment of inherited disorders has provendiiff. Electroporation of genes encoding
therapeutic proteins has, however, demonstratepdtential to resolve these difficulties. In vivmguction of proteins such as Factor IX for
hemophilia and EPO for anemia represent large nhagkgortunities. Pre-clinical studies for Inovipartners have demonstrated multiple
desirable characteristics of Inovio's approachuutiag:

. Long term expression of the desired gene for coiewtosing;

. Lack of immune responses to the plasmid vector;

. Ability to achieve therapeutic levels of desiredtgin at a steady state; a

. More natural production of the therapeutic protban current recombinant proteil

The major technical hurdle for use of Imdsitechnology for classic gene therapy is thedtidn of an unwanted immune response to the
transgene product due to the highly efficient daljvand expression seen with electroporation. fsgioblem may take significant resource
overcome, Inovio has decided not to focus on trasket in the near term.

Animal Health/Veterinary

While Inovio is primarily focused on theeusf Inovio's technology in the development of Hdueman therapeutics, it retains certain ri¢
to veterinary applications and may seek to exphase rights in the future.

Additional Applications of Inovio's DNA Delivery Technology

In addition to using Inovio's electropooatitechnology for drug and vaccine delivery, it t@used for research to validate new drug
targets and to deliver molecules. Such use of biswechnology may facilitate transition into ctiai development. Inovio continues to pursue,
on a limited basis, research and opportunitiehénareas of stem cells, ex vivo applications andARN

Collaborations

In September 2008, Inovio announced itreasived a contract for $933,000 from the DepartroéDefense (US Army) to continue
research and development of DNA-based vaccinegetteli via its proprietary electroporation systeime Tontract, titled "Design and
Engineering of the Elgen Gene Delivery System fene8ning and Validation of Vaccine Candidates ditktly Relevance,"” will run through
May 2010. This project is focused on identifying BMaccine candidates with the potential to prowigigid, robust immunity to protect against
bio-warfare and bioterror attacks.

In November 2006, Inovio entered into datmbration and license agreement with Wyeth foroaldwide non-exclusive license to Inovio's
technology for certain infectious disease tardetsywhich Inovio received an upfront payment ofS#illion. Inovio will also receive research
support, annual maintenance fees, royalties omahproduct sales and, contingent upon the achiemeof clinical and regulatory milestones,
payments of up to $60.0 million over the term of dgreement.

We may not receive any future payments fillgreth and we believe Wyeth is evaluating intestedtegic options prior to initiating
further development of electroporation based indest disease programs.
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In October 2006, Inovio announced thatguired from Valentis, Inc. certain DNA deliverydaaxpression assets, including Valentis'
DNAvax® polymer delivery system and GeneSwitch®e@eggulation technology.

In July 2006, Inovio announced it extendedicense with RMR Technologies, LLC ("RMR") byezcising an existing option to license
certain patented technology relating to the dejivdrgene-based therapeutics into skin. This ex@enlbng-standing relationship with the
University of South Florida scientists and RMR fders Drs. Heller (now Executive Director, Frankd®eResearch Center for Bioelectrics,
Old Dominion University), Jaroszeski, and Gilbditis relationship dates back to the co-developroéiniovio's MedPulser® Electroporation
Instrument for treatment of solid tumors, includimead and neck cancers. RMR is the collective effiothree scientists in collaboration with
the University of South Florida and the H. Lee Mivf€ancer Center and Research Institute. The sieéncluded other patents involving the
delivery of genes or drugs via ex vivo, intratuntpaad intramuscular electroporation. Recent pigigdl studies suggest that, for certain
indications, needle-less skin electroporation offONasmids encoding selected antigens may alsdfeetige at inducing desired immune
responses. The patented technology licensed frorR Rd&ers various skin electroporation electrodégiessand methods, including a needle-
less design using a flexible material. RMR has egjte collaborate in an effort to develop researdtotypes into commercial grade electro
for skin delivery as well as other novel forms t#fatroporation-assisted DNA delivery. Inovio hasesgl to provide RMR with other
development expertise pertinent to projects sudRMR's SBIR-funded pre-clinical study using RMRsgrietary dermal electrodes to deliver
a DNA vaccine against anthrax. In connection wlih &acquisition of this exclusive license, Inovisued 86,956 shares of Inovio common s
at a price of $2.30 per share, worth $200,000 erdtte of issuance.

Inovio also licensed from RMR patents ttlatm the intratumoral delivery method used in dngoing clinical trial at the Moffitt Cancer
Center & Research Institute, which is delivering gene encoding IL-12 directly to melanoma lesi®dR, Inovio, the University of South
Florida and Moffitt Cancer Center have been coltating in the development of this novel therapyrf@lanoma for the past two years.

In May 2006, Inovio announced the acqusitiunder a license with Sphergen SARL, of rigbtsdveral patent families relating to the use
of electroporation technology. The rights Inovicelnsed included two patents with broad claims diggrelectroporation of nucleic acids in
muscle and tumor tissue. This intellectual propadguisition enhanced the breadth of Inovio's gaiertfolio directed to the use of
electroporation technology to deliver therapeuttpharmaceuticals. The license also includes graintights to know-how, future
improvements, and provisions for exclusivity in Bggtions to human medicine.

In January 2006, Inovio signed a collabiweabgreement with Tripep to co-develop a therdpéadpatitis C virus (HCV) DNA vaccine
using electroporation. Under the terms of this egrent, Inovio pledged certain electroporation eangipt toward an ongoing Phase I/l study
of the proprietary Tripep vaccine in exchange fonisimum of 33% of the licensing revenues or contiaincome that might be derived fr(
the vaccine. Under the terms of the agreementepnigill only commercialize the electroporation-tdis@ccine with Inovio equipment. If
Inovio decides not to continue to support the ceetlgpment, Inovio will retain a profit share of slikensing fees or commercial revenues
going forward.

In May 2005, Inovio announced that Merckreised an option for a non-exclusive license foadditional antigen to be used with
Inovio's MedPulser@NA Delivery System. This option exercise was pdad for under the 2004 license and research caliéiba agreemet
between Merck and Inovio, and brought the total benof antigens licensed by Merck to three. Inaeiceived an option fee for the additional
target antigen. Under the terms of Inovio's licegsagreement with Merck,
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Inovio is eligible for milestone and royalty paynif certain development goals and commercialiratf the device are achieved by Merck.

In April 2005, Inovio announced the init@t of a U.K. Medicines and Healthcare productsRatgpry Agency (MHRA) approved
Phase I/Il clinical trial undertaken in collaboratiwith the University of Southampton. Inovio'satfeporation technology is being used to
deliver a therapeutic plasmid-based DNA vaccingkiletal muscle with the aim of treating recurqgmistate cancer. The trial, sponsored and
led by the University of Southampton, is investiggtwhether the DNA vaccine, developed at the Unsite of Southampton, can stimulate
patients to develop immune responses against peastacer and whether use of Inovio's electropmmatystem enhances this response.

In October 2004, Inovio announced an agesgmwith Vical wherein Vical licensed Inovio's DN#elivery technology for use with HIV,
cytomegalovirus (CMV) and melanoma (using pDNA [Lt&rgets. This agreement was based on an opti@emgnt established with Vical in
October of 2003 for a worldwide license for the oénovio's proprietary in vivo electroporationlidery technology in combination with
Vical's proprietary vaccines.

In May 2004, Inovio announced a significkeensing deal with Merck for the development oéidk's DNA cancer and infectious disease
vaccines. The terms of the agreement include noitesind royalty payments for successful complatfathe clinical development of the
vaccines by Merck. Under the terms of the agreeydatck reimbursed Inovio for the co-developmenagdroprietary electroporation system
for the delivery of Merck's DNA vaccines. This demgment and commercialization agreement was amsixe of an initial evaluation
agreement established in 2003. Merck receivedigfie to use Inovio's proprietary technology for teecific antigens with an option to exte
the agreement to include a limited number of adddl target antigens. In addition, Merck obtaingwa-exclusive license to the intellectual
property related to the initial two specific antige Merck is responsible for all development casid clinical programs.

The research carried out under the aboxeeagents may result in new long-term license agessnwith the other parties and may
provide Inovio with additional data that Inovio tesles will assist it in assessing the efficacy sihg its MedPulser® DNA Electroporation
System for delivery of DNA vaccines and gene thiemprhe data should further assist Inovio ini@srising and commercialization efforts. In
addition to the above collaboration and licensimgragements, Inovio may develop proprietary DNAdpeutic product through early stage
clinical trials and partner the product for lategs clinical development and marketing. Inovio rhaye to negotiate license(s) for genes or
other components of the product if they are ndh@public domain.

Market

Inovio's product development strategy uied on pursuing significant product opportunitieere Inovio's technology is considered
enabling. During 2007, Inovio prioritized its efferafter assessing different market opportuniteeseld on an evaluation of technology risk,
market size and partner interest in DNA vaccinessdsl on Inovio management's assessment of the hagi@rtunities, oncology applications
appear to represent the best market opportuniGsywed by applications for infectious disease=sng therapy for protein deficiency diseases
and biodefense DNA vaccines.

Inovio believes there is a significant utiical need to develop more efficacious vacsittet stimulate cellular immunity (i.e. can
induce T-cell responses) and can be applied t@sésesuch as cancer, hepatitis C or HIV infecttom.these applications, Inovio's scientists
believe that DNA vaccines may offer an improvenmrer conventional vaccination. Inovio's scientlstéieve that electroporation of DNA is
critical to maximizing the efficiency of DNA vaccition and meeting unmet clinical needs for thertipsaccines, which some industry
analysts consider to be a multi-billion dollar metrlpportunity.
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Competition

Although there are many competing technielfpr DNA delivery, Inovio believes electropomatihas a unique strategic position
compared to such technologies for the followingsoees:

. Minimal or no delivery related side effects, ¢

. Enhances DNA vaccine potency.
Minimal or No Delivery Related Side Effe

Any company that is developing a DNA badelivery technology, such as viral delivery systelipgéd-based systems, or electroporation
technology with an aim to carry out in vivo gendivd®y for the treatment of various diseases, #ential competitor of Inovio. Currently
there are five key DNA delivery technologies: vilgids, naked DNA, "gene gun" and electroporatiah are promising technologies, but tt
each also have their unique obstacles to overchtapagement believes Inovio's electroporation sysgestrongly positioned to succeed as the
dominant delivery method for DNA vaccines.

Viral vectors can be highly effective, hawgg there continue to be concerns regarding palenutations, unwanted immune responses
against the vector itself (preventing its use &administration or booster shots) and other sifdets. Viral technology has yet to show
predictable, consistent safety and is very expensiipids can be effective, but may also have tibxissues and are relatively expensive.
Naked DNA is widely considered to be safe and latireely inexpensive, but is not very effective.€fgene gun technology (using g
particles as carriers of DNA for skin delivery) ksopromising, however, there are data suggestiaigetlectroporation offers equal or better
efficacy and may offer broader utility without rexag a carrier. Not requiring a carrier allows@&@l®poration to have a unique advantage over
competing technologies because it eliminates odéiadal component that may independently propagite effects and create manufacturing
and quality control challenges.

Competitive advantages of electroporatioer mther delivery systems are summarized on Thibelow:

Table 1: Present comparison of DNA Delivery teclogas

Carrier/Vector Type Carrier/Vector Issues Efficacy = Economics
Viral Mutations Immune Response Infection Sympt  +++++  $$$$$
Lipids Toxicity ++ $$
Particle Gur Manufacturability ++++ $$$
Naked DNA No Vector + $
(Electroporation Enhance No Vector ++++ $

Enabling DNA vaccine

Commercial and academic institutions hasenbtrying for over 15 years to develop DNA vacsingth sufficiently potent immune
responses to make them commercially viable—witmouth success. One facet of DNA vaccine researchilenelopment ("R&D") has been
to combine an adjuvant component to help initiage@eral immune response to complement the spétifitine response induced by the D
vaccine, but adjuvants complicate manufacturingraagl generate additional unwanted side effects.
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In addition to being a highly efficient dery method of plasmid to muscle cells, Inovio Bahswn that the mild electrical pulses of
electroporation also have an adjuvant effect. &djsivant effect seems to be related to more Cp@aaung plasmid gaining access to
intracellular toll-like receptors, which stimuldtenate immune responses, and to slight muscle deywégch can lead to a danger signal to the
immune system(1). To date, few, if any, common aaljiis seem to be required to augment immune respaixserved after DNA vaccine
delivery with electroporation.

(1) Babiuk, S. et al., 2004, Increased gene expressidrinflammatory cell infiltration caused by elegoration are both important for
improving the efficacy of DNA vaccines. J. Biotedi.0:1

General observations to date suggest thah&iny DNA encoded antigens there has to be ardse in gene expression of 10-100-fold
(compared to naked DNA) in order to achieve a theutic benefit in large animals including man. Eiegoration is currently the only method
whereby one can routinely see increases in genegsipn approaching or exceeding 100 to 1000 thiteby making the development of a
large number of vaccines and therapeutics possibkffect, electroporation increases the trivéaldls of gene expression seen with naked
DNA alone to the therapeutic levels needed fordiivelopment of successful commercial products. phis Inovio in a unique position
relative to competing technologies.

Competitive Technologies in the Area of DNA Deliver

Effective DNA delivery technologies are @l for DNA vaccines. Many of the leading scietgtis) these fields have pointed out that the
major obstacle to success has been the lack ofeffifdent, and economical methods of delivering/ Of the more than 800 gene therapy
and DNA vaccine clinical trials started in the Ut&date, none have progressed to regulatory apprimovio believes that existing DNA
delivery alternatives have been a significant batlck to the successful development and commenain of these promising next generation
of vaccines. The following descriptions highlighetissues of the existing alternatives.

Viral DNA Delivery

This technology utilizes a virus as a @rto deliver genetic material into target cellseTmethod is very efficient for delivering vaccine
antigens and has the advantage of mimicking real wifection so that the recipient will mount ahd immune response against the vaccine.
The greatest limitation of the technology is pratdewith unwanted immune responses against thewecbr, limiting its use to patients who
have not been previously exposed to the viral veamtol making repeated administration difficultakidition, complexity and safety concerns
increase the cost of vaccines and complicate regylapproval.

Ballistic DNA Delivery (Gene Gur

This technology utilizes micron sized DN&ated gold particles that are shot into the skingigsompressed gas. The method has maturec
considerably over the last 15 years and has beamrsto be an efficient method to deliver a numterazcine antigens. Since the DNA is dry
coated, excellent stability of the vaccine can tigeved. The method is limited to use in skin anty @ few micrograms of genetic material
be delivered each time. This may limit the utilitiithe method for targets such as cancer whereshidses of vaccine antigens and stronger T-
cell responses are needed.

Lipid DNA Delivery

A number of lipid formulations have beeweleped that increase the effect of DNA vaccindseske work by either increasing uptake of
the DNA into cells or by acting as an adjuvantrtalg the immune system. While there has been gtparbress in this field, lipid delivery
tends to be less efficient than viral vectors anldampered by concerns regarding toxicity and aszd complexity.
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"Naked" DNA Delivery

The simplest DNA delivery mode is the irtjec of "naked" plasmid DNA into target tissue, aby skeletal muscle. This method is safe
and economical but inefficient in terms of cellnséection, the process of transferring DNA intcedl across the outer cell membrane.
Unfortunately, it is the least effective way of igdeting DNA since only an extremely small fracti@approximately one out of twenty million)
of the DNA molecules are taken up by the cells. i/tfie method may have provided some utility fer fileld of gene therapy, a number of
clinical studies over the last decade have shoanttte method is inadequate for delivering DNA wiaes into large animals and humans.

"Naked" DNA Delivery With Electroporation

When naked DNA injection is followed by @i®poration of the target tissue, transfectiosigmificantly greater with resultant gene
expression generally enhanced from 100 to 100Q-fdtés increase makes many DNA vaccine candidaiengially feasible without unduly
compromising safety or cost.

In December 2004, the first patient waated using Inovio's electroporation system to @elavplasmid DNA-based immunotherapy and
Inovio has initiated, together with partners, aiddial Phase | clinical trials using Inovio's elegtoration technology to deliver DNA-based
immunotherapies or DNA vaccines. To date Inovi@stists have not observed any serious adversestigitcan be attributed to the use of
electroporation in these clinical DNA studies.

Inovio believes that the greatest obstaximaking DNA vaccines and immunotherapy a reatigmely the safe, efficient, and economical
delivery of DNA plasmid constructs into target sglind also believes that electroporation may bedt® method of choice for DNA delivery
into cells in many applications.

There are other companies with electropamantellectual property and devices. Inovio bedie it has significant competitive advantages
over other companies focused on electroporatiomdltiple reasons:

. Inovio has a long history and experience in devielpthe methods and devices that will optimizeuke of electroporation in
conjunction with DNA-based agents. This extensixeegience has been validated with multiple seistefim data from
multiple clinical studies assessing DNA-based imatharapies against cancers and infectious dis&as&o, in conjunction
with its partners and collaborators, has beendhddr in establishing proof-of-principle of elegimoation-delivered DNA
vaccines and immunotherapies.

. The company has a broad product line of electragmoranstruments designed to enable DNA deliverjuimors, muscle, and
skin.
. Inovio has been very proactive in filing for patgrds well as acquiring and licensing addition&pts, to expand and strengt

Inovio's international patent estate. Inovio hasgiacussed below under Intellectual Property]eéhding number of patents
pertaining to electroporation. Inovio's patent &stes been rigorously assessed by leading vacompanies Merck and Wyeth
prior to them consummating substantial license egents with Inovio.

While other companies have and continugetcelop electroporation devices and possess ceraamts relating to the use of
electroporation, Inovio believes it has a stromglyearched position and that its patent estatédeewt with the potential to block competition
in key areas of focus.

Medical Device Manufacturing

Inovio is a medical device manufacturer,asisuch, operates in a regulated industry. Inmist comply with a variety of manufacturir
product development and quality regulations in ptdée
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able to distribute Inovio's products commercialigund the world. In Europe, Inovio must comply witte MDD. Inovio has a Quality System
certified by its international Notified Body to recompliance with the international Quality Syst8tandard, 1ISO13485, and meeting the
Annex Il Quality System requirements of the MDDowio completed an Annex Il Conformity Assessmeiaicedure and achieved its CE M
of the MedPulser@&lectroporation system in March 1999. Inovio cortgadean Annex |l Conformity Assessment procedureaxideved its Cl
Mark of the Elgen electroporation system in Noven06.

In the U.S., Inovio is required to maintéagilities, equipment, processes and procedusdsate in compliance with quality systems
regulations. Inovio's systems have been construoted in compliance with these regulations andritgoing operations are conducted within
these systems. Commercially distributed devicebivthe U.S. must be developed under formal desogtrols and be submitted to the FDA
for clearance or approval. As Inovio prepares fd8.Unarketing, all development activity is perfodraecording to formal procedures to en
compliance with all design control regulations.

Inovio employs modern manufacturing methadd controls to optimize performance and contogts Internal capabilities and core
competencies are strategically determined to opériovio's manufacturing efficiency. Inovio utdig contract manufacturers for key
operations, such as clean room assembly and s&idin, which are not economically conducted ind@unovio outsources significant sub-
assemblies, such as populated printed circuit Isp&od which capital requirements or manufactusmtumes do not justify vertical integratic
As Inovio transitions from late-stage developmativities into higher volume manufacturing actiegi internal capabilities will be modified
and added, as appropriate, to meet its changiogiipes.

Currently, the durable electronic generatahe MedPulser® and Elgen system is assembded &iutsourced populated printed circuit
boards, and then tested, packaged and inventdried\o's manufacturing facility. The disposabpghcators used with the MedPulser®
system are assembled and sterilized in a clean ed@utside contract manufacturers. Additional entiand future manufacturing of
applicators for clinical trials and commercial distition is planned to be done using a combinatibimternal manufacturing and outside
contract manufacture.

Intellectual Property

Inovio's success and ability to competeedes upon its intellectual property. Inovio maingaa broadased patent portfolio (both origii
and inlicensed technologies) that as of December 5, 2i0@Rides over 62 issued U.S. patents and 181dsfsueign counterpart patents, all
which collectively include claims to methods andiewices for clinical use in the electroporatiordinal arts. Specifically, patented subject
matter, as well as subject matter pending in tt& dnd foreign patent offices, includes methoddandce claims for delivering by
electroporation medically important substancesoimterior of cells in various body tissues suslagatient's muscle, skin, and other organs.

Inovio's core technology is centered oe tivoad, medically relevant "indication” categoiiegduding oncology, gene therapy/delivery
(including vaccination with expressible vectorggseular administration (e.g. by catheter), transdéadministration (including delivery of
substances for cancer, gene therapy, and cosnpglications), and ex vivo administration (e.g. bgogroporation of cells outside the body and
introducing the created cells to the patient).

Supporting Inovio's primary business fodtssintellectual property in gene therapy and Diivery enjoys a broad scope of patent
protection, such as found in U.S. patent numb&8%525 and in-licensed patents 6,110,161, 6,261 2810,044, 6,958,060 and 6,939,862,
which include claims reciting methods and apparfdugnplanting macromolecules (e.g. DNA and phacendical compounds) into selected
tissues of a patient by electroporation. U.S. pgatember 6,763,264, with
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claims reciting methods of delivering expressiontges and molecules, and U.S. patent number 6,697y@ith claims reciting methods of in
vivo electroporation of skin and muscle, providedut-based coverage to the company. Other of Iropatents protect its proprietary
methodology of electroporation wherein the eleairagion process is carried out using "opposed-gaieectric field pulsing. Such patents
include, and are not limited to, U.S. patent nural&e?41,701, 6,120,493, 6,233,482, and 5,702,358@&limportant to understand that patents
having claims directed to methods of deliveringstabces to tissues using electroporation and deficesuch methods, are generally
applicable to DNA delivery and oncological applioas.

With respect to oncology, U.S. patent nunt869,149 provides broad claim coverage diretieaimethod for the application of electric
fields to a tissue of a patient having a "cell fevhtion disorder” for the purpose of introducimglecules into cells of the tissue to treat thé cel
proliferation disorder. Such method comprises giinyg an array of multiple opposed pairs of eleatsdonnected to a generator, wherein at
least two pairs of electrodes, after being placeskiected tissue along with the substance beawreporated, are activated simultaneously
with electric pulses. Likewise, in-licensed patéfg28,315 claims methods of electroporation of DidAumor cells in a broad manner.

Inovio has a number of issued U.S. andidorpatents claiming a widely used gene regulatéahnology called GeneSwitchi®at permit:
control of gene expression from DNA sequences @mall molecule that can be administered orally.é&s@mple, U.S. patents 5,364,791 and
6,599,698 claim various aspects of this uniqueleggun system that may be used in gene therapyustedin addition to electroporation
technology for gene delivery, the company also meda group of patents claiming the delivery of ®Nsing polymers (e.g., 6,040,295 and
6,514,947) and lipids (e.g., 6,387,395 and 6,239,81at are useful in the development of certainrADMccines.

Inovio's patent portfolio is also activetlwiespect to vascular, transdermal, and ex viydiegtions of electroporation technology. For
example, U.S. patent 5,704,908 includes claimsctiitkto an electroporation balloon catheter. Addgily, U.S. patent 6,342,247 is directed to
methods of increasing vasodilation, an importadication in maintaining blood flow in certain patte with vessel occlusion problems. U.S.
patents 6,697,669, 6,654,636, 5,810,762, and 5{489rovide claims to transdermal application et#ic fields to surface tissues, while U.S.
patents 6,027,488, 6,746,441, 6,800,484, and 6,480nclude claims to electroporation of cells itmoz Such electroporated cells could be
used either in laboratory settings or for introductnto patient blood stream or other tissues.

Of further importance to Inovio, the curtlgnssued patents provide a strong base for thieneld subject matter for the various indications
to at least the year 2017 and numerous claimsbheilh force to between 2018 and 2020.

Corporate History and Headquarters

Inovio was originally incorporated on Jutts 1983, under the laws of California as Biotedbgies & Experimental Research, Inc. On
December 10, 1991, the entity changed its corparaitee to BTX, Inc. and again on February 8, 19%hgked it to Genetronics, Inc. On
April 14, 1994, the board of directors approvedhars exchange agreement with Consolidated UnitéetyS&echnologies Inc. On Septembe
1997, the company listed on the Toronto Stock Ergeg"TSE") as Genetronics Biomedical Ltd, underldws of British Columbia, Canada,
which wholly-owned Genetronics, Inc. On June 15)20he entity completed a change in jurisdictibmoorporation from British Columbia,
Canada, to the state of Delaware. This change e@melished through a continuation of Genetronicsri2dical Ltd. into Genetronics
Biomedical Corporation, a Delaware corporation.January 17, 2003, Genetronics voluntarily de-lifteth the TSE, where Inovio's common
stock had been listed since September 2, 1997. @ohv31, 2005, the corporate
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name changed from Genetronics Biomedical Corparatidnovio Biomedical Corporation. Inovio conduitssbusiness through its U.S.
wholly-owned subsidiary, Genetronics, Inc., a Nagiae wholly-owned subsidiary, Inovio AS, and a wiawned subsidiary in the Republic
of Singapore, Inovio Asia Pte. Ltd., which may bglatform for future research and development &ffor

Inovio's principal executive offices aredted at 11494 Sorrento Valley Road, San Diegdfd®aia 92121-1318, and the telephone
number is (858) 597-6006.

Available Information

Our Internet website addressvisw.inovio.com We make our annual report on Form 10-K, quartesports on Form 10-Q, current
reports on Form 8-K, Forms 3, 4, and 5 filed ondiiedf directors and executive officers, and anyeadments to those reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of3keurities and Exchange Act of 1934, available &charge on our website as soon as
reasonably practicable after we electronically $ileh material with, or furnish it to, the Secastand Exchange Commission (the "SEC").
can learn more about us by reviewing such filing®ar website or at the SEC's websitevatv.sec.gov

Employees

As of March 16, 2009, Inovio employed 2ple on a full-time basis and 9 people under cdimgubnd project employment agreements.
Of the combined total, 22 were in product reseandtich includes research and development, quadisyiience, clinical, engineering, and
manufacturing, and 14 were in general and admatist, which includes corporate development, infation technology, legal, investor
relations, finance, and corporate administratioon&lof Inovio's employees are subject to colledbasyaining agreements.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following factoegarding information included in this Annual Refppdhe risks and uncertainties
described below are not the only ones we face.tidddil risks and uncertainties not presently kndeiis or that we currently deem
immaterial also may impair our business operatidhany of the following risks actually occur, oomsiness, financial condition and operating
results could be materially adversely affected.

NEGATIVE CONDITIONS IN THE GLOBAL CREDIT MARKETS MA Y IMPAIR THE LIQUIDITY OF A PORTION OF OUR
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO AND OUR ABILITY TO MAINTAIN OV ERALL LIQUIDITY, NEGATIVELY IMPACTING OUR
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION.

The capital and credit markets have be@ergancing extreme volatility and disruption for madhan twelve months and the volatility and
disruption have reached unprecedented levels.nresmases, the markets have exerted downward peess@availability of liquidity and credit
capacity for certain issuers. We need liquidityp&y our operating expenses, make timely principédliaterest payments on our debt and
replace certain maturing liabilities

Our investment securities consist of higheg (AAA rated) auction rate securities ("ARS'§usd primarily by municipalities, with a par
value of approximately $13.6 million. The recengatve conditions in the global credit markets hprevented some investors from
liquidating their holdings, including their holdis@f ARS. In early March 2008, we were informed tha&re was insufficient demand at auc
for all six of our high-grade ARS. As a result,shaffected securities are currently not liquid] @ could be required to hold them until they
are redeemed by the issuer or to maturity. In tesewe need to access the funds that are iniguidl state, we will not be able to do so
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without a loss of principal, until a future auction these investments is successful, the secusittesedeemed by the issuer or they mature.

In December 2008, we, via our wholly-owrsedbsidiary Genetronics, Inc., or "Genetronics”,ahhiolds the ARS, accepted an offer of
ARS Rights from UBS. The ARS Rights permit us tguiee UBS to purchase our ARS at par value at Bng tluring the period of June 30,
2010 through July 2, 2012. If we do not exerciseARS Rights, the ARS will continue to accrue ietgras determined by the auction process
or the terms of the ARS if the auction fails. [EtARS Rights are not exercised before July 2, 26&2 will expire and UBS will have no
further obligation to buy our ARS. UBS has the di$ion to purchase or sell our ARS at any time wuithprior notice so long as we receive a
payment at par upon any sale or disposition. UBSonly exercise its discretion to purchase or sell ARS for the purpose of restructurings,
dispositions or other solutions that will provide with par value for our ARS. As a condition to eygting the offer of ARS Rights, we released
UBS from all claims except claims for consequerdages relating to its marketing and sales of ARS&also agreed not to serve as a class
representative or receive benefits under any eleisn settlement or investor fund.

In conjunction with the acceptance of tighits offering, Genetronics also amended its exgstban agreement with UBS Bank USA,
increasing the existing credit line up to $12.1liovl, with the ARS pledged as collateral. Genetrsrfully drew down on the line of credit in
December 2008. Although the Company has been alégain limited liquidity through this line of ai secured by the ARS and expects
redemption of the ARS pursuant to the rights ola@djrthe line of credit may not provide sufficieiguidity for the Company's current
operational needs.

Without sufficient liquidity, we will be feed to curtail our operations, and our businedisswifer. In the event current resources,
including our ARS and the related line of credd,ribt satisfy our needs, we may have to seek additfinancing. The availability of
additional financing will depend on a variety o€tilars such as market conditions, the general ailifjaof credit, the volume of trading
activities, the overall availability of credit the financial services industry, our credit ratiagsl credit capacity, as well as the possibilityt tha
customers or lenders could develop a negative pgoceof our long- or short-term financial prosggeiftwe incur large investment losses or if
the level of our business activity decreases duedownturn in available funding, partnership oppoities and other fluctuations. The crisis in
the global financial markets currently places digaint limitations on the general availability akedit and the number and level of interest of
investors. Similarly, our access to funds may beaimed if regulatory authorities take negative @usiagainst us. Further, even if financing
becomes available, the cost to us may be significhigher than in the past. Our results of operadi financial condition, and cash flows
position could be materially adversely affectedtigse disruptions in the financial markets, inahgdihe resulting lack of liquidity in our
current investments and availability of financimg future liquidity.

WE WILL HAVE A NEED FOR SIGNIFICANT FUNDS IN THE FU TURE AND THERE IS NO GUARANTEE THAT WE WILL BE
ABLE TO OBTAIN THE FUNDS WE NEED.

Developing new medical devices and condgctiinical trials is expensive. Our product deyetent efforts may not lead to commercial
products, either because our product candidatetofae found safe or effective in clinical trials because we lack the necessary financial or
other resources or relationships to pursue ourrprog through advance phases of clinical trialotamercialization. Our capital and future
revenue may not be sufficient to support the expeio$ our operations, the development of a commakrdrastructure and the conduct of our
pre-clinical research and clinical trials, althoumsed upon our current budgeting and cash flowetspde believe that we can support our
operations during the next 12 months.
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Our plans for conducting research, furthgidevelopment, continuing current and future pirieal and clinical trials and, eventually,
marketing our human-use equipment will involve sabsal costs. The extent of such costs will depemenany factors, including some of the
following:

. The progress and breadth of pre-clinical testirdjtae size or complexity of our clinical trials addig delivery programs, all of
which directly influence cost;

. Higher than expected costs involved in complyinthwie regulatory process to get our hu-use products approved, includi
the number, size, and timing of necessary clinigals and costs associated with the current askyeamid review of existing
clinical and pre-clinical information;

. Higher than expected costs involved in patentingtechnologies and defending them and pursuingwerall intellectua
property strategy;

. Changes in our existing research and developmé&itarships and our ability to efficiently negotiaand enter into new
agreements;

. Changes in or terminations of our existing collaian and licensing arrangements;

. Faster or slower than expected rate of progresshadges in the scope and the cost of our resaactkdevelopment and clinic

trial activities;

. An increase or decrease in the amount and timingilelstone payments we receive from collaborat

. Higher than expected costs of preparing an appicdor FDA approval of our product developmentgrams;

. Higher than expected costs of developing the psseand systems to support FDA approval of ourymtodievelopmer
programs;

. An increase in our timetable and costs for the igwreent of marketing operations and other actisitielated to the

commercialization of our product development progsa
. Higher than expected costs to further develop aateaip our manufacturing capability of our hu-use equipment; ar

. Competition for our products and our ability, ahdttof our partners, to commercialize our products.

We plan to fund operations by several me@reswill attempt to enter into contracts with pents that will fund either general operating
expenses or specific programs or projects. Somdirfigralso may be received through government gratdwever, we may not be able to e
into any such contracts or may not receive suchtgrar, if we do, our partners and the grants nayprovide enough funding to meet our
needs.

In the past, we have raised funds throhglpublic and private sale of our stock, and weikedy to seek to do this in the future. Howe
due to the significant fluctuations in the markate of our common stock as a result of the extréow®uations in the global financial markets
recently, there may not be sufficient investoriiegt in such sales at such time as we seek toadifidonal funds, or if there is interest, it may
not be at a price or on terms favorable to us.Heurtsale of our stock to new investors resultilition of the ownership interests of our
existing stockholders. The greater the number afeshsold, the greater the dilution. A high degrfedilution can make it difficult for the price
of our stock to increase, among other things. @ilualso weakens existing stockholders' voting povwé&hough we would consider also
utilizing debt to fund our operations, such asaunrent use of our Line of Credit secured by ourSABiven the constriction of available credit
and the fluctuation of interest rates in the gldbencial markets currently, additional debt ficang
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may also be unavailable when needed, or availaiiddyson terms not favorable to us. Thus, we camsstire you that we will be able to raise
additional capital or secure alternate financinfutocd operations on terms that are favorable tdafas,all. Further, on July 7, 2008, we
announced the signing of a definitive merger agesgnwith VGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a privatélgld corporation; we cannot assure you
the merger, if completed, will in any way negaterdtigate the need for future capital nor can wagmt how it may impact our ability to raise
future funds.

ANY ACQUISITION WE MIGHT MAKE MAY BE COSTLY AND DIF  FICULT TO INTEGRATE, MAY DIVERT MANAGEMENT
RESOURCES OR DILUTE STOCKHOLDER VALUE.

We have considered and made strategic sitiqus in the past, including the acquisition mbvio AS, and in the future, may acquire or
invest in complementary companies, products omeldgies. As part of our business strategy, we atapire assets or businesses principally
relating to or complementary to our current operaj and we have in the past evaluated and distgssd opportunities with interested
parties. Any acquisitions we undertake will be anpanied by issues commonly encountered in busemgggsitions, which could adversely
affect us, including:

. Potential exposure to unknown liabilities of acqdicompanies

. The difficulty and expense of assimilating the @piens and personnel of acquired businesses;

. Diversion of management time and attention andra@sources;

. Loss of key employees and customers as a rescitasfges in manageme

. Incre_asgad legal, accounting and other adminisgatosts associated with negotiation, documentatichreporting any such
acquisition;

. Possible dilution to our stockholders; ¢

. Possible acceleration of financing nee

In addition, geography and/or languageibezmmay make the integration of businesses mdfieudt. We may not be successful in
overcoming these risks or any other problems ertesed in connection with any of our acquisitions.

On July 7, 2008, we announced the signfreg definitive merger agreement with VGX Pharmaimals, Inc., a privately-held corporation.
In addition to the general risks and uncertaintieany business combination noted above, someeohtierent uncertainties we currently face
in the proposed merger include:

. The parties' potential difficulties in quickly leding about and accurately evaluating each othinigal trials and product
development programs, including, but not limitegdtte fact that pre-clinical and clinical resulth&ved by each party to date
may not be indicative of results achievable in othials or for other indications and that restittsn one study may not
necessarily be reflected or supported by the resdilbther similar studies;

. The potential impact of the proposed merger onlaliity of ongoing or new funding to support canting research and studi
in an effort to prove safety and efficacy of eleptrration technology as a delivery mechanism oeligvviable DNA vaccines;

. The availability or potential availability of alteative therapies or treatments for the conditiangdted by the parties or their
collaborators, including alternatives that may hererefficacious or cost-effective than any therapyreatment that the parties
and their collaborators hope to develop;

. The impact of the proposed transaction, includimgtime commitment from the parties' managementhemarties' abilities to
evaluate and potentially pursue other potentidhbalrative or acquisition opportunities;
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. Issues involving patents and whether they or liesrie them will provide the parties with meaningftbtection from others
using the covered technologies, and whether thgengif completed, will impact any such protectipns

. Whether the parties' proprietary rights are enfalote or defensible or infringe or allegedly infrengn rights of others or can
withstand claims of invalidity and whether the conglll company can finance or devote other significesources that may be
necessary to prosecute, protect or defend them;

. The level of corporate expenditures required tolete the merger process and, if completed, suleseiguintegrate the
operations of the parties;

. Any assessments of the companies' proposed comtsokdology by potential corporate or other pagrarcollaborators
. Potential stockholder litigation in connection witte merger;
. Evaluation of the transaction by the NYSE Amex, abhiay impact the current and/or additional listiighe Company's

securities; and

. The impact of the application of FAS 141(R) to #ueounting treatment of the merger, if consumme

We may not be successful in overcomingehesks or any other issues encountered in cororeutith the proposed merger, we cannot
assure you that the merger will be consummatedyandannot assure you that the results of the mefgmmpleted, will meet the
expectations of the parties and their stockholders.

THE NYSE AMEX MAY DELIST OUR SECURITIES FROM QUOTAT ION ON ITS EXCHANGE IF WE ARE UNABLE TO
MAINTAIN A SUFFICIENT STOCK PRICE, AND IF SO, WE MA Y BE UNABLE TO RELIST OUR SECURITIES ON THE NYSE
AMEX OR ANOTHER NATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE DUE TO THE LEVEL OF PERCEIVED MARKET VALUE OF
SHARES OF OUR COMMON STOCK.

Our securities are currently listed ontHSE Amex (the "NYSE Amex"), a national securiteeghange, and in recent months have
experienced a significant drop in market price. N'SE Amex may seek to delist our securities froading on its exchange if the NYSE
Amex determines that the market price of our comsstook has been persistently too low or if we f@aimaintain compliance with other
requirements of continued listing on the NYSE AmiéNYSE Amex finds that we are non-compliant, itlwssue a warning letter, which will
require the Company to respond regarding poteatitdbns it intends to take to support the markiepif such actions are not found sufficient
by the NYSE Amex, if we cannot get any requiredrapgls for such actions from its stockholders, eratherwise cannot or do not complete
such actions in a timely manner, the NYSE Amex iniliate the delisting process. If the NYSE Ameslisits our securities from trading on its
exchange and we are unable to relist our secudtidghe NYSE Amex or another national securitiashexige due to the level of the perceived
market price of shares of its common stock, the @amy could face significant material adverse consages, including:

. an inability to fulfill the closing conditions fdhe pending merger with VGX Pharmaceuticals, Imzlar the terms of th
definitive merger agreement;

. a limited availability of market quotations for gscurities

. a determination that its common stock is a "penagks which will require brokers trading in its comon stock to adhere
more stringent rules, possibly resulting in a rextulevel of trading activity in the trading market Inovio common stock;

. a limited amount of news and analyst coveragetfocompany; an
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. a decreased ability to issue additional securdiesbtain additional financing in the future.

Any of these consequences would likely heaweaterial adverse impact on our financial conditind operations, and would result in a
potential decrease in liquidity of our common stock

IF WE DO NOT HAVE ENOUGH CAPITAL TO FUND OPERATIONS , THEN WE WILL HAVE TO CUT COSTS.

If we are unable to raise additional fundgler terms acceptable to us and in the interéstsrastockholders, then we will have to take
measures to cut costs, such as:

. Delaying, scaling back or discontinuing one or mafreur gene delivery programs or other aspectgpefations, includin
laying off personnel or stopping or delaying plachpeeclinical research and the initiation or couéition of clinical trials;

. The sale or license some of our technologies tleatvauld not otherwise sell or license if we weraistronger financial
position;
. The sale or license some of our technologies uteders that are less favorable than they otherwigdthave been if we wel

in a stronger financial position; and

. Potentially merging with another company or positg ourselves to be acquired by another company.

If it became necessary to take one or mbthe above-listed actions, then our perceivedatédn may be lower, which could impact the
market price for our common stock. Further, the@# on our operations, financial performance aocksprice may be significant if we do not
or cannot take one or more of the above-listedastin a timely manner if and when needed, andability to do so may be limited
significantly due to the instability of the glotfalancial markets and the resulting limitationsayailable financing to us and to potential
licensees, buyers and investors.

THE MARKET FOR OUR STOCK IS VOLATILE, WHICH COULD A DVERSELY AFFECT AN INVESTMENT IN OUR STOCK.

Our share price and trading volume areiticadhlly highly volatile, and such volatility hdmeen exacerbated by the crisis in the global
financial markets which has resulted in extremettlations in market performance overall throughbatrecent weeks. Such volatility is not
unusual for biomedical companies of our size, agd,with a discrete market niche and is likelydatmue even if the global markets stabilize.
It also is common for the trading volume and poédiotechnology stocks to be unrelated to a comisavperations, i.e. to increase or decrt
on positive or no news. Our stock has exhibited tyjpe of behavior in the past, and will likely é&ihit in the future. The historically low
trading volume of our stock, in relation to manfi@tbiomedical companies of our size, makes it niikedy that a severe fluctuation in
volume, either up or down, will affect the stoclcer

Some factors that we would expect to degpites price of our stock include:

. Adverse clinical trial results;

. Adverse research and development res

. Our inability to obtain additional capite

. Announcement that the FDA denied our request tocygpour human-use product for commercializatiothsnUnited States, or

similar denial by other regulatory bodies which makdependent decisions outside the United States;

. Announcement of legal actions brought by or filgdiast us for patent or other matters, especitileireceive negative ruling
or outcomes in such actions;
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. Announcement of an investigation of or an actioaiast us by the SEC, NYSE Amex, or other stateedefal regulatory
authorities related to corporate governance orrg@iissues, including any prolonged commeneflattsponse process,
especially if such circumstances result in negativieomes such as a significant restatement opar financial results;

. Cancellation of corporate partnerships which inelikerck, Wyeth as well as other material agreements

. Public concern as to the safety or efficacy of lmumar-use products including public perceptions regardjege therapy i
general;

. Potential negative market reaction to the termgdtume of any issuances of shares of our stocleto investors or service
providers;

. Stockholders' decisions, for whatever reasonsltdasge amounts of our stock;

. Declining working capital to fund operations, ohet signs of apparent financial uncertainty;

. Significant advances made by competitors that abgiaffect our potential market position; &

. The loss of key personnel and the inability tosattiand retain additional higl-skilled personne

These factors, as well as the other fadessribed in this report, could significantly afféhe price of our stock. In addition, we
announced on July 7, 2008, a pending merger tréingathe uncertainties inherent in such transastieegarding timing, potential for success,
impacts on operations and dilution to our curréotkholders may further exacerbate fluctuationstinstock price. We believe that quarter-to-
quarter or annual comparisons of our operatinglt®ape not a good indicator of our future perfone® Nevertheless, these fluctuations may
cause us to perform below the expectations of pub#rket analysts and investors. If this happédresptice of shares of our common stock
would likely decline.

SALES OF SUBSTANTIAL AMOUNTS OF OUR SHARES, OR EVEN THE AVAILABILITY OF OUR SHARES FOR SALE, IN
THE OPEN MARKET COULD CAUSE THE MARKET PRICE OF OUR SHARES TO DECLINE.

Under our registration statement that tB€ Sleclared effective on May 25, 2006, we havesteged an aggregate of $75.0 million of our
equity securities that we may issue from timenetiin one or more offerings at prices and on talraswe will determine at the time of each
offering. Under that registration statement, weehgagistered multiple kinds of our equity secusitimcluding our common stock, preferred
stock, warrants and a combination of these seesritir units. Through December 31, 2008, we haleti-down" from our shelf registration
statement, and issued and sold, an aggregate38,378 shares of our common stock valued at $2@l@mand warrants to purchase up to
1,575,919 shares of our common stock valued ati®8li@n and, if those warrants are fully exercisa@ will have issued an additional
1,575,919 shares of our common stock under théit igggstration statement. In other words, the shaxf common stock we have sold in
offerings from our shelf registration statemenbfthe date of this report represent approximadél§6 of the value of the aggregate equity
securities from our shelf registration statemea®44f the warrants we have sold from our shelfstrgtion statement are fully exercised).
While that amount is only approximately 24% of outstanding shares of common stock as of Decenthe2®8, future issuances and sale
our common stock or securities exercisable foramvertible into our common stock pursuant to ousting shelf registration statement, if in
substantial numbers, and even the availabilitydsuance of the securities registered under odf idggstration statement, could adversely
affect the market price of our shares.
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In addition to the shares and warrants aeehissued from our shelf registration statemeuing 2007 we also issued 2,201,644 shares of
our common stock and warrants to purchase up tg1988&hares of our common stock in other receetiofjs, as well as other restricted
shares pursuant to consulting arrangements and retistered securities pursuant to our stock iticemplan in 2007 and 2008. Further,
effective February 15, 2008, the SEC revised Rdle Which provides a safe harbor for the resalesifricted securities, shortening applicable
holding periods and easing other restrictions &oegiirements for resales by our non-affiliates,ebgrenabling an increased number of our
outstanding restricted securities to be resold sponthe public market. Further, if we complete panding merger transaction, as announced
July 7, 2008, we will issue a significant numberegistered shares which will substantially dilate current stockholders and which will be
freely tradable for non-affiliates of the post-mergompany.

Sales of substantial amounts of our sta@ag one time or from time to time by the investtr whom we have issued them, or even the
availability of these shares for sale, could cahsemarket price of our common stock to decline.

WE HAVE A HISTORY OF LOSSES, WE EXPECT TO CONTINUE TO INCUR LOSSES AND WE MAY NOT ACHIEVE OR
MAINTAIN PROFITABILITY.

As of December 31, 2008, we had an accuediideficit of $152.8 million. We have operated dbss since 1994, and we expect this to
continue for some time. The amount of the accuradldeficit will continue to increase, as it will bepensive to continue research,
development and clinical efforts. If these actestiare successful and if we receive approval fltwrDA to market equipment, then even n
funding will be required to market and sell the ipuent. The outcome of these matters cannot begbeeldat this time. We are evaluating
additional potential partnerships and collaboratigeeements as a way to further fund operatiortshiewe is no assurance we will be able to
secure partnerships or other arrangements thaprellide the required funding, if at all. We wibmtinue to rely on outside sources of
financing to meet our capital needs beyond next.yaahe past, we have raised funds through theipand private sale of our stock, and we
are likely to seek to do this in the future. Howewhie to the significant fluctuations in the margegce of our common stock as a result of the
extreme fluctuations in the global financial masketcently, there may not be sufficient investderiest in such sales at such time as we seek t
raise additional funds, or if there is interestnay not be at a price or on terms favorable to us.

Further, there can be no assurance, asgum@rsuccessfully raise additional funds, that viltaghieve positive cash flow. If we are
unable to raise additional funds under terms aetd#pto us and in the interests of our stockholdben we will have to take measures to cut
costs, such as delaying, scaling back or discoimignone or more of our gene delivery programs bepaspects of operations, including laying
off personnel or stopping or delaying planned pnédl research and the initiation or continuatadrelinical trials.

OUR DEPENDENCE UPON NON-MARKETED PRODUCTS, OUR LACK OF EXPERIENCE IN MANUFACTURING AND
MARKETING HUMAN-USE PRODUCTS, AND OUR CONTINUING DE FICIT MAY RESULT IN EVEN FURTHER
FLUCTUATIONS IN OUR TRADING VOLUME AND SHARE PRICE.

Even if we were to achieve successful clihresults in our programs, successful approvatketing, and sales of our human-use
equipment are also critical to the financial futofeur company. Our human-use products are naayetoved for sale in the United States and
other jurisdictions and we may never obtain thggeavals regardless of whether we achieve sucdedsfical trial results utilizing such
human-use products. Even if we do obtain appraeasell our human-use products in the United Stabese sales may not be as large or as
timely as we expect.
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These uncertainties may further cause our operagisigjts to fluctuate dramatically in the next savgears.
OUR ABILITY TO UTILIZE OUR NET OPERATING LOSSES AND CERTAIN OTHER TAX ATTRIBUTES MAY BE LIMITED.

As of December 31, 2008, we had net opmgdtisses (NOLSs) of approximately $59.4 million federal income tax purposes and
approximately $58.0 million for state income taxpmses. We also had federal research tax crediffoarvards of approximately $1.2 million
as of December 31, 2008. Utilization of the NOLd &ax credit carryforwards may be subject to a sfigl annual limitation under
Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19868 ,similar state provisions due to ownership chdimy#ations that have occurred
previously or that could occur in the future. Theasership changes may limit the amount of NOL tndcredit carryforwards and other
deferred tax assets that can be utilized to oftdate taxable income and tax, respectively. Inggah an ownership change, as defined by
Section 382, results from transactions increasimgesship of certain stockholders or public groupthie stock of the corporation by more than
50 percentage points over a thyesr period. An analysis was performed of ownersloijvity through December 31, 2008 which indicatiesl
multiple ownership changes have occurred in pressiears which created annual limitations on the @amy's ability to utilize NOL and tax
credit carryovers. Such limitations will resultapproximately $12.7 million of tax benefits relatedNOL and tax credit carryforwards that \
expire unused. Any limitation on our net operatiogs carryforwards that could be used to offset-pesiership change in taxable income
would adversely affect our liquidity and cash flag, and when we become profitable.

IF WE ARE UNABLE TO DEVELOP COMMERCIALLY SUCCESSFUL PRODUCTS IN VARIOUS MARKETS FOR MULTIPLE
INDICATIONS, OUR BUSINESS WILL BE HARMED AND WE MAY BE FORCED TO CURTAIL OR CEASE OPERATIONS.

We cannot assure you that we will succdlgsfievelop any products, or if we do, that theyl e commercially successful. If we fail to
develop or successfully commercialize any prodweesmay be forced to refocus, curtail or ceaseatfers. Our ability to achieve and sustain
operating profitability depends on our ability,efitly or with strategic partners, to successfutlinmercialize our products in Europe, Asia and
in the US. This will depend in large part on ouiligbto commence, execute and complete clinicalgpams and obtain regulatory approvals
our products. Clinical trials are still necessagfdie we can seek regulatory approval to sell oodgpcts. We cannot assure you that we will
receive approval for our products in the Unitedé&tar in other countries or, if approved, thatowva partner will achieve a significant level of
sales. If we fail to partner or commercialize otmducts, we may be forced to curtail or cease djpers

We are also in the pre-clinical stageseskEarch and development with other new productidates using our electroporation technology.
These new indications and product candidates edjliire significant costs to advance through theelbgment stages. Even if such product
candidates are advanced through clinical triaks résults of such trials may not gain FDA approkakn if approved, our products may not be
commercially successful.

PRE-CLINICAL AND CLINICAL TRIALS OF HUMAN-USE EQUIP MENT ARE UNPREDICTABLE, AND IF WE EXPERIENCE
UNSUCCESSFUL TRIAL RESULTS, OUR BUSINESS WILL SUFFER.

Before any of our human-use equipment @asdid, the FDA or applicable foreign regulatoryhauities must determine that the
equipment meets specified criteria for use in tiigdations for which approval is requested, inahgddbtaining appropriate regulatory
approvals. Satisfaction of regulatory requireméyypécally takes many years, and involves complianith requirements covering research and
development, testing, manufacturing, quality cdntedbeling and promotion of drugs for
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human use. To obtain regulatory approvals, we namsgng other requirements, complete pre-cliniced¢aech and clinical trials demonstrating
that our product candidates are safe and effefiiva particular cancer type or other disease. Regy approval of a new treatment is never
guaranteed. The FDA will make this determinatiosdabon the results from our pre-clinical testing alinical trials and has substantial
discretion in the approval process. Despite the timd experience exerted, failure can occur astage, and we could encounter problems
causing us to abandon pre-clinical research anitalitrial activities.

In addition, any of our clinical trials ftreatment using our therapy may be delayed oetia@t any time for various other reasons,
including:

. The electroporatic-mediated delivery of DNA vaccines or related ageméy be found to be ineffective or be considere
cause harmful side effects, including death;

. Our clinical trials may take longer than anticighfer any of a number of reasons, including a sgaof subjects that meet the
physiological or pathological criteria for entrytarthe study and a scarcity of subjects that aléngito participate through the
end of the trial, or follow-up visits;

. The reported clinical data may change over time \sult of the continuing evaluation of patientshe current assembly and
review of existing clinical and pre-clinical infoation;

. Data from various sites patrticipating in the clalitrials may be incomplete or unreliable, whiclildoresult in the need to repe
the trial or abandon the project; and

. Pre-clinical and clinical data can be interpretedhany different ways, and the FDA and other retpujeauthorities may
interpret our data differently than we do, whichlulkcbhalt or delay our clinical trials or prevengtgatory approval.

If any of the above events arise duringerclinical research, clinical trials or dataiesv, we would expect this to have a serious
negative impact on our company. Any terminatiommgoing enrollment or other delay or change incbweduct of our clinical trials may not
always be understood or accepted by the capitdtetsaand announcements of such scientific resnitg@ated actions may adversely affect
the market price of our common stock. We have egpeed such problems in the past when we stoppétkefupatient enroliment in two Phase
Il pivotal studies for squamous cell head and neabkcer in 2007.

Any delays or difficulties we have encourtkor will encounter in our pre-clinical reseaestd clinical trials, may delay or preclude
regulatory approval. Our product development cagitsncrease if we experience delays in testingemulatory approvals or if we need to
perform more extensive or larger clinical trialatplanned. Any such events could also delay aryde the commercialization of our therapy
or any other product candidates.

Clinical trials are unpredictable, espdgiliman-use trials. Results achieved in earlyestdimical trials may not be repeated in later stag
trials, or in trials with more patients. When egbsitive results were not repeated in later stagks, pharmaceutical and biotechnology
companies have suffered significant setbacks. Niytare commercialization timelines pushed back,dmme companies, particularly smaller
biotechnology companies with limited cash reserti@sge discontinued business after releasing newasfccessful clinical trial results. We
cannot be certain the results we observed in aexclimical testing will be confirmed in clinicaliéts or the results of any of our clinical trials
will support FDA approval. If we experience unexgel; inconsistent or disappointing results in caioa with a clinical or pre-clinical trial
our business will suffer.

A delay in our pre-clinical research or olinical trials, for whatever reason, will probgbkequire us to spend additional funds to keep our
product(s) moving through the regulatory procefsael do not have or cannot raise additional fuigisn the testing of our human-use products
could be
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discontinued. In the event our pre-clinical reskamcour clinical trials are not successful, wel Wwive to determine whether to continue to fund
our programs to address the deficiencies, or winéth@bandon our clinical development programsfarproducts in tested indications. Loss
of our human-use product line would be a significaetback for our company.

Because there are so many variables inhargme-clinical research or clinical trials, wannot predict whether any of our future
regulatory applications to conduct clinical trialgl be approved by the FDA or other regulatoryhaarities, whether our clinical trials will
commence or proceed as planned, and whether #herill ultimately be deemed to be successfuldate, our experience has been that
submission and approval of clinical protocols feeh longer than desired or expected.

OUR BUSINESS IS HIGHLY DEPENDENT ON RECEIVING APPRO VALS FROM VARIOUS REGULATORY AUTHORITIES
AND WILL BE DRAMATICALLY AFFECTED IF APPROVAL TO MA  NUFACTURE AND SELL OUR HUMAN-USE
EQUIPMENT IS NOT GRANTED OR IS NOT GRANTED INA TIM ELY MANNER.

The production and marketing of our humae-equipment and our ongoing research, developmestlinical testing, and clinical trial
activities are subject to extensive regulation. luas governmental agencies in the U.S. and inierradly, including the FDA, must review
our applications and decide whether to grant regolapproval. All of our humanse equipment must go through an approval processme
instances for each indication for which we wanlateel it for use (such as use for transfer of sgadeigene to a certain tissue). These regulatory
processes are extensive and involve substantitd eos time.

We have limited experience in, and limitedources available, for such regulatory activitieslure to comply with applicable regulations
can, among other things, result in non-approvapsusions of regulatory approvals, fines, prodeiduses and recalls, operating restrictions,
injunctions and criminal prosecution.

Any of the following events can occur aiidny did occur, any one could have a materiakas effect on our business, financial
conditions and results of operations:

. As mentioned earlier, clinical trials may not yialdfficiently conclusive results for regulatory agies to approve the use of ¢
products;
. There can be delays, sometimes long, in obtainimgaval for our human-use devices, and indeed, ave lexperienced such

delays in obtaining FDA approval of our clinicabpscols;

. The rules and regulations governing hu-use equipment such as ours can change duringleswprocess, which can result
the need to spend time and money for further tggtimreview;

. If approval for commercialization is granted, ipigssible the authorized use will be more limiteaint we believe is necessary
commercial success, or that approval may be camgiti on completion of further clinical trials ohet activities; and

. Once granted, approval can be withdrawn, or limitedreviously unknown problems arise with our hamruse product or data
arising from its use.

WE CANNOT PREDICT THE SAFETY PROFILE OF THE USE OF OUR ELECTROPORATION SYSTEM WHEN USED IN
COMBINATION WITH OTHER THERAPIES.

Our current clinical trials involve the usieour electroporation system in combination va#ntain DNA vaccines. While the data we have
evaluated to date suggest the use of electropardties not alone have significant adverse effemtsntrease the adverse effects of other
therapies, we cannot predict if this outcome walhtinue to be true or whether possible adverseefféets directly
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attributable to the vaccines provided by our padred collaborators will compromise the safetyfifg@f our electroporation-based DNA
delivery system when used in certain combinati@nahies. In some instances, clinical results maglearly indicate whether possible adve
effects are related to our technology versus ahety related factors.

WE COULD BE SUBSTANTIALLY DAMAGED IF PHYSICIANS AND HOSPITALS PERFORMING CLINICAL TRIALS USING
OUR EQUIPMENT DO NOT ADHERE TO PROTOCOLS DEFINED IN CLINICAL TRIAL AGREEMENTS.

We work and have worked with a number dcffitals to perform clinical trials, primarily inétfield of oncology. We depend on these
hospitals to recruit patients for our trials, tofpem the trials according to our protocols, andeport the results in a thorough, accurate and
consistent manner. Although we have agreementsthgétse hospitals which govern what each party dotwith respect to each protocol,
patient safety, and avoidance of conflict of ing¢réhere are risks that the terms of the contradtot be followed, such as the following:

Possible Deviations from Protocol. The hospitals or the physicians working attibepitals may not perform the trials correctly.
Deviations from our protocol may make the clinidata not useful and the trial could become esdpmiiarthless.

Potential for Conflict of Interest. Physicians working on protocols may have anrgppr economic interest in our company, or other
conflict of interest. When a physician has a peasstake in the success of the trial, such as vahghysician owns stock, or rights to purchase
stock of the trial sponsor, it can create suspitia the trial results were improperly influendsdthe physician's interest in economic gain.
Not only can this put the clinical trial resultsrik, but it can also cause serious damage torgpany's reputatior

Patient Safety and Consent Issue®hysicians and hospitals may fail to securm&mwritten consent as instructed or report adverse
effects that arise during the trial in the propemmer, which could put patients at unnecessary IFiBisicians and hospital staff may fail to
observe proper safety measures such as the mighgaoéilused medical needles, which may result énttansmission of infectious and deadly
diseases, such as HIV. This increases our liapditfiects the data, and can damage our reputation.

If any of these events were to occur, tihepuld have a material adverse effect on ouiitgkib receive regulatory authorization to sell our
human-use equipment, and on our reputation. Negjatrents that arise in the performance of clirticals sponsored by biotechnology
companies of our size and with limited cash resehave resulted in companies going out of busindidle these risks are always present, to
date, our contracted physicians and clinics haes Iseiccessful in collecting significant data regagdhe clinical protocols under which they
have operated, and we are unaware of any condifdtgerest or improprieties regarding our protacol

EVEN IF OUR PRODUCTS ARE APPROVED BY REGULATORY AUT HORITIES, IF WE FAIL TO COMPLY WITH ON-GOING
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS, OR IF WE EXPERIENCE UNANTI CIPATED PROBLEMS WITH OUR PRODUCTS, THESE
PRODUCTS COULD BE SUBJECT TO RESTRICTIONS OR WITHDR AWAL FROM THE MARKET.

Any product for which we obtain marketingpeoval, along with the manufacturing processest-ppproval clinical data and promotional
activities for such product, will be subject to tional review and periodic inspections by the FD#l ather regulatory bodies. Even if
regulatory approval of a product is granted, therapal may be subject to limitations on the indéthtuses for which the product may be
marketed or to certain requirements resulting stlggost-marketing testing and surveillance to ntosrthe safety or efficacy of the product.
Later discovery of previously unknown
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problems with our products, including unanticipaséelyerse events of unanticipated severity or fraqueegarding manufacturer or
manufacturing processes or failing to comply wehulatory requirements, may result in restrictionsuch products or manufacturing
processes, withdrawal of the products from the etaskoluntary or mandatory recall, fines, suspemsibregulatory approvals, product seizt
or detention, injunctions or the imposition of tier criminal penalties.

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH FOREIGN REGULATORY REQUIREME NTS GOVERNING HUMAN CLINICAL TRIALS AND
MARKETING APPROVAL FOR OUR HUMAN-USE EQUIPMENT COUL D PREVENT US FROM SELLING OUR PRODUCTS IN
FOREIGN MARKETS, WHICH MAY ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR OPE RATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS.

For marketing our MedPulser® Electropomat®ystem outside the United States, the requiresrgauerning the conduct of clinical trials,
product licensing, pricing and reimbursement vasatly from country to country and may require siddal testing. The time required to
obtain approvals outside the United States magdifbm that required to obtain FDA approval. Weymat obtain foreign regulatory appro
on a timely basis, if at all. Approval by the FDAea$ not ensure approval by regulatory authoritiesther countries, and approval by one
foreign regulatory authority does not ensure apalrby regulatory authorities in other countriedgrthe FDA. Failure to comply with these
regulatory requirements or to obtain required apgiocould impair our ability to develop these neskand could have a material adverse
affect on our results of operations and financtaldition.

OUR ABILITY TO ACHIEVE SIGNIFICANT REVENUES FROM SA LES OR LEASES OF HUMAN-USE PRODUCTS WILL
DEPEND ON ESTABLISHING EFFECTIVE SALES, MARKETING A ND DISTRIBUTION CAPABILITIES OR RELATIONSHIPS
AND WE CURRENTLY LACK SUBSTANTIAL EXPERIENCE IN THE SE AREAS.

To market our products, we will need toelep sales, marketing and distribution capabilitiesorder to develop or otherwise obtain th
capabilities, we may have to enter into marketdigtribution or other similar arrangements wittrdhparties in order to sell, market and
distribute our products successfully. To the exthat we enter into any such arrangements witll ghérrties, our product revenue is likely to be
lower than if we marketed and sold our productsedlly, and our revenues will depend upon the effoftthese third parties.

We have limited experience in sales, mamgetnd distribution of clinical and human-use prog and we currently have no sales,
marketing or distribution capability. If we decittemarket and sell our human-use products direatlymust develop a marketing and sales
capability. This would involve substantial costgjriing and time. We may be unable to develop sieffit sales, marketing and distribution
capabilities to commercialize our products sucaglysfRegardless of whether we elect to use thadips or seek to develop our own
marketing capability, we may not be able to sudodlgscommercialize any product.

WE RELY ON COLLABORATIVE AND LICENSING RELATIONSHIP S TO FUND A PORTION OF OUR RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES. IF WE ARE UNABLE TO MAINTAIN OR EXPAND EXISTING RELATIONSHIPS, OR INITIATE
NEW RELATIONSHIPS, WE WILL HAVE TO DEFER OR CURTAIL RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES IN ONE
OR MORE AREAS.

Our partners and collaborators fund a paortif our research and development expenses aistl @sé the research and development of
our human-use equipment. These collaborations artdgryships help pay the salaries and other ovdrbgaenses related to research. In the
past, we have encountered operational difficultitsr the termination of an agreement by a fornaetrer. Because this partnership was
terminated, we did not receive significant milegtgrayments which we had expected and were forcddlay some clinical trials as well as
some product development. We

34




Table of Contents

may experience such operational difficulties omieation of such relationships without anticipageyment again in the future.

We also rely on scientific collaboratorcampanies and universities to further expand esearch and to test our equipment. In most
cases, we lend our equipment to a collaboratochtean or her how to use it, and together desigregrments to test the equipment in one of
the collaborator's fields of expertise. We aimeaowse agreements that restrict collaborators'sightise the equipment outside of the agreed
upon research, and outline the rights each of Uihawe in any results or inventions arising frame work.

Nevertheless, there is always potentiat tha

. Our equipment will be used in ways we did not atitey which can lead to liability and unwanted catilon;

. We may determine that technology has been imprppedigned to us or a collaborator may claim righitsertain of our
technology, which may require us to pay license femilestone payments and, if commercial saleékefinderlying product
are achieved, royalties;

. We may lose rights to inventions made by our caltators in the field of our business, which cardleaexpensive litigation al
unwanted competition;

. Our collaborators may not keep our confidentiabinfation to themselves, which can lead to lossuofright to seek patel
protection and loss of trade secrets, and expetisyation; and

. Collaborative associations can damage a compaggation if they fail and thus, by associatiorothrerwise, the scientific or
medical community may develop a negative view of us

We cannot guarantee that any of the refualts these collaborations will be successful. Wé® @annot be sure that we will be able to
continue to collaborate with individuals and ingiibns that will further develop our products, lbattwe will be able to do so under terms that
are not overly restrictive. If we are not able taintain or develop new collaborative relationshipis likely that our research pace will slow
down and that it will take longer to identify andnemercialize new products, or new indications for existing products.

A SMALL NUMBER OF LICENSING PARTNERS ACCOUNT FOR A SUBSTANTIAL PORTION OF OUR REVENUE IN EACH
PERIOD AND OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION COULD SUFFER IF WE LOSE THESE
LICENSING PARTNERS OR FAIL TO ADD ADDITIONAL LICENS ING PARTNERS IN THE FUTURE.

We derive a significant portion of our raue from a limited number of licensing partnergath period. Accordingly, if we fail to sign
additional future contracts with major licensingtpars, if a licensing contract is delayed or deféy or if an existing licensing contract expires
or is cancelled and we fail to replace the contwdtit new business, our revenue would be advesédgted. Until commercialization of our
Medpulser® Electroporation System, we expect tHahiied number of licensing partners will continteeaccount for a substantial portion of
our revenue in each quarter in the foreseeableduRuring the years ended December 31, 2008 a@d, 2e licensing partner, Merck,
accounted for approximately 30% and 68%, respdgtio# our consolidated revenue. During the yeatezhDecember 31, 2008 and 2007
another licensing partner, Wyeth, accounted for 40 23%, respectively, of our consolidated reveMie expect revenues from Wyeth and
Merck to be significantly lower in 2009, as Wyetrakiates internal strategic options prior to initig further development of electroporation-
based infectious disease programs and developragvitias for Merck will be limited for the foresable future. Further, Wyeth has recently
agreed to be acquired by Pfizer Inc. and Merckrbasntly agreed to acquire Schering-Plough CorraDevelopment and funding priorities
may change as a result of these transactions, whéghlead to the suspension or
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termination of our relationships with Wyeth or Mieré\ny such suspension or termination would liketiversely affect our business.

IF WE CANNOT MAINTAIN OUR EXISTING CORPORATE AND AC ADEMIC ARRANGEMENTS AND ENTER INTO NEW
ARRANGEMENTS, WE MAY BE UNABLE TO DEVELOP PRODUCTS EFFECTIVELY, OR AT ALL.

Our strategy for the research, developraedtcommercialization of our product candidates mnegylt in us entering into contractual
arrangements with corporate collaborators, acadersiitutions and others. We have entered into spaad research, license and/or
collaborative arrangements with several entitiesluiding Merck, Wyeth, Vical, Valentis, the U.S.\WaChiron and the University of South
Florida, as well as numerous other institutions tdweaduct clinical trials work or perform padinical research for us. Our success depends
our collaborative partners performing their resploilises under these arrangements and complyirtp tie regulations and requirements
governing clinical trials. We cannot control theamt and timing of resources our collaborative mend devote to our research and testing
programs or product candidates, or their compliamitie regulatory requirements which can vary beeaafsfactors unrelated to such programs
or product candidates. These relationships magrmescases be terminated at the discretion of dlalbmrative partners with only limited
notice to us.

Merck can terminate its May 2004 licensd eollaboration agreement with us at any timesrsile discretion, without cause, by giving
ninety days' advance notice to us. If this agredriseierminated by Merck at any time during thstfiwo years of the collaboration term, then
Merck shall continue, for a six-month period begmgnon the date of such termination, to make paympreviously approved by the project's
joint collaboration committee in relation to scistg and outside contractors engaged by us in abienewith the agreement. During the ye
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, Merck accouatepproximately 30% and 68%, respectively, of @ursolidated revenue.

In addition, some of our sponsored resedic@nse and/or collaborative arrangements coritairange of Control" or other protective
provisions that may be triggered by our pendinggeewith VGX Pharmaceuticals, announced July 7 82#@ompleted, which may enable
pre-mature termination of such arrangements omaike may impact the status of such arrangementhiéopost-merger company. For
example, our agreement with Wyeth requires thapreeide Wyeth with certain notifications of a pemgliqualifying transaction and enables
Wyeth to terminate our arrangement if such notiog @ertain other written assurances regarding tioeify and commitment to the
arrangement are not timely provided to Wyeth byGeenpany and/or the other Change of Control trafwaparty prior to consummation of
such transaction. Similarly, our arrangement witbrék requires certain notice of a Change of Cortesisaction and also enables termination
under limited circumstances as a result. Othengements require that we seek and obtain priotemritonsent from the collaborative party
ahead of the consummation of any Change of Cotransaction. Although we intend to comply with apgble notice and other documenta
requirements pursuant to such "Change of ContmalVipions in these and other collaborative arrargy@s) we cannot assure you that, to the
extent such rights exist, our partners will notiksieterminate or alter their arrangements witlinulation to the closing of the proposed
merger transaction.

Whether or not we complete the proposedyerewve may not be able to maintain our existimgregements, enter into new arrangements
or negotiate current or new arrangements on adoleptarms, if at all. Some of our collaborativetpars may also be researching competing
technologies independently from us to treat thealies targeted by our collaborative programs.
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WE MAY BE SUBJECT TO STOCKHOLDER LITIGATION, WHICH WOULD HARM OUR BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL
CONDITION.

We may have actions brought against ugdmkhkolders relating to our proposed merger withXyy@ast transactions, changes in our stock
price or other matters. Any such actions could gise to substantial damages, and thereby havderialaadverse effect on our consolidated
financial position, liquidity, or results of opeiats. Even if an action is not resolved againsthes uncertainty and expense associated with
stockholder actions could harm our business, firueondition and reputation. Litigation can be thpgime-consuming and disruptive to
business operations. The defense of lawsuits als@dresult in diversion of our management's time attention away from business
operations, which could harm our business.

WE RELY HEAVILY ON OUR PATENTS AND PROPRIETARY RIGH TS TO ATTRACT PARTNERSHIPS AND MAINTAIN
MARKET POSITION.

The strength of our patent portfolio isieaportant factor that will influence our succesatédnts give the patent holder the right to prevent
others from using its patented technology. If soneeinfringes upon the patented material of a pdietder, the patent holder has the right to
initiate legal proceedings against that persorrdtegt its patented material. These proceedingsetier, can be lengthy and costly. We perf
an ongoing review of our patent portfolio to confithat our key technologies are adequately prafetteve determine that any of our patents
require either additional disclosures or revisitmexisting information, we may ask that such ptére reexamined or reissued, as applicable,
by the United States Patent and Trademark Office.

The patenting process, enforcement of @atents, and defense against claims of infringeeraee inherently risky. Because we rely
heavily on patent protection, we face the followsignificant risks:

Possibility of Inadequate Patent ProtectfonProduct. The United States Patent and Trademark Offidereign patent offices may r
grant patents of meaningful scope based on thécafiphs we have already filed and those we interfile. If we do not have patents that
adequately protect our human-use equipment anddtidis for its use, then we will not be competitiv

Potential That Important Patents Will Balded Invalid. Some of the issued patents we now own or leemay be determined to be
invalid. If we have to defend the validity of anfyaur patents, the costs of such defense couldibstantial, and there is no guarantee of a
successful outcome. In the event an important pagéeted to our drug delivery technology is fouade invalid, we may lose competitive
position and may not be able to receive royaltiepfoducts covered in part or whole by that patewter license agreements.

Danger of Being Charged With InfringementAlthough we are not currently aware of any igarintending to pursue infringement cla
against us, there is the possibility that we mayaipatented technology owned by another perscdiorine charged with infringement.
Defending or indemnifying a third party againstage of infringement can involve lengthy and gokfjal actions, and there can be no
guarantee of a successful outcome. Biotechnologypemies comparable to us in size and financialtjposhave discontinued business after
losing infringement battles. If we or our partnesere prevented from using or selling our humanagépment, then our business would be
materially adversely affected.

Freedom to Operate IssuesWe are aware that patents related to eledyieakisted drug delivery have been granted to patent
applications have been filed by our potential cotitges. \We or our partners have received licensam® some of these patents, and will
consider receiving additional licenses in the fatiNevertheless, the competitive nature of oudfalbusiness and the fact that
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others have sought patent protection for technebgimilar to ours make these potential issuesfiignt.

In addition to patents, we also rely omlé&rgecrets and proprietary know-how. We try toguthis information with appropriate
confidentiality and inventions agreements with employees, scientific advisors, consultants, aridioorators. We cannot be sure that these
agreements will not be breached, that we will He &bprotect ourselves if they are breached, ar dloir trade secrets will not otherwise
become known or be independently discovered by etitops. If any of these events occur, then we thegotential of losing control over
valuable company information, which could negatnhaffect our competitive position.

IF WE ARE NOT SUCCESSFUL IN DEVELOPING OUR CURRENT PRODUCTS, OUR BUSINESS MODEL MAY CHANGE AS
OUR PRIORITIES AND OPPORTUNITIES CHANGE AND OUR BUS INESS MAY NEVER DEVELOP TO BE PROFITABLE OR
SUSTAINABLE.

There are many products and programs gehgpromising to us which we could pursue. Howewéh limited resources, we may decide
to change priorities and shift programs away frbose that we have been pursuing for the purposgmbiting our core technology of
electroporation. The choices we make will be depabdpon numerous contemporaneous factors, somvhiofi we cannot predict. We cannot
be sure that our business model, as it currenibterr as it may evolve, will enable us to becqraditable or to sustain operations.

SERIOUS AND UNEXPECTED SIDE EFFECTS ATTRIBUTABLE TO GENE THERAPY MAY RESULT IN GOVERNMENTAL
AUTHORITIES IMPOSING ADDITIONAL REGULATORY REQUIREM  ENTS OR A NEGATIVE PUBLIC PERCEPTION OF
OUR PRODUCTS.

The gene therapy or DNA vaccine productiidetes under development could be broadly destisegene therapies. A number of
clinical trials are being conducted by other pharendical companies involving gene therapy, inclgdiompounds similar to or competitive
with, our product candidates. The announcementieése results from these clinical trials, suckex®ous unwanted and unexpected side
effects attributable to treatment, or any respdnysthe FDA to such clinical trials, may impede titegress of our clinical trials, delay or
prevent us from obtaining regulatory approval, egatively influence public perception of our protdcandidates, which could harm our
business and results of operations and reduceailie of our stock.

The U.S. Senate has held hearings congethnadequacy of regulatory oversight of geneagweclinical trials, as well as the adequac
research subject education and protection in @lmesearch in general, and to determine whettditiadal legislation is required to protect
volunteers and patients who participate in suatiadi trials. The Recombinant DNA Advisory Commétt®r RAC, which acts as an advisory
body to the National Institutes of Health, has exjel its public role in evaluating important pulditd ethical issues in gene therapy clinical
trials. Implementation of any additional review aegorting procedures or other additional reguiatoeasures could increase the costs of or
prolong our product development efforts or clinitélls.

As of December 31, 2008, to our knowledgere have not been any serious adverse eventy igeme therapy clinical trials in which our
technology was used. In the future, if one or &esasf serious adverse events were to occur darigene therapy clinical trial in which our
technology was used, we would report all such essenthe FDA and other regulatory agencies as redy law. Such serious adverse events,
whether treatment-related or not, could resultdgative public perception of our treatments andiregadditional regulatory review or other
measures, which could increase the cost of or pgotiur gene therapy clinical trials or require abalt our clinical trials altogether.

The commercial success of our productsagpend in part on public acceptance of the ugeé therapy products or gene-induced
products, which are a new type of disease treatfoeihe
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prevention or treatment of human diseases. Puttitades may be influenced by claims that geneayeiproducts or genieduced products a
unsafe, and these treatment methodologies mayamotige acceptance of the public or the medicalroanity. Negative public reaction to ge
therapy products or gene-induced products coulnralsult in greater government regulation andtstriclinical trial oversight.

WE HAVE THE POTENTIAL FOR PRODUCT LIABILITY ISSUES WITH HUMAN-USE EQUIPMENT.

The testing, marketing and sale of humampisducts expose us to significant and unpredietadks of equipment product liability
claims. These claims may arise from patients, @ihirial volunteers, consumers, physicians, hatpitcompanies, institutions, researchers or
others using, selling, or buying our equipment.dRri liability risks are inherent in our businessl avill exist even after the products are
approved for sale. If and when our human-use egempris commercialized, we run the risk that usenfmuse) of the equipment will result in
personal injury. The chance of such an occurreriténarease after a product type is on the market.

We have obtained liability insurance in gection with our ongoing business and products vemdhay purchase additional policies if s
policies are determined by management to be negessawever, our existing insurance and the insceane purchase may not provide
adequate coverage in the event a claim is madevarmday be required to pay claims directly. If wd bave to make payment against a claim,
it would impact our financial ability to performetresearch, development, and sales activitiesubdtave planned.

If and when our human-use equipment is cercialized, there is always the risk of productedés. Product defects can lead to loss of
future sales, decrease in market acceptance, daimage brand or reputation, product returns andavey costs, and even product withdrawal
from the market. These events can occur whethetdfext resides in a component we purchased fririrchparty or whether it was due to our
design and/or manufacturer. We expect that oussajeeements will contain provisions designedntit lour exposure to product liability
claims. However, we do not know whether these &tions will be enforceable in the countries in vihibe sale is made. Any product liability
or other claim brought against us, if successfdl afnsufficient magnitude, could negatively impaat financial performance.

WE CANNOT BE CERTAIN THAT WE WILL BE ABLE TO MANUFA CTURE OUR HUMAN-USE EQUIPMENT IN SUFFICIENT
VOLUMES AT COMMERCIALLY REASONABLE COSTS.

Our manufacturing facilities for human-yseducts will be subject to quality systems redgata, international quality standards and other
regulatory requirements, including pre-approvapetion for our human-use equipment and period#t-ppproval inspections for all human-
use products. While we have undergone and pasgedlity systems audit from an international bodg, vave never undergone a quality
systems inspection by the FDA. We may not be abfgass an FDA inspection when and if it occursulf facilities are found not to be
compliant with FDA standards in sufficient timejgerto a launch of our product in the United Stathen it will result in a delay or termination
of our ability to produce our human-use equipmardur facility. Any delay in production will havereegative effect on our business. While
there are no target dates set forth for launchuofoooducts in the United States, we plan on laimgchach product once we successfully
perform a Phase lll clinical study involving a peutar use of our technology, obtain the requisitgulatory approval, and engage a partner
who has the financial resources and marketing é¢gpiacbring our products to market.

Our products must be manufactured in siefficcommercial quantities, in compliance with regory requirements, and at an acceptable
cost to be attractive to purchasers. We rely oml thi

39




Table of Contents

parties to manufacture and assemble most aspeots efjuipment, and thus cannot directly contreldhality, timing or quantities of
equipment manufactured or assembled at any given ti

Disruption of the manufacture of our proguéor whatever reason, could delay or interruptability to manufacture or deliver our
products to customers in a timely basis. This wdiddexpected to affect revenue and may affectang-term reputation, as well. In the event
we provide product of inferior quality, we run thigk of product liability claims and warranty okditions, which will negatively affect our
financial performance.

THERE IS A POSSIBILITY THAT OUR TECHNOLOGY WILL BEC OME OBSOLETE OR LOSE ITS COMPETITIVE
ADVANTAGE.

The vaccine development and delivery bissing very competitive, fast moving and intense, expected to be increasingly so in the
future. Other companies and research institutioeglaveloping drug delivery systems that, if natikir in type to our systems, are designed to
address the same patient or subject populatiorrefdre, we cannot promise that our products wilthebest, the safest, the first to market, or
the most economical to manufacture and use. If aitops' products are better than ours, for whatexason, then we could become less
profitable from product sales and our products @¢dnlcome obsolete.

There are many reasons why a competitohttig more successful than us, including:

Financial Resources. Some competitors have greater financial regsuand can afford more technical and developmeathhcks than
we can.

Greater Experience. Some competitors have been in the biomedicsihless longer than we have. They have greater iexgerthan us
in critical areas like clinical testing, obtaininggulatory approval and sales and marketing. Txjiggence or their name recognition may give
them a competitive advantage over us. In certa@rmational markets, local companies may be givefepential treatment by local physicians
and hospitals.

Superior Patent Position. Some competitors may have better patent pioteover their technology than we have or will haverder tc
protect our technology. If we cannot use our patémprevent others from copying our technologgereloping similar technology, or if we
cannot obtain a critical license to another's pgateat we need to manufacture and use our equiprtreatt we would expect our competitive
position to weaken.

Faster to Market. Some companies with competitive technologieg mave through stages of development, approvalnaaudeting
faster than us. If a competitor receives FDA apaltefore us, then it will be authorized to sellproducts before we can sell ours. Becaus
first company "to market" often has a significadvantage over others, a second place position cesldt in less than anticipated sales.

Reimbursement Allowed.In the U.S., third party payers, such as Madicmay reimburse physicians and hospitals for aitqgs'
products but not for our own human-use productss Would significantly affect our ability to sello human-use products in the U.S. and
would have a negative impact on revenue and ounéss as a whole. Outside of the U.S., reimbursearahfunding policies vary widely.

IF WE LOSE KEY PERSONNEL OR ARE UNABLE TO ATTRACT A ND RETAIN ADDITIONAL, HIGHLY SKILLED
PERSONNEL REQUIRED TO DEVELOP OUR PRODUCTS OR OBTAIN NEW COLLABORATIONS, OUR BUSINESS MAY
SUFFER.

We depend, to a significant extent, ondfferts of our key employees, including senior ngemaent and senior scientific, clinical,
regulatory and other personnel. The developmentof
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therapeutic products requires expertise from a reurnbdifferent disciplines, some of which is natlely available. We depend upon our
scientific staff to discover new product candidated to develop and conduct pre-clinical studietho$e new potential products. Our clinical
and regulatory staff is responsible for the desigd execution of clinical trials in accordance WHDA requirements and for the advancement
of our product candidates toward FDA approval. @anufacturing staff is responsible for designind aanducting our manufacturing
processes in accordance with the FDA's Qualitye3gdRegulations. The quality and reputation of aigrttific, clinical, regulatory and
manufacturing staff, especially the senior staff] their success in performing their responsibtitiare significant factors in attracting poter
funding sources and collaborators. In addition, ©bief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offiand other executive officers are invol
in a broad range of critical activities, includipgoviding strategic and operational guidance. T®s lof these individuals, or our inability to
retain or recruit other key management and scientfinical, regulatory, manufacturing and othergpnnel, may delay or prevent us from
achieving our business objectives. We face intensepetition for personnel from other companiesyersities, public and private research
institutions, government entities and other orgatiins.

WE MAY NOT MEET ENVIRONMENTAL GUIDELINES AND AS AR ESULT COULD BE SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND CRIMINAL
PENALTIES.

Like all companies in our industry, we atdject to a variety of governmental regulationatieg to the use, storage, discharge and
disposal of hazardous substances. Our safety puoeedbr handling, storage and disposal of suclerizgds are designed to comply with
applicable laws and regulations. While we belieweare currently in compliance with all material bggble environmental regulations, if we
are found to not comply with environmental regulas, or if we are involved with contamination ojuity from these materials, then we may
subject to civil and criminal penalties. This woblalve a negative impact on our reputation and Giesnand could result in a slowdown or €
complete cessation of our business.

CHANGES IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES MAY AFFECT OUR FU TURE OPERATING RESULTS.

In January 2005, we acquired Inovio AS,avigian company. During the years ended Decemhe2®8 and 2007, Inovio AS
contributed approximately $135,000 and $159,008utorevenue, respectively, which amounted to apprately 6% and 3% of our total
revenue. Inovio AS conducts its operations prirgdnilforeign currencies, including the Euro, NoniagKroner and Swedish Krona. In
September 2006, we established Inovio Asia Pte, atdompany incorporated in the Republic of Simgepwhich conducts its operations
primarily in Singaporean dollars. Fluctuation ie thalues of these foreign currencies relative éoUtss. dollar will affect our financial results
which are reported in U.S. dollars and will caus8.Ulollar translation of such currencies to vaoyf one period to another. We cannot pre
the scope of any fluctuations in the values oféheseign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar the effect of exchange rate fluctuations upon
our future operating results.

OUR RESTRUCTURING OF OUR NORWEIGIAN SUBSIDIARY, INO VIO AS, MAY NOT REALIZE THE EFFICIENCIES
ANTICIPATED AND COULD RESULT IN ADDITIONAL, UNANTIC IPATED LIABILITIES, WHICH WOULD HAVE A
NEGATIVE EFFECT ON OUR FINANCIAL CONDITION.

On December 31, 2007, our wholly-owned Negign subsidiary Inovio AS transferred certain pasad other intellectual property rights
("IPR™) to our wholly owned U.S. subsidiary Genaiics, Inc. The value assigned to these rights via® Sillion, which was determined by
and was the responsibility of management of Inowieo considered in part preliminary work perfornigda valuation specialist in Norway.
All Norwegian tax gains associated with this trangff the patents and
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IPR was offset by prior year tax loss carry forvearBubsequent to year-end, Inovio changed the w&mevio AS to Inovio Tec AS.
Simultaneously, we incorporated a new Norwegianliyhawned subsidiary under the name Inovio AS, forghose of organizing a resea
effort directed towards the development of speaéncer vaccine candidates. In January 2008, gdl@rees, employee agreements, lease
agreements and fixed assets were transferred fiomd Tec AS to Inovio AS, and the parties inteaenter into a licensing agreement
governing use of future IPR shortly. Further, althlo we and our board of directors retain ultimatetl| over and responsibility for Inovio
AS, Inovio AS now has a distinct board of directamensisting of two members of our board of direst@nd two Norwegian personnel,
intended to allow more efficient balancing of Ul&jal and regulatory concerns with Norwegian legal regulatory concerns in the course of
decision-making.

This restructuring of our Norwegian opevas is intended to better focus the research amelalgment efforts conducted in Norway on
our strategic programs and easing access to pyidaveloped IPR for Inovio and its other subsidm We expect funding for this program
to be about $5.0 million over the next several geAithough designed to be tax-neutral to the partive cannot assure you that the tax
authorities in Norway or the U.S. will agree wiltetvaluation of the transferred assets or the pges through which the transfers were m.
If such disagreements were to arise, we may faaatigipated tax liabilities in Norway or the U.Sising from the asset transfer. Further, as
there will be an ongoing licensing relationshipvietn the parties post-transfer, it is possible $hah arrangements will receive heightened
scrutiny for potential transfer pricing issues, @fhtould result in additional liability to us. Welleve that the new Inovio AS is now
appropriately organized and staffed, and has thegsary resources and commitments for future reesuo conduct its research and
development efforts in support of our businesgea However, we cannot assure readers that IisSiwvill not require further staff or
financing beyond these initial commitments, or thatwill be able to provide such resources if aftmwrequested. To the extent Inovio AS or
we face additional tax or transfer pricing issums, operating results and overall financial comditmay be adversely affected. In particular, if
we are unable to provide additional support fovindAS when requested, Inovio AS may not be ableetxh previously specified targets and
milestones in a timely manner, undermining its ficial stability and the commercial potential f& jiirostate cancer vaccine program.

OUR FACILITIES ARE LOCATED NEAR KNOWN EARTHQUAKE FA ULT ANDWILDFIRE ZONES, AND THE OCCURRENCE
OF AN EARTHQUAKE, SIGNIFICANT WILDFIRE, OR OTHER CA TASTROPHIC DISASTER COULD CAUSE DAMAGE TO
OUR FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT.

Our facilities are located near known eguitike fault zones and areas prone to severe séaghtiies and are vulnerable to damage fi
earthquakes and wildfires. We are also vulnerabbatmage from other types of disasters, includirg floods, power loss, communications
failures and similar events. If any disaster weredcur, our ability to operate our business atfacitities would be seriously impaired. In
addition, the unique nature of our research a@witould cause significant delays in our progrant make it difficult for us to recover from a
disaster. The insurance we maintain may not bewsdedo cover our losses resulting from disasteleer business interruptions.
Accordingly, an earthquake, wildfire or other disssould materially and adversely harm our abiiityonduct business.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We own no real property and have no plarectjuire any real property in the future. On Jan@8, 2005, we moved into new
headquarters of 22,867 square feet at 11494 Sorxé&iley Road in San Diego, California. This failprovides adequate space for our current
research, manufacturing, and administrative opmmatiThis lease runs through February 28, 2010.afheal rent for this leased property is
$433,901 in the first two years and $452,767 irr yegee and four of
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the original lease term. The annual rent for thté find final year of the original lease term i884£207. At the end of the original lease term
have the option of renewing this lease for an dali fiveyear lease term at an annual rate equal to thenfaiket rental value of the propet
as defined in the lease agreement.

In connection with this lease, we issuagharant to purchase 50,000 shares of our commak sito$5.00 per share to the landlord of this
leased facility in December 2004. This warrant wasediately exercisable and expires five years ftbendate of issuance. This warrant was
valued on the date of issuance using the Black{8staricing model. The fair value of this warra$it20,913, is being recognized ratably over
the five-year term of the lease as rent expensef&ecember 31, 2008, this warrant had not beencésed.

In January 2008, we entered into a newifiadéase in Oslo, Norway to support our reseantl development activities conducted thro
our subsidiary Inovio AS. The term of the leastoisthree years and may be terminated with threeth®onotice. Monthly rent is
approximately $3,000 per month.

We believe our current facilities will bdexjuate to meet our operating needs for the foakdeéuture. Should we need additional space,
we believe we will be able to secure additionakgpat commercially reasonable rates.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Pyrce v. Inovio Biomedical Corporation, GenetronBismedical Corporation, Genetronics, Inc., Ino¥i§, DOES 1 to 50Superior
Court of California, County of San Diego, Case R6-2007-000758899-CU-BC-CTL (Hon. Ronald L. Styfh)e plaintiff, a former consultant
to Inovio AS, commenced this civil lawsuit agaitte® Company and various subsidiaries in state @yu8eptember 28, 2007.

The plaintiff seeks damages of approxinya$180,000 he alleges to be due him under a congdgreement he had with Inovio AS.
Plaintiff further alleges the Company to be liatdénim by virtue of its acquisition of Inovio AS @mesulting from a license executed with
Wyeth Pharmaceuticals Inc.

Plaintiff's original counsel withdrew frotine case, and plaintiff was proceedprg seuntil obtaining a new attorney who appeared in
September of 2008 and filed a nine-count amendetptzint. The Court dismissed three of Plaintiftsiots and Plaintiff thereafter filed a nine-
count second amended complaint by which Plaingi#fks approximately $780,000 in damages. The pialiats not yet served Inovio AS. The
Company disputes the allegations, believes thewah®ut merit and intends to vigorously defendiagathem.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of sgchiolders during the fourth quarter of fiscal0B0
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PART I

ITEM5. MARKET FOR COMPANY'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
REPURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Informatior

Our common stock is listed, and principathded, on the NYSE Amex, a national securitieharge, under the symbol "INO." The
following table sets forth the quarterly high and/per share closing prices of our common stocktfertwo most recent fiscal years.

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007
Period: High Low High Low
First Quarte $1.45 $0.8: $3.4¢ $2.87
Second Quarte $1.3C $0.7¢ $4.17 $2.2C
Third Quartel $1.15 $0.6C $2.9¢ $1.1¢
Fourth Quarte $0.8C $0.1€ $1.51 $0.8¢

As of March 16, 2009, we had approximafds common stockholders of record. This figure dussnclude beneficial owners who hold
shares in nominee name. The closing price per sifaver common stock on March 16, 2009 was $0.8@eported on the NYSE Amex.

Dividends

The payment of any dividends on our commstock is within the discretion of our board of di@rs. However, we may not pay dividends
on our common stock without the consent of holdérs majority of each Series of our outstandingdtred Stock. We have not paid cash
dividends on our common stock and the board oftrs does not expect to declare cash dividende@nommon stock in the foreseeable
future.

The holders of our Series A and B PrefeBaatk were entitled to receive an annual dividanthe rate of 6%, payable quarterly, through
September 30, 2006. These dividends were payalgiasim unless the closing price of our common sHardble 20 trading days immediately
preceding the dividend payment date was equal ¢peater than the conversion price of such shareghich event we may have elected to
the dividends to the holders in common stock. Thegee no dividends paid to the former holders af®eries A and B Preferred Stock during
the years ended December 31, 2008 or 2007. Wedpadknds to the holders of our Series A and B &refl Stock through the issuance of
2,871 shares of our common stock valued at $8,860racash of $15,000 during the year ended Dece8ihe2006. As of December 31, 2008
and 2007 there were no shares of Series A or B2Reef Stock outstanding.

The holders of our Series C Preferred Stoeie entitled to receive an annual dividend atrétte of 6%, payable quarterly, through
May 20, 2007. These dividends were payable in casss the closing price of our common shareshi®r20 trading days immediately
preceding the dividend payment date was equal ¢peater than the conversion price of such shareghich event we may have elected to
the dividends to the holders in common stock. Thegee no dividends paid to the holders of our Se@dPreferred Stock during the year en
December 31, 2008. During the year ended Decenthet(®7, we paid dividends to the holders of ouieSeC Preferred Stock in cash of
$23,000. During the year ended December 31, 208Gaid dividends to the holders of our Series GePred Stock in cash of $117,000 and
accrued dividends of $15,000 which were conveméal common shares and warrants as part of a ppplatement we completed in October
2006. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, there Weshares of Series C Preferred Stock outstanding.
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securi

There were no sales of unregistered séesidiuring the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.
Repurchase

We did not repurchase any of our equityusées during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.
Equity Compensation Plai

Our equity compensation plan informatioprigvided as set forth in Part I, tem 11 herein.

Performance Grapl

The graph below matches Inovio Biomedicatgoration's cumulative 5-year total shareholdarrreon common stock with the
cumulative total returns of the AMEX Composite irdad the S & P SuperCap Biotechnology index. Tiaplg assumes that the value of the
investment in our common stock and in each of ldexes (including reinvestment of dividends) waB&n December 31, 2003 and tracks it

through December 31, 2008.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among Inovio Biomedical Corporation, The AMEX Congite Index

And The S & P SuperCap Biotechnology Index

E GRAPHIC

*$100 invested on 12/31/03 in stock & index-incluglireinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.

Copyright © 2009 S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hbmpanies Inc. All rights reserved.

12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06 12/07 12/08
Inovio Biomedical Corporation 100.0( 78.8( 45.4( 65.8( 18.4(C 10.4C
AMEX Composite 100.0¢ 124.1: 155.0C 184.3( 217.5: 132.7:
S & P SuperCap Biotechnology Inde>  100.0C 114.0¢ 138.97 139.4: 130.9¢ 142.4¢




The stock price performance included in this grégphot necessarily indicative of future stock pregformance.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our selectedisolidated financial data for the periods intiidaderived from consolidated financial
statements prepared in accordance with U.S. géneaepted accounting principles.

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Operations Data
License fee and milestone payme $ 791,40. $ 2,793,470 $ 1,337,100 $ 2,563,28 $ 214,35:
Revenue under collaborative research & developmeahgemen 1,077,96 1,854,30: 962,20 1,492,14! 945,59
Grants & miscellaneous reven 228,26 159,94 1,168,861 1,411,82! 7,157
Total revenus 2,097,63. 4,807,72! 3,468,17 5,467,25: 1,167,09!
Loss from continuing operatiol (13,658,46) (15,898,42) (13,346,19) (15,506,97) (11,263,14)
Gain on disposal of asse — — — — 290,20¢
Interest & other incom 692,84. 4,693,97 1,002,25; 210,11¢ 247,55}
Net loss (12,965,62) (11,204,44) (12,343,94) (15,296,85) (10,972,93)
Imputed dividends common sto — — — (8,329,11) —
Imputed & declared dividends preferred st — (23,339 (2,005,66) (2,736,65i) (732,409
Net loss attributable to common stockholc $ (12,965,62) $ (11,227,77) $ (14,349,60) $ (26,362,62) $ (11,705,33)
Per common sha—basic & diluted:
Net loss $ 0.30 $ 0.2 $ 040 $ 0.81) $ (0.62)
Imputed dividends common sto — — — (0.49) —
Imputed & declared dividends preferred st — — (0.0€) (0.19 (0.09)
Net loss attributable to common stockholc $ 0.30 $ 0.27) $ (0.46) $ 139 $ (0.6€)
Balance Sheet Dat:
Cash and equivalen $ 14,11528 $ 10,250,92 $ 8,321,600 $ 17,166,566 $ 17,889,79
Shor-term investment — 16,999,60 14,700,00 — —
Long-term investment 9,169,47 — — — —
Total asset 38,987,02 39,775,02 35,949,61 28,978,95 20,951,50
Current liabilities 14,709,58 3,354,49' 6,859,72. 4,002,28 5,401,99:
Accumulated defici (152,812,94) (139,847,32) (128,619,54) (114,269,94) (87,907,32)
Total stockholders equit 19,106,14 31,034,75 18,151,86 23,470,74 15,549,51

ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF F INANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

THIS ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K CONTAINS FORWARDKING STATEMENTS THAT INVOLVE RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES. SUCH STATEMENTS INCLUDE, BUT ARE NI®ITTED TO, STATEMENTS CONTAINING THE WORDS "BMHEE,"
"ANTICIPATES," "EXPECTS," "ESTIMATES" AND WORDSSIHAILAR MEANING. OUR ACTUAL RESULTS COULD DIFFER
MATERIALLY FROM ANY FORWAF-LOOKING STATEMENTS, WHICH REFLECT MANAGEMENT'SNDENS ONLY AS OF THE
DATE OF THIS REPORT, AS A RESULT OF SUCH RISKSWNCERTAINTIES. WE UNDERTAKE NO OBLIGATION TO REVO&
PUBLICLY RELEASE THE RESULTS OF ANY REVISIONS TESEHFORWAR-LOOKING STATEMENTS. FACTORS THAT COULD
CAUSE OR CONTRIBUTE TO SUCH DIFFERENCES INCLUDET BRE NOT LIMITED TO, THOSE FOUND IN THIS ANNUALFRIRT
ON FORM 10-K IN PART I, ITEM 1A "RISK FACTORS;"TNIS PART II, ITEM 7, "MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS;" ANDDITIONAL FACTORS DISCUSSED ELSEWHERE IN THIS WAIN
REPORT AND IN OTHER DOCUMENTS WE FILE FROM TIMETIRE WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSI
INCLUDING OUR QUARTERLY REPORTS ON FORI-Q. READERS ARE CAUTIONED NOT TO PLACE UNDUE REOBMN ANY
FORWARI-LOOKING STATEMENTS.
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The following discussion should be read in conjiomctvith the consolidated financial statements antks thereto appearing elsewhere
in this Form 10-K. For a more comprehensive desmipof our business, see Part I. Item 1. Business.

Overview

Inovio Biomedical Corporation, or "Inovia'Delaware corporation, organized in 2001, ismaSiagobased biomedical company focu:
on the development of next-generation vaccinesaegnt or treat cancers and chronic infectiousadiss. Such vaccines, which could
potentially protect millions of people from deldliton or death from diseases without adequatentesats, may represent multi-billion dollar
market opportunities. Historically, successful depenent of this new generation of vaccines—DNA \aes—has been hindered by the lack
of safe, efficient and cost effective DNA delivenethods capable of enabling their potency. Howdwerio's electroporation-based DNA
delivery technology has shown potential in preiclhand clinical studies to play a pivotal rolefaeilitating delivery and enhancing the
potency of preventive and therapeutic vaccines.

Inovio is a leader in developing DNA deliyesolutions based on electroporation, which uses,lcontrolled electrical pulses to create
temporary pores in cell membranes and enable iseteeellular uptake of a useful biopharmaceut@ake the DNA vaccine enters a cell, it
can then "express" the proteins it was encodedadyze. These proteins, or antigens, are designkd tniguely associated with a targeted
cancer or infectious disease, and may then stimalahore powerful immune response if the immuneegy&ncounters the targeted diseast
subsequent time.

Inovio's business strategy to realize véduehe company and its stockholders is as foltows

First, Inovio has leveraged its patentetht®logies through licensing and collaborationshsas its licensing arrangements with
Merck & Co., Inc., or "Merck," Wyeth Pharmaceutigabr "Wyeth" and Vical Inc., or "Vical," among ethresearch-driven biopharmaceutical
companies as well as government and non-governagamicies. Inovio is licensing the use of its etgmbration-based DNA delivery systems
for partners to use in conjunction with their priepary DNA vaccines or DNAsased immunotherapies. These arrangements prawig@|with
some combination of upfront payments, developmees fmilestone payments, royalties and a suppbeaggnt. These collaborators either
have active programs that are pursuing developofgmoprietary agents or researching the use ofi®technology or are currently
evaluating such programs.

Second, Inovio is pursuing proprietary vaeaevelopment or co-development, resulting in vfow partial ownership in promising
vaccines to prevent or treat cancers and chroféctious diseases.

Inovio's technology is protected by an agiee patent portfolio covering in vivo electropiioa. Inovio's patent portfolio encompasses a
range of apparatuses, methodologies, conditiortsapplications including oncology, gene delivergseular, transdermal as well as ex vivo
electroporation.

On July 7, 2008, Inovio and VGX Pharmaasls, Inc. ("VGX"), a privately-held developer oNB vaccines, executed a definitive
merger agreement providing for the issuance ofimekiares in exchange for all of the outstandirayisges of VGX and the merger of an
acquisition subsidiary of Inovio with VGX (the "Mger"). Inovio and VGX subsequently negotiated ariaded and restated merger agreer
(the "Amended Agreement"), which the parties exedutn December 5, 2008. Completion of the Mergdeuthe Amended Agreement
remains subject to registration with the SEC ofltievio securities to be issued in the Merger, ifgoaf approval from both companies'
stockholders, and other customary closing condition

As of December 31, 2008, we had an accuediideficit of $152.8 million. We expect to continto incur substantial operating losses in
the future due to our commitment to our researchdmvelopment programs, the funding of preclingtabies, clinical trials and regulatory
activities and the costs of general and adminisgatctivities.
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Critical Accounting Policies

The SEC defines critical accounting pokcés those that are, in management's view, impgddahe portrayal of our financial condition
and results of operations and require managenjadgsnent. Our discussion and analysis of our firgreondition and results of operations is
based on our audited consolidated financial statésnavhich have been prepared in accordance wih §enerally accepted accounting
principles ("U.S. GAAP"). The preparation of thésencial statements requires us to make estinatdgudgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and exgeMe base our estimates on experience and orugaagsumptions that we believe are
reasonable under the circumstances, the resulthioh form the basis for making judgments aboutdheying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sourcesu® results may differ from those estimates. @iiical accounting policies include:

Revenue Recognitio

Revenue is recognized in accordance witlff 8iccounting Bulletin ("SAB") No. 104Revenue Recognition in Financial Statemesuts]
EITF Issue 00-21Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables

License fees are comprised of initial fard milestone payments derived from collaboraiivenising arrangements. We continue to
recognize non-refundable milestone payments up@athievement of specified milestones upon whichhae earned the milestone payment,
provided the milestone payment is substantive toneaand the achievement of the milestone waseastanably assured at the inception of the
agreement. We defer payments for milestone evehiishvare reasonably assured and recognize thetvyrateer the minimum remaining
period of our performance obligations. Paymentsiidestones which are not reasonably assured eaett as the culmination of a separate
earnings process and are recognized as revenuethdenilestones are achieved.

We have adopted a strategy of co-developirigensing our gene delivery technology for sfiegenes or specific medical indications.
Accordingly, we have entered into collaborativeesgsh and development agreements and have redaiveidg for pre-clinical research and
clinical trials. Payments under these agreemerighware non-refundable, are recorded as reventheaslated research expenditures are
incurred pursuant to the terms of the agreemertpeaovided collectibility is reasonably assured.

We receive non-refundable grants underalvia government programs. Government grants tosvemdrent expenditures are recorded as
revenue when there is reasonable assurance thzaweecomplied with all conditions necessary to ikerthe grants, collectibility is reasonably
assured, and as the expenditures are incurred.

Research and development expenseSince our inception, virtually all of our adties have consisted of research and development
efforts related to developing our electroporatiechinologies. Research and development expensestaminsxpenses incurred in performing
research and development activities including g&daand benefits, facilities and other overheadessps, clinical trials, contract services and
other outside expenses. Research and developmaeiges are charged to operations as they areaadcWite review and accrue clinical trials
expense based on work performed, which relies tmates of total costs incurred based on patierdglienent, completion of studies and other
events.

Valuation of Goodwill and Intangible AssetsOur business acquisitions typically result @odwill and other intangible assets, and the
recorded values of those assets may become impaitkd future. Acquired intangible assets aré Iséiing developed for the future economic
viability contemplated at the time of acquisitiddle are concurrently conducting Phase | and preedirtrials using the
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acquired intangibles, and we have entered int@itesignificant licensing agreements for use oé¢hacquired intangibles.

We record patents at cost and amortizeethests using the straight-line method over theeetgal useful lives of the patents or 17 years,
whichever is less. Patent cost consists of theideretion paid for patents and related legal cdstense costs are recorded based on the fair
value of consideration paid and amortized usingsthaght-line method over the shorter of the expéaseful life of the underlying patents or
the term of the related license agreement. As akeber 31, 2008, our goodwill and intangible assegalting from acquisition costs of Ino\
AS, and additional intangibles including patentd Acense costs, net of accumulated amortizatima)ed $9.8 million.

The determination of the value of suchngible assets requires management to make estimradesssumptions that affect our
consolidated financial statements. We assess patenpairments to intangible assets when theevidence that events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amousinodsset may not be recovered. Our judgments riegaite existence of impairment
indicators and future cash flows related to inthlegassets are based on operational performarmér afcquired businesses, market conditions
and other factors. If impairment is indicated, wduce the carrying value of the intangible asséitovalue. While our current and historical
operating and cash flow losses are potential indisaof impairment, we believe the future cash 8dw be received from our intangible assets
will exceed the intangible assets' carrying vahrel accordingly, we have not recognized any impaitnosses through December 31, 2008.

Although there are inherent uncertaintiethis assessment process, the estimates and a&msnpe use are consistent with our internal
planning. If these estimates or their related aggioms change in the future, we may be requira@dord an impairment charge on all or a
portion of our goodwill and intangible assets. Rartnore, we cannot predict the occurrence of futapairment-triggering events nor the
impact such events might have on our reported asdats. Future events could cause us to conchatérhpairment indicators exist and that
goodwill or other intangible assets associated withacquired businesses are impaired. Any regpitippairment loss could have an adverse
impact on our results of operations.

Stock-based CompensationStock-based compensation cost is estimatdteajrant date based on the fair-value of the aawaddis
recognized as an expense ratably over the reqsisitéce period of the award. Determining the appate fairvalue model and calculating t
fair value of stocksased awards at the grant date requires consiggratgment, including estimating stock price vditgti expected option lifi
and forfeiture rates. We develop our estimatesaséhistorical data. If factors change and we empifferent assumptions in future periods,
the compensation expense that we record may difjaificantly from what we have recorded in thereat period. A small change in the
estimates used may have a relatively large chantfeeiestimated valuation. We use the Black-Schuliesng model to value stock option
awards. We recognize compensation expense usirgjriight-line amortization method.

Auction Rate Securities and Auction RamuBges Rights. We account for Auction Rate Securities ("ARSHder FAS 115Accounting
for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Secess, and FAS 157Fair Value MeasurementsVe account for ARS Rights in accordance
with SFAS No. 159The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fiogal Liabilities—Including an amendment to FASBt&mnent
No. 115. Our investments in ARS and our ARS Rights arendad at their estimated fair value as there iseciily no liquid market which
indicates value. We have used a discounted cashnflodel to determine the estimated fair value afiouestment in ARS and our ARS Rig|
as of December 31, 2008. The assumptions usecepapng the discounted cash flow model includeresttés for interest rates, timing and
amount of cash flows and expected holding pericth®fARS
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and ARS Rights. Changes in the estimated fair vafuke ARS and ARS Rights are reflected in thesotidated statement of operations as
"Other income, net."

Registered Common Stock Warrant&Ve account for registered common stock warreméecordance with EITF Issue 00-19,
Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments &xd to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company'si@tockon the understanding that in
compliance with applicable securities laws, thasteged warrants require the issuance of registeeedrities upon exercise and do not
sufficiently preclude an implied right to net casitlement. We classify registered warrants orctmsolidated balance sheet as a current
liability which is revalued at each balance shededubsequent to the initial issuance in Octob862nd August 2007. Determining the
appropriate fair-value model and calculating thevalue of registered warrants requires considerpliigment, including estimating stock
price volatility and expected warrant life. We dieyeour estimates based on historical data. A solehge in the estimates used may have a
relatively large change in the estimated valuatitie. use the Black-Scholes pricing model to valgeréigistered warrants. Changes in the fair
market value of the warrants are reflected in thesolidated statement of operations as "Other irgorat.”

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Information regarding recent accountingnamancements is contained in Note 3 to the CongelitlRinancial Statements, included
elsewhere in this report.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 200

The audited consolidated financial datattieryears ended December 31, 2008 and Decemb20@1.,is presented in the following table
and the results of these two periods are useckididtussion thereafter.

Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease
December 31, December 31, (Decrease)
2008 2007 $ %

Revenue:
License fee and milestone payme $ 791,40. $ 2,793,47¢ $(2,002,07) (72)%
Revenue under collaborative research and develdpanemgemen 1,077,96 1,854,30: (776,33f) (42
Grants and miscellaneous revel 228,26 159,94¢ 68,31¢ 43
Total revenue 2,097,63. 4,807,72! (2,710,09) (56)
Operating expenses
Research and developme 5,750,49. 9,625,94° (3,875,45) (40
General and administratiy 10,005,60 11,080,20  (1,074,60) (10
Total operating expense:! 15,756,09 20,706,14  (4,950,05) (29
Loss from operations (13,658,46) (15,898,42) (2,239,95) (14
Other income, ne 49,00¢ 3,421,581  (3,372,57) (99
Interest income, ne 643,83t 1,272,39 (628,56)) (49
Net loss (12,965,62) (11,204,44) (1,761,17) (16)
Imputed and declared dividends on preferred s — (23,339 23,33t 10C
Net loss attributable to common stockholder: $(12,965,62) $(11,227,77) $(1,737,84) (15)%
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Revenue

Our revenue consists of license fees, toitespayments, and amounts received from collalveregsearch and development arrangern
and grants.

Our total revenue decreased $2.7 milliob@o for the year ended December 31, 2008, as cempa fiscal 2007 due to decreases in
milestone payments and revenue under collaboregsearch and development arrangements, offseaialiy an increase in grants and other
revenue.

The $2.0 million decrease in license fa®s milestone payments for the year ended Decenthe2®8, as compared to fiscal 2007 was
primarily due to the recognition of a $2.0 milliamnlestone payment during fiscal 2007, resultingrfrihe achievement of a clinical milestone
by Merck for the filing of an investigational newud) application for the second Merck product in@an market. Under our agreement with
Merck, we may receive additional future milestoagrments linked to the successful development abdyzt. Revenue from other license
agreements remained consistent during the yeaededdcember 31, 2008 and 2007.

The $776,000 decrease in revenue undalmwthtive research and development arrangemeritggdhe year ended December 31, 2008,
as compared to the 2007 fiscal year, was due 8868,000 decrease in Wyeth billings based on ollelmarative agreement related to the
commercialization of the Elgen device, and $408,@00wer Merck collaborative research billings ithar2008 as compared to 2007. Billings
from research and development work performed putsioethe Wyeth and Merck agreements are recordedweenue as the related research
expenditures are incurred. Revenues from collab@ra¢search and development arrangements aretexpecdecline in 2009, as Wyeth
continues to evaluate internal strategic optiomsr o initiating further development of electroption-based infectious disease programs.
Under our research and collaboration agreementMéitk, we have provided the majority of the regdidevice development for use in their
clinical trials. Development activities for MerckliAbe limited until trial results are obtained.

The $68,000 increase in grant and miscetiar revenue was due to more revenue recognizedrt8. Army grants during fiscal 2008 as
compared to fiscal 2007. On September 26, 2008eweived a new contract for $933,000 from the Dipant of Defense (U.S. Army) to
continue research and development of DNA-basedinvasdelivered via our proprietary electroporasgstem. The contract, titled "Design
and Engineering of the Elgen Gene Delivery Systenstreening and Validation of Vaccine Candidafedlititary Relevance," will run
through May 2010. This project is focused on idgirtg DNA vaccine candidates with the potentiaptovide rapid, robust immunity to prot
against bio-warfare and bioterror attacks.

During the years ended December 31, 2088807, we recognized revenue of $135,000 and $089respectively, attributable to the
operations of our Norwegian subsidiary, Inovio Afich amounted to approximately 6% and 3% of otalt@venue. Inovio AS' revenue
primarily consists of amounts received from graartd licensing revenue.

Research and Development Exper

The $3.9 million decrease in research andkbpment expenses for the year ended Decemb@088, as compared to fiscal 2007, was
primarily due to a decrease in clinical trial expes associated with patient enrollment, clinic&l sosts, data collection and monitoring costs
related to the discontinued SECTA clinical trigdslditional decreases are associated with reduce@fusonsulting and advisory services,
offset by higher labor and other development cast®ciated with expansion of in-house engineeniagrasearch expertise. Research and
development expenses attributable to Inovio AS W&&1,000 and $697,000 for the years ended DeceBih@008 and 2007, respectively.

Our research and development activitidecebur efforts to advance our products throughuérious stages of product development. The
expenditures that will be necessary to execute our
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development plans are subject to numerous uncgesinvhich may affect our research and developragpénditures and capital resources.
Even if earlier results are positive, we may obtdifferent results in later stages of developmerich could impact our development
expenditures for a particular product. Althoughspend a considerable amount of time planning oueldpment activities, we may be
required to alter our plan based on new circumstsioc events. Any deviation from our plan may regjus to incur additional expenditures or
accelerate or delay the timing of our developmeensling.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses inchiggness development expenses and the amortizstintangible assets. The $1.1 million
decrease in general and administrative expensdbdgrear ended December 31, 2008, as compargtsd 2007, was primarily due to a
decrease in outside consulting and advisory sesviglated to partnering our SECTA therapy programwell as a decrease in personnel costs
and employee stock-based compensation expenset bffsncreased legal fees related to the execuafidime definitive merger agreement with
VGX as well as other corporate matters. Generalagimdinistrative costs attributable to Inovio AS &&150,000 and $84,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Stock-based Compensation.

Stock-based compensation cost is measuitee grant date, based on the fair value of thardweduced by estimated forfeitures, and is
recognized as expense over the employee's regsésitee period. Total compensation cost under SRAS123(R) for our stock plans for the
years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $1i0maihd $1.6 million, of which $286,000 and $3®0@vas included in research
development expenses and $746,000 and $1.2 millaanincluded in general and administrative experrsapectively. At December 31, 20!
there was $752,000 of total unrecognized compearsabst, related to unvested stock options, whierempect to recognize over a weighted-
average period of one year, as compared to $1l®mfbr the year ended December 31, 2007. Totalksbased compensation for options
granted to non-employees for the years ended Dese&ih 2008 and 2007 was $58,000 and $119,00(ctgely.

Other Income/(Expense)

We recorded other income (expense) foydas ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 of $49/a08&4 million, respectively. The
decrease in other income (expense) is primarilytdube revaluation of registered common stock args issued by us in October 2006 and
August 2007. We are required to revalue the wasraneach balance sheet date to fair value. Ifencesed, the warrants will expire in October
2011 and August 2012, respectively.

Interest Income/(Expens

Interest income (expense) for the yearedidecember 31, 2008 and 2007 was $644,000 and#llidh, respectively. The decrease in
interest and other income for fiscal 2008, as caregbéo fiscal 2007, was primarily due to a lowesttand investments balance and lower
average interest rate.

Imputed and Declared Dividends on Preferred S

The holders of our Series C Preferred Steefe entitled to receive an annual dividend atea of 6%, in shares of common stock or cash,
payable quarterly, through May 20, 2007. As paith@d dividend, we paid cash of $23,000 duringdis2007 to holders of our Series C
Preferred Stock. No dividends were paid to hold¢isur Series C Preferred Stock during the yeaedrdecember 31, 2008.
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Income Taxes

Since inception, we have incurred operaliisges and accordingly have not recorded a pmvigr income taxes for any of the periods
presented. As of December 31, 2008, we had neatipgross carry forwards for federal and stat®ine tax purposes of approximately
$59.4 million and $58.0 million, respectively. Wle@had federal and state research and developgmentedits of approximately $1.2 million
and $1.5 million, respectively. If not utilized etimet operating losses and credits will begin farexin 2013. Utilization of net operating losses
and credits are subject to a substantial annuéhliion due to ownership change limitations provdidhy the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended.

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2007 an@ 200

The audited consolidated financial datettieryears ended December 31, 2007 and Decemb20@8.,is presented in the following table
and the results of these two periods are useckidligtussion thereafter.

Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease
December 31, December 31, (Decrease)
2007 2006 $ %
Revenue:
License fee and milestone payme $ 2,793,470 $ 1,337,10' $1,456,37 10%
Revenue under collaborative research and develdpanemgemen 1,854,30: 962,20° 892,09¢ 93
Grants and miscellaneous revel 159,94¢ 1,168,861  (1,008,91) (86)
Total revenue 4,807,72! 3,468,17: 1,339,55: 39
Operating expenses
Research and developme 9,625,94 8,509,78! 1,116,16: 13
General and administratiy 11,080,20 8,304,58 2,775,61! 33
Total operating expense:! 20,706,14 16,814,37 3,891,77 23
Loss from operations (15,898,42) (13,346,19) 2,552,22 19
Other income, ne 3,421,58! 320,70¢ 3,100,87. 967
Interest income, ne¢ 1,272,39 681,54t 590,85: 87
Net loss (11,204,44) (12,343,94) 1,139,49 9
Imputed and declared dividends on preferred s (23,339 (2,005,66) 1,982,322 99
Net loss attributable to common stockholder: $(11,227,77) $(14,349,60) $ 3,121,82! 22%
Revenue

Our revenue consists of license fees, taitespayments, and amounts received from collalveregsearch and development arrangern
and grants.

Our total revenue increased $1.3 millior38%s for the year ended December 31, 2007, as ceahpa fiscal 2006 due to significant
increases in license fees, milestone paymentseumhue under collaborative research and developanearigements, offset partially by a la
decrease in grant revenue.

The $1.5 million increase in license ferd milestone payments for the year ended Decenthe2®7, as compared to fiscal 2006 was
primarily due to the recognition of a $2.0 milliamlestone payment during fiscal 2007, resultingrfrihe achievement of a clinical milestone
by Merck for the
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filing of an investigational new drug applicaticor the second Merck product in a major market. Wnde agreement with Merck, we may
receive additional future milestone payments lintethe successful development of a product. We i@sognized $175,000 in higher Wyeth
license fee revenue in fiscal 2007 as compareidtalf2006, and acquired license agreements t@&eneSwitch® technology resulting in
increased revenue of $130,000 during fiscal 200i2s€ increases were partially offset by no Valditse fee revenue during fiscal 2007 as
compared to $480,000 during fiscal 2006, and deseaevenue of $344,000 from the Merck licensingagent in 2007 as this agreement
was fully amortized in May 2007.

The $892,000 increase in revenue undealoothtive research and development arrangemeritgydbie year ended December 31, 2007,
as compared to the 2006 fiscal year, was due 884,000 increase in Wyeth billings based on ollaborative agreement related to the
commercialization of the Elgen device, and $78,@00igher Merck collaborative research billingsidgr2007 as compared to 2006. Billings
from research and development work performed putsioethe Wyeth and Merck agreements are recordedweenue as the related research
expenditures are incurred.

The $1.0 million decrease in grant and ellaceous revenue was due to minimal revenue réoedfrom U.S. Army grants during fiscal
2007 as compared to $899,000 during fiscal 2006aarediuction in revenue recognized by Inovio ASrfraur European Union grant due to
timing of work performed.

During the years ended December 31, 20872806, we recognized revenue of $159,000 andrillibn, respectively, attributable to the
operations of Inovio AS, a Norwegian company thatagquired in January 2005, which amounted to aqpetely 3% and 33% of our total
revenue. Inovio AS' revenue primarily consists mbants received from grants and licensing revenue.

Research and Development Exper

The $1.1 million increase in research aedetbpment expenses for the year ended Decemb@08Z, as compared to fiscal 2006, was
primarily due to an increase in clinical trial exges associated with patient enrollment, clinitel ®sts, data collection and monitoring costs,
and increased costs related to the use of Cliteakarch Organization ("CROs") and Clinical Redeassociates ("CRAs") related to our
SECTA therapy program. Additional increases are@aged with the expansion of our in-house engingeand research expertise, increased
consulting services, increased lab supplies retat@dir existing and next generation programsegiased outside lab testing performed, and
expensed inventory costs. These increases welallyaoffset by a $672,000 decrease in expensebuatiable to Inovio AS totaling $697,000
and $1.4 million during the years ended DecembeRBQ7 and 2006, respectively.

Our research and development activitidecebur efforts to advance our products throughurrious stages of product development. The
expenditures that will be necessary to executadeuelopment plans are subject to numerous unceesjnvhich may affect our research and
development expenditures and capital resources) Ewarlier results are positive, we may obtaiffiedent results in later stages of
development, which could impact our developmeneexiitures for a particular product. Although wergpa considerable amount of time
planning our development activities, we may be meglto alter our plan based on new circumstancevents. Any deviation from our plan
may require us to incur additional expenditureaarelerate or delay the timing of our developmeenhsling.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses inchuggness development expenses and the amortizstiotangible assets. The $2.8 million
increase in general and administrative expenseéoyear ended December 31, 2007, as comparétsad 2006, was primarily due to an
increase in outside consulting
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services related to partnering our SECTA therapgmm, an increase in investor relations servisee@ated with expanding our DNA and
gene therapy program, an increase in personnehsgpessociated with expanding our in-house espeiticreased legal fees associated with
intellectual property and business developmentetfand increased legal, accounting and audigeg primarily attributable to matters related
to correspondence with the SEC. In addition, wened a reduction of goodwill in 2007 related te thalization of foreign net operating loss
carryforwards. General and administrative costibatiable to Inovio AS were $84,000 for the yeadesh December 31, 2007 and were
insignificant for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Stock-based Compensation.

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted 8tate of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") lB3(R),Stock-based Paymenand
elected to adopt the modified prospective applicathethod. SFAS No. 123(R) requires us to useravédile based method to account for
stock-based compensation. Accordingly, stock-basetpensation cost is measured at the grant datedhmn the fair value of the award
reduced by estimated forfeitures, and is recognézeexpense over the employee's requisite sereitedp Total compensation cost under Sl
No. 123(R) for our stock plans for the years endedember 31, 2007 and 2006 was $1.6 million an8 &illlion, of which $354,000 an
$423,000 was included in research and developm@genses and $1.2 million and $921,000 was includegneral and administrative
expenses, respectively. At December 31, 2007, thase$1.3 million of total unrecognized compensatiost, related to unvested stock
options, which we expect to recognize over a weidtaverage period of one year, as compared to 33a7or the year ended December 31,
2006. Total stock-based compensation for optioastgd to noremployees for the years ended December 31, 2002G0&lwas $119,000 a
$203,000, respectively.

Other Income/(Expense)

We recorded other income (expense) foydaes ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 of $3.lbmadhd $321,000, respectively. The
increase in other income (expense) is primarily wuthe revaluation of registered common stock aras issued by us in October 2006 and
August 2007. We are required to revalue the wasraneach balance sheet date to fair value. Ifencesed, the warrants will expire in October
2011 and August 2012, respectively.

Interest Income/(Expens

Interest income (expense) for the yearedidecember 31, 2007 and 2006 was $1.3 million$&®2,000, respectively. The increase in
interest income for fiscal 2007, as compared wafi006, was primarily due to a larger cash amdtsierm investments balance and higher
average interest rate.

Imputed and Declared Dividends on Preferred S

The former holders of our Series A and Bféxired Stock received an annual dividend at aat886, in shares of common stock or cash,
payable quarterly through September 30, 2006. kesalt, no dividends were paid to Series A or Bfétred Stock holders during the year
ended December 31, 2007. We paid cash of $345sandd a total of 2,871 shares valued at $8,00tetéotmer holders of our Series A
Preferred Stock, and we paid $15,000 in cash tdottmer holders of our Series B Preferred Stockndufiscal 2006.
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The holders of our Series C Preferred Steefe entitled to receive an annual dividend atea of 6%, in shares of common stock or cash,
payable quarterly, through May 20, 2007. As paith@d dividend, we paid cash of $23,000 duringdis2007 to holders of our Series C
Preferred Stock. We paid cash $117,000 duringlfd@@6 to holders of our Series C Preferred Staukaccrued $15,000 for certain holders of
our Series C Preferred Stock who participated iequity financing we completed in October 2006.

During 2006, we recorded an imputed divileharge of $1.9 million during the three monthdeshDecember 31, 2006, related to the
investors who converted $1.2 million of their Seri& Preferred Stock investment into 473,744 sharesr common stock as part of our
private placement closed in October 2006. This iregulividend charge was calculated using guidanogained in Emerging Issues Task
Force ("EITF") Issue No. 00-2Application of Issue No. 98-5 to Certain Convesibistruments As part of this private placement, these
investors received 304,450 additional shares otoormon stock, as compared to the number of slodi@sr common stock into which their
existing Series C Preferred Stock could have beemarted under the original terms of the Serieg&@dfred Stock. Under EITF Issue No. 00-
27, this incremental number of shares of our comstook was multiplied by the price of our commawckton the commitment date of the
original Series C Preferred Stock issuance, or8ped share, to calculate the $1.9 million impudaddend charge associated with this
beneficial conversion.

Income Taxes

Since inception, we have incurred operaliisges and accordingly have not recorded a pvigr income taxes for any of the periods
presented. As of December 31, 2007, we had nettpgross carry forwards for federal and stat®ine tax purposes of approximately
$55.9 million and $50.8 million, respectively. Wle@had federal and state research and developgmentedits of approximately $714,000
$989,000, respectively. If not utilized, the neengiing losses and credits will begin to expir@®i3. Utilization of net operating losses and
credits are subject to a substantial annual limitadue to ownership change limitations providedhsy Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, our primary uses of cash h&een to finance research and development acsvitiduding clinical trial activities in the
oncology, DNA vaccines and other immunotherapy sidaur business. Since inception, we have satisfur cash requirements principally
from proceeds from the sale of equity securities.

Recent Sales of Equity Securities

In May 2007, we completed a registered tydiriancing wherein we issued and sold 4,595,08tes of our common stock for $3.52 per
share, resulting in aggregate cash proceeds o2 $dflion, prior to offering expenses of $110,000.

Working Capital and Liquidity

As of December 31, 2008, we had workingteapf $554,000, as compared to $25.6 million BBecember 31, 2007. The decrease in
working capital during the year ended Decembe2808 was partly due to expenditures related taesgarch and development activities, as
well as various general and administrative expersased to consultants, legal, accounting andtaadd corporate development. In addition, a
substantive reduction in working capital was duthtoreclassification of the fair value of our aotrate securities, or ARS, from current to
non-current investments in 2008, due to the iligstate of these ARS. Management believes thaidtsowash and cash equivalents at
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December 31, 2008 are sufficient to meet its pldnmerking capital needs through December 31, 200%ontinue its product development
Inovio plans to raise additional working capitaidhgh equity or debt financings.

Our ARS are AAA-rated municipal debt obtigas with a long-term maturity and an intereseriat is reset in short-term intervals
through auctions. Due to conditions in the glolvabd markets, in 2008, these securities, reprasgatpar value of $13.6 million, had
insufficient demand resulting in multiple failedcéions. As a result, these affected securitiecareently not liquid and the interest rates have
been reset to predetermined higher rates.

In December 2008, we, via our wholly-owrsedbsidiary Genetronics, Inc., or "Genetronics”,chhiolds the ARS, accepted an offer of
ARS Rights from UBS. The ARS Rights permit us tquiee UBS to purchase our ARS at par value at eng tluring the period of June 30,
2010 through July 2, 2012. If we do not exerciseARS Rights, the ARS will continue to accrue ietgras determined by the auction process
or the terms of the ARS if the auction fails. [EtARS Rights are not exercised before July 2, 26&2 will expire and UBS will have no
further obligation to buy our ARS. UBS has the désion to purchase or sell our ARS at any time auitthprior notice so long as we receive a
payment at par upon any sale or disposition. UBSonly exercise its discretion to purchase or sell ARS for the purpose of restructurings,
dispositions or other solutions that will provide with par value for our ARS. As a condition to eygting the offer of ARS Rights, we released
UBS from all claims except claims for consequerdiainages relating to its marketing and sales of ARSalso agreed not to serve as a class
representative or receive benefits under any eleisn settlement or investor fund.

In conjunction with the acceptance of tHRARIights, we also amended our existing loan ageaemith UBS Bank USA, increasing the
existing credit line up to $12.1 million, with t#RS pledged as collateral. The loan will be treated "no net cost loan”, as it will bear inte
at a rate equal to the average rate of interesttpaenetronics on the pledged ARS, and the tetdst cost to Genetronics will be zero. The
Company fully drew down on the line of credit ind@enber 2008.

Typically the fair value of ARS approximatear value due to the frequent resets throughukton process. While we continue to earn
interest on our ARS at the maximum contractualstateese investments are not currently tradingtbeefore do not currently have a readily
determinable market value. Accordingly, the estaddtir value of the ARS no longer approximatesyadue. We have used a discounted cash
flow model to determine the estimated fair valu®of investment in ARS and our ARS Rights as ofdbalger 31, 2008. The assumptions used
in preparing the discounted cash flow model inclagiémates for interest rates, timing and amouctsh flows and expected holding periot
the ARS and ARS Rights.

We elected to measure the ARS Rights utidefair value option of SFAS No. 15Bhe Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities—Including an amendment to FASB Statement No.t@ Ibitigate volatility in reported earnings duetheir linkage to the
ARS, and recognized a gain of approximately $4 l#aniand recorded a corresponding long-term inwestt. Reflecting our intent to exercise
the ARS Rights during the period of June 30, 20itO6ugh July 2, 2012, we transferred our ARS fromestments available-for-sale to trading
securities. As a result of this transfer and aswwéonger intend to hold the ARS until the fairvalrecovers, we recognized an other-than-
temporary impairment loss of approximately $4.4lionl, representing a reversal of the related terpgovaluation allowance that was
previously recorded in other comprehensive lossbéleve this loss is primarily attributable to fmited liquidity of these investments and
have no reason to believe that any of the undegligauers are presently at risk of default. Themdiag of the fair value of the ARS Rights ¢
the recognition of the other-than-temporary impaintioss resulted in a net impact to the Consdadi&tatement of Operations for the year
ended December 31, 2008 of approximately $99,00wwvas recorded as other expense.
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As of December 31, 2008, we had an accuediideficit of $152.8 million. We have operated ddss since 1994, and we expect this to
continue for some time. The amount of the accuradlaeficit will continue to increase, as it will bgpensive to continue research and
development efforts. If these activities are susfid@nd if we receive approval from the FDA to ketrequipment, then even more funding
will be required to market and sell the equipm@ihie outcome of the above matters cannot be predittthis time. We are evaluating poter
partnerships as an additional way to fund operatitve will continue to rely on outside sourcesioéficing to meet our capital needs beyond
next year.

Our long-term capital requirements will dad on numerous factors including:

. The ability to raise additional working capitaldigh equity or debt financing;

. The costs associated with raising capital or obtgifiquidity and completing transactions, suchtespending merger with VC
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.;

. The cost of manufacturing scale-up and the cosbofmercialization activities and arrangements;

. The progress and magnitude of the research andogewent programs, including preclinical and clinitals;

. The time involved in obtaining regulatory approvi

. The cost involved in filing and maintaining patetdims;

. Competitor and market conditions;

. The ability to establish and maintain collaboratiwveangements; and

. The ability to obtain grants to finance researcth development project

The ability to generate substantial fundimgontinue research and development activities;limical and clinical studies and clinical trii
and manufacturing, scale-up, and selling, genaral,administrative activities is subject to a numdfeisks and uncertainties and will depend
on numerous factors including:

. The ability to raise funds in the future througlblicior private financings, collaborative arrangertse grant awards or fro
other sources;

. Our potential to obtain equity investments, collative arrangements, license agreements or develafpon other fundin
programs in exchange for manufacturing, marketigfribution or other rights to products develojgdus; and

. The ability to maintain existing collaborative argements.

The global financial markets have receatiperienced significant limits on available crdditcompanies of all sizes, and extreme
volatility in market prices limiting the ability afompanies to raise capital at favorable priceat &ll. This lack of liquidity and the consistentl
changing market conditions are currently impacting ARS as discussed above, as well as creatimgfisa@nt fluctuations in the market price
of our common stock. We cannot project how lonchstanditions will last in the global financial matk, and we cannot guarantee that
additional funding—whether via incurrence of debequity sales—uwill be available when needed ofamorable terms. If it is not, we will be
required to scale back our research and developpnegtams, preclinical studies and clinical tria@sd selling, general, and administrative
activities, or otherwise reduce or cease operatimalsour business and financial results and camditiould be materially adversely affected.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet agargts that have or are reasonably likely to hawarent or future effect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenexpenses, and results of operations, liquiditpjtahexpenditures or capital resources.

Contractual Obligations

On December 19, 2008, we amended our egittian agreement with UBS Bank USA, increasingetkisting credit line up to
$12.1 million, with our Auction Rate Securities gidged as collateral. We fully drew down on the lieredit on December 23, 2008. Advan
under the Line of Credit bear interest at LIBORspIL00% (the "Spread Over LIBOR"). UBS may chargeSpread Over LIBOR at its
discretion when the Collateral consisting of ARSyrba sold, exchanged or otherwise conveyed by trapgany for gross proceeds that are, in
the aggregate, not less than the par value of sechrities. The loan will be treated as a "no st an", as it will bear interest at a rate equal
to the average rate of interest paid to the Companthe pledged ARS, and the net interest costacCompany will be zero.

As of December 31, 2008, we did not haweaher material long-term debt or other known cactual obligations, except for the
operating lease for our facility, which expiredHabruary 2010, and operating leases for copierghagxpire in 2009 through 2011.

We are contractually obligated to makefti®wing operating lease payments as of DecembefB08:

More than
Less than
Total 1 year 1-3years 3-5years 5 years
Operating lease obligatiol $683,61° $539,82' $143,79: $ — $ —

ITEM 7A. QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Ris

Market risk represents the risk of losd thay impact our consolidated financial positiesults of operations or cash flows due to ad\
changes in financial and commodity market pricatrates. We are exposed to market risk primarithearea of changes in United States
interest rates and conditions in the credit marlkatd the recent and consistent fluctuations er@st rates and availability of funding in the
credit markets primarily impacts the performanceuwf investments. We do not have any material foreurrency or other derivative financial
instruments. Under our current policies, we dousa interest rate derivative instruments to maexgesure to interest rate changes. We
attempt to increase the safety and preservati@uoinvested principal funds by limiting defaulskj market risk and reinvestment risk. We
mitigate default risk by investing in investmenade securities.

Fair Value Measuremen

All of our investment securities are cléissi as trading securities and are reported orcdimsolidated balance sheet at market value. Our
investment securities consist of high-grade (AAfedd auction rate securities ("ARS") issued pritydsy municipalities, with a par value of
approximately $13.6 million. The negative condisan the global credit markets have prevented sorestors from liquidating their holding
including their holdings of ARS. In early March Z)Qve were informed that there was insufficient dachat auction for all six of our high-
grade ARS. As a result, these affected securitiesarrently not liquid, and we could be requiredhold them until they are redeemed by the
issuer or to maturity. In the event we need to s&tke funds that are in an
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illiquid state, we will not be able to do so withi@uloss of principal, until a future auction orsle investments is successful, the securities are
redeemed by the issuer or they mature.

In December 2008, we, via our wholly-owrsedbsidiary Genetronics, Inc., or "Genetronics",ashtholds the ARS, accepted an offer of
ARS Rights from our investment advisor, UBS Finah8ervices, Inc., a subsidiary of UBS AG, or UB8e ARS Rights permit us to require
UBS to purchase our ARS at par value at any tinmrenduhe period of June 30, 2010 through July 2,20f we do not exercise our ARS
Rights, the ARS will continue to accrue interestiatermined by the auction process or the terntiseoARS if the auction fails. If the ARS
Rights are not exercised before July 2, 2012 thidyewpire and UBS will have no further obligatiém buy our ARS. UBS has the discretion to
purchase or sell our ARS at any time without priotice so long as we receive a payment at par apgrsale or disposition. UBS will only
exercise its discretion to purchase or sell our ARShe purpose of restructurings, dispositionstbier solutions that will provide us with par
value for our ARS. As a condition to accepting dffer of ARS Rights, we released UBS from all claiexcept claims for consequential
damages relating to its marketing and sales of ARSalso agreed not to serve as a class repreigertateceive benefits under any class
action settlement or investor fund.

In conjunction with the acceptance of tHRARIights, we also amended our existing loan ageaemith UBS Bank USA, increasing the
existing credit line up to $12.1 million, with t#RS pledged as collateral. The loan will be treated "no net cost loan", as it will bear inte
at a rate equal to the average rate of interedttpais on the pledged ARS, and our net interesttwil be zero. We fully drew down on the |
of credit in December 2008.

In the event we need to access the furatsatte in an illiquid state, we will not be abledim so without the possible loss of principal, unti
a future auction for these investments is succkestilney are redeemed by the issuer or they mature

Foreign Currency Ris

We have operated primarily in the Unitedt& and most transactions during the year endedrdiger 31, 2008, have been made in U.S.
dollars. Accordingly, we have not had any mategigdosure to foreign currency rate fluctuations, dmrve have any foreign currency hedging
instruments in place.

We have conducted clinical trials in Eurapeonjunction with several Clinical Research Qrigations ("CRO's"), where we have clinical
sites being monitored by Clinical Research AssesidtCRA's"). While invoices relating to these mal trials are generally denominated in
U.S. dollars, our financial results could be aféecby factors such as inflation in foreign currescin relation to the U.S. dollar, in markets
where these vendors have assisted us in condubtisg clinical trials.

Certain transactions related to our Comparg/our subsidiaries Inovio AS and Inovio Asia Rtel. ("IAPL"), are denominated primarily
in foreign currencies, including Euros, British Bds, Canadian Dollars, Norwegian Kroner, Swedisbnigr and Singapore Dollars. As a re:
our financial results could be affected by facwush as changes in foreign currency exchange eatssak economic conditions in foreign
markets where Inovio conducts business, includiegimpact of the existing crisis in the global ficgal markets in such countries and the
impact on both the U.S. dollar and the noted far@igrrencies.

We do not use derivative financial instrumisefor speculative purposes. We do not engaggdhasnge rate hedging or hold or issue
foreign exchange contracts for trading purposestadtly, we do not expect the impact of fluctuasion the relative fair value of other
currencies to be material in 2009.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA

The information required by this Item 8risorporated by reference to our Consolidated FiiStatements and the Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm beigim at page F-1 of this report.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of December 31, 2008, an evaluation gzsed out by the company, with the participatidrour Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our diistire controls and procedures (as defined in RB¢el5(e) under the Securities Exchange
of 1934). Based upon that evaluation, our Chiefdatige Officer and Chief Financial Officer conclutihat these disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of the end of theogerovered by this report.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Ovigiancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for estahlishnd maintaining adequate internal control diremcial reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchangeoh 1934. Our internal control over financial ogfing is a process designed under the
supervision of our Chief Executive Officer and Ghieancial Officer to provide reasonable assuraegarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of our financialestagnts for external purposes in accordance with gkBerally accepted accounting principles.

As of December 31, 2008, management, Wighpiarticipation of the Chief Executive Officer adtdief Financial Officer, assessed the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahceporting based on the criteria for effectiveeimial control over financial reporting
established in "Internal Control—Integrated Frameyassued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaiora ("COSQ") of the Treadway
Commission. Based on the assessment, managememnhietd that we maintained effective internal colnbver financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008.

Attestation Report of the Registered Public AccognEirm

This annual report does not include arstdten report of the company's registered puld@oanting firm regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management's repads not subject to attestation by the companyistergd public accounting firm pursuant to tempp
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commissidnpnanit the company to provide only managemesfent in this annual report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogin

There have not been any changes in oumialteontrol over financial reporting (as definedRules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that occurredrduthe fourth quarter of our fiscal year ended Dawer 31, 2008, that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, our internal control over financial reporting

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Our executive officers and directors, dmeirtages and positions are as follows:

Name Age Position

Avtar Dhillon, M.D. 48 Director, and President and Chief Executive Of
James L. Heppell, LLB(1)(z 52 Director, and Chairman of the Boe
Simon X. Benito(1)(2)(3 63 Director

Tazdin Esmail(1)(2)(3 58 Director

Riaz Bandali(2)(3 39 Director

Robert W. Rieder(1)(z 61 Director

Stephen Rietiker, M.D(& 51 Director

Patrick Gar 5C Director

Peter D. Kies 45 Chief Financial Officer and HR Manag
Michael Fons, Ph.D 48 Vice President, Corporate Developm
Punit Dhillon. 28 Vice President, Finance and Operati

D) Member of the Compensation Committee
2) Member of Nomination and Corporate Governance Cdteg

3) Member of the Audit Committe

AVTAR DHILLON, M.Djoined Inovio as the President and Chief Execu¥cer, and as a director, in October 2001. Ptaojoining
Inovio, Dr. Dhillon was engaged by MDS Capital Cofmow Lumira Capital Corp.), one of North Amergiading healthcare venture capital
organizations, as a consultant in July 1998, abdeguently became Investment Manager in August 288%ice President in 2000. In July
1989, Dr. Dhillon started a medical clinic and sedpsently practiced family medicine for over 12 ywedirom March 1997 to July 1998,

Dr. Dhillon served as consultant to Cardiome Phagutcals., a biotechnology company listed on NASDKWational Market and the Toronto
Stock Exchange. Dr. Dhillon has a Bachelor of Sméeimonors degree in physiology and M.D. degrem fitee University of British Columbia.
Dr. Dhillon is also a director of Protox Therapestia publicly traded specialty pharmaceutical camypand Auricle Biomedical, a capital pool
company.

JAMES L. HEPPELL, L.L.Bhas been a director of Inovio since September 19®drim Chairman of the Board from September 1@99
March 2001, and Chairman of the Board since MaGfi2Mr. Heppell is President and Fund Manager@f&ivantage Funds (VCC) Ltd., a
venture fund that invests in early stage life scéeand technology companies located in British @dlia. Mr. Heppell is a director of Protox
Therapeutics and Urodynamix Technologies, andexcttir of a number of private life science compariiesaddition to his L.L.B., Mr. Heppell
has a Bachelor of Science degree in Microbiologynfthe University of British Columbia. After joirgrthe Bar, Mr. Heppell was seconded to
the British Columbia Securities Commission to waska Filings Analyst for six months. He has beereaber of the Securities Policy
Advisory Committee to the Commission and Chairmthe Securities Section of the Canadian Bar Asgimi (British Columbia Branch).

SIMON X. BENITQnas been a director of Inovio since December 2B@8r to his retirement, Mr. Benito had a succedssifid extensive
career serving several health care companies inrsexecutive positions, including 25 years at Me&cCo, Inc. His most recent positions
included Senior Vice President, Merck Vaccine Diuis Executive Vice President, Merck-Medco Mana@ede; and Executive Director and
Vice President, Merck Human Health, Japan. In &ditMr. Benito was a Fellow of the Institute of &tered Accountants in England and
Wales for over thirty years until his
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retirement in 1999. Since April 2005, Mr. Benitcshserved as a director of DURECT Corporation, diplytiraded specialty pharmaceutical
company.

TAZDIN ESMAILhas been a director of Inovio since August 2000.Bémail is the co-founder, former director, Presidand Chief
Executive Officer of Protox Therapeutics Inc., angany that is developing targeted proteins forttbatment of cancer. Mr. Esmail also ser
as a director of BC Advantage Funds (VCC) Ltd.eature fund that invests in early stage life soéemod technology companies located in
British Columbia. He is also the Founder, and far@kairman of the Board, Director, President anteCixecutive Officer of Forbes Medi-
Tech Inc., a company listed on the Toronto Stoc&haxge and the NASDAQ National Market. Mr. Esmaé iformer Vice-President of
operations of QLT Inc., a Toronto Stock Exchange i NASDAQ National Market listed biotechnologyngpany, and a former Director of
Pharmaceutical Operations for the American Homellts division of American Cyanamid (now Wyeth),aem he also managed the
company's oncology and hospital products division.

RIAZ BANDALIhas served as a director of Inovio since Augusé28r. Bandali currently serves as Senior Vice Flerst, Strategy and
Business Development for MDS Analytical Technolsgi@ division of MDS Inc., a company listed on M&w York and Toronto Stock
Exchanges. Prior to joining MDS Analytical Techrgikes, he spent four years as Senior Vice-Presi@ersiness Development and Operations,
at MDS Sciex, another division of MDS Inc. Priofjdining MDS Sciex, he served as Vice-President\dedture Partner with MDS Capital,
which he joined in late 1994. Mr. Bandali has alsoved on the boards of several health and lignseis companies in the United States and
Canada. Prior to joining MDS Capital, he serve€hief Financial Officer and Senior Vice-Presiddusiness Development for
Apoptogen Inc., and Transplantation Technologies During the early 1990s, he was a managing gatt a computer network consulting
firm. Mr. Bandali has a Bachelor of Science frora thniversity of British Columbia in Vancouver, whdre majored in Microbiology, and a
Masters of Business Administration from McGill Uaigity in Montreal.

ROBERT W. RIEDERas served as a director of Inovio since May 2047 Rieder is currently the Chief Executive Officard Chairma
of the Board of Directors of Cardiome Pharma CAASDAQ: CRME). Mr. Rieder has had a successful exignsive career in venture
capital and in operational management. Prior toifgi Cardiome, Mr. Rieder was vice-president at MEaitures Pacific Inc., an affiliate of
MDS Capital Corp., and has served as a directomidtiple public and private technology companids. Rieder received his Masters of
Business Administration from the University of Warst Ontario.

STEPHEN RIETIKER, M.D.has served as a director of Inovio since Febr@@08. Dr. Rietiker has management and board epeiir
both publicly held and privately held healthcarenpanies. Since 2007, Dr. Rietiker has served ag@ha of AurigaVision AG and has
served as a senior advisor to Brown Brothers Hami& Co.'s corporate finance team since 2004. 2064 to 2006, Dr. Rietiker served as
Executive Director and CEO for IMI Intelligent Medil Implants AG, and served from 2003 to 2004 a®@B&d a director of Pendragon
Medical Ltd. He has held positions with Roche, Bagder Mannheim, Schering Plough, Covance and $itaglica AG (later Centerpulse
AG). Since 2003, he has been actively involvedxasative director and investor in various start-ups is also a director of Prospero Minerals
Corporation and Contract Farming India AG. In 200& founded AurigaVision AG based in Zug, Switzedawhich serves as a platform with
the ultimate goal to turn visions and technologis successful businesses.

PATRICK GANwas appointed a director of Inovio in May 2008. K8an is currently Managing Partner of ATP Capit&l Btd, a
Singapore based institutional fund, which is onénofvio's stockholders. Mr. Gan has over 23 ye&rarking experience in the healthcare
sector where he held a number of positions in sanamagement, sales, marketing and project manageRwor to joining ATP in October
2005, Mr. Gan was Chief Executive Officer of Tigarways since January 2004. From January througteBéer 2003, Mr. Gan invested
personally with various small business
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ventures. From January 2001 to December 2002, lsin. s&rved as the Area Director for the Asia Pao#figion for Novartis, and served from
1998 to 2000 as Managing Director of Asia Paciigion of Glaxo Wellcome and subsequently as Direztdntegration based in Singapore
for the merger with Smith Kline in the Asia Pacifegion. In previous positions, Mr. Gan was withcRe Pharmaceuticals & Chemicals, firs
Singapore, and subsequently in Switzerland (thepamyis headquarters) and China, where he was rebpmfor a number of different areas,
from marketing the implementation of the compai&siNet IT system to developing longer-term busirgasas for the different markets.
Mr. Gan holds a B.Sc. in Pharmacy from the Natids@ilversity of Singapore and received his MastéBusiness Administration from the
University of Warwick.

PETER KIEShas been employed by Inovio as Chief Financiald@ffsince June 2002. For the 15 years prior tarjgitnovio, Mr. Kies
acquired broad expertise in the functional andegia management of biotechnology and high techgyotmmpanies across the full spectrur
corporate growth, from Initial Public Offering tegfitability. From May 1996 until joining Inovio,éhserved as Chief Financial Officer for
Newgen Results Corporation, and prior to that stasController for Cytel Corporation and as anitaudor Ernst & Young LLP. Mr. Kie:
holds a B.S. in Business Administration from Unifgdtes International University in San Diego, foafiia.

MICHAEL FONS, PhDwas promoted by Inovio to Vice President of Corp@iaevelopment in August 2007. Dr. Fons joined in@s
Executive Director of Corporate Development in JB884. In such capacity, he has been instrumemt@fining Inovio's corporate strategy
relating to DNA vaccines and DNA delivery, includiassisting in securing DNA-related license agregsjecquiring valuable intellectual
property assets, and establishing a strong staridatide management of Inovio's corporate relatigps Prior to joining Inovio, Dr. Fons held
business development roles with Vical, GeneMedjcamel Valentis. He is an Adjunct Associate Professdicrobiology and Immunology
with the University of Texas Medical Branch. Dr.risds a published author of 24 papers in scierjtficnals and numerous book chapters.

PUNIT DHILLONwas promoted by Inovio to Vice President, Finame @perations in January 2008. Mr. Dhillon joinedvio in
September 2003 and has played a vital role in uaramrporate finance projects, including managerogfibancing transactions, as well as
day-to-day management of operational functions.Dhillon was most recently Executive Director oh&nce and Operations. Prior to joining
Inovio, he worked for a corporate finance law fiasa law clerk. He previously worked with MDS Cap@orp. (how Lumira) and was a
consultant to several early stage health and tiferge companies where he acquired broad experiermmeporate management, finance and
capital markets. Mr. Dhillon has a Bachelor of At®nors, in Political Science and a minor in Bess Administration from Simon Fraser
University. Mr. Dhillon is also a director of AuteeBiomedical, a capital pool company.

Certain Legal Proceedings
No directors, nominees or executive offideave been involved in the certain legal procegdiisted in Item 401 of Regulation S-K.
Family Relationships

No family relationships exist between afiyhe directors or executive officers of Inovio ept for that of Mr. Punit Dhillon, Vice
President Finance and Operations, who is the neplfi¢wovio's Chief Executive Officer and direct@r. Avtar Dhillon. Neither Mr. Dhillon
nor Dr. Dhillon have been party to any transactiequiring disclosure pursuant to Item 404(a) of Ration S-K.

Committees of the Board of Directors and Attendancat Board Meetings

During the year ended December 31, 20@8Bthard of Directors met ten times, the Audit Cottteei met six times, the Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committee met seven times and
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the Compensation Committee met seven times. Eaehtdi attended at least 75% of the aggregate nuailmeetings held by (i) the Board of
Directors and (ii) those committees of the Boar@®wéctors on which he served.

Audit Committee

The functions of the Audit Committee inadugbtaining our independent registered public actng firm, reviewing its independence,
reviewing and approving the planned scope of onuahaudit, reviewing and approving any fee arramgrgs with our independent registered
public accounting firm, overseeing its audit waikyiewing and pre-approving any non-audit servibas may be performed by it, reviewing
the adequacy of accounting and financial contrelgiewing our critical accounting policies and ewving and approving any related party
transactions. The Board of Directors amended tlaetehfor the Audit Committee on March 6, 2008bétter reflect the practices and
responsibilities of the Audit Committee. The Au@ibmmittee's charter, a component of our corporategance policy, is available separa
on our website athttp://media.corporate-ir.net/media_files/irol/1@3128/corpGov/AuditCommittee.pdf

The members of the Audit Committee are SiBenito (Chair), Riaz Bandali, Tazdin Esmail aniev@n Rietiker. Each member of the
Audit Committee is independent under the NYSE Anigting standards. The Board has determined thaBdnito is an "audit committee
financial expert" as defined under Item 407(d){p}f Regulation S-K under the Securities Act o889as amended (the "Securities Act").

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee determinesdlerysof the executive officers of Inovio, grantsck options under the 2007 Omnibus
Incentive Plan and performs such other functiogsrding compensation as the Board of Directors dedggate. The Board of Directors
amended the charter for the Compensation Comnatiedarch 27, 2008. The Compensation Committee'geha component of our
corporate governance policy, is available separatelour website atttp://media.corporate-
ir.net/media_files/irol/10/105128/corpGov/CompCornpuf.

The members of the Compensation Committedames L. Heppell (Chair), Simon Benito, Tazdimgil and Robert W. Rieder. Each
member of the Compensation Committee is independwaaer the NYSE Amex listing standards.

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Bittee identifies and recommends candidates fatiele to the Board of Directors. It
advises the Board of Directors on all matters nedgto directorship practices, including the ciisfior selecting directors, policies relating to
tenure and retirement of directors and compensatighbenefit programs for non-employee directorkil®\the Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee has not established any miminoriteria for serving as a director, the Commifis@ises on selecting individuals that
have skill sets that augment the skill sets ofctineent directors and are most likely to assighabuilding and success of Inovio. In addition,
the Committee believes it appropriate for at less member of the Board of Directors to meet thter@ for an "audit committee financial
expert," as defined by Securities and Exchange Gegiom rules, that independent members of the bwariserve on the audit committee are
able to read and understand fundamental finan@igdrments, including a balance sheet, income seaterand cash flow statement and that at
least a majority of the members of the Board oEBliors meet the definition of "independent” und¥S& Amex rules.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance @ittee also makes recommendations relating to thiesland membership of committees
of the Board of Directors, recommends processevatuate the performance and contributions of iiddial directors and the Board of
Directors as a whole,
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approves procedures designed to provide that atkequantation and training are provided to new rbers of the Board of Directors, consults
with the Chief Executive Officer in the processegruiting new directors and assists in locating@emanagement personnel and selecting
members for the scientific advisory board.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance iGittee has developed a policy to govern Inoviojsrapch to corporate governance issues
and provides a forum for concerns of individuakdiors about matters not easily or readily disaigsa full board meeting (e.g., the
performance of management). Individual directoeseattitled to engage outside advisors at the expehiovio, with the prior approval of the
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committeevatidthe full knowledge of management. The Boardo&ctors amended the char
for the Nomination and Corporate Governance Conesitin March 27, 2008. The Nomination and Corpdeateernance Committee's charter,
a component of our corporate governance policgv#lable separately on our websitetdtp://media.corporate-
ir.net/media_files/irol/10/105128/corpGov/Nomand@@ov.pdf

The members of the Nomination and CorpoGieernance Committee are Tazdin Esmail (ChaigzMandali, Simon Benito, James L.
Heppell, and Robert W. Rieder. Each member of tbmidation and Corporate Governance Committee isgeddent under the NYSE Amex
listing standards.

Corporate Governance

Inovio's Corporate Governance policy, whintiudes the charters of the committees of ther@oéDirectors, is available on our website,
www.inovio.com The Board of Directors has implicitly and exgligiacknowledged its responsibility for the stewarigy of Inovio in the
following ways:

Strategic Planning and I dentification of Risks

Management prepares an annual businesgglémovio and presents the plan to the Inovio floaf Directors for its review and
comments. In connection therewith, the Board oEBliors discusses various strategic matters withagement and identifies business risks
associated with Inovio's activities.

Senior Management

The board of directors takes responsibftityappointing those members of senior managembotbecome Inovio's officers. Currently,
the members of senior management of Inovio areAbtar Dhillon, President and Chief Executive OfficPeter Kies, Chief Financial Officer
and Human Resources Manager; Dr. Michael Fons, Niesident, Corporate Development; and Punit Dhildce President, Finance and
Operations.

Communications Policy

The board of directors has proceduresacgto ensure effective communication between tmatd stockholders, prospective investors,
and the public, including the dissemination of mfiation on a regular and timely basis. Historicalhe Chairman of the Board of Directors,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financiafioér and the Vice President, Finance and Operstialong with various other Inovio
employees and consultants, devoted a portion @ftihee to dealing with stockholders and prospeeiiwestors. Stockholders who want to
communicate with the board or any individual diogatan write to Inovio's Secretary at the followsmddress: 11494 Sorrento Valley Road,
Diego, CA 92121t318; such correspondence should indicate thatsséat an Inovio stockholder. Depending on the stibjatter, manageme
will:

. Forward the communication to the director or dioesto whom it is addressed;
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. Attempt to handle the inquiry directly, for examplehere it is a request for information about Irer it is a stock-related
matter; or
. Not forward the communication if it is primarily eonercial in nature or if it relates to an impropeirrelevant topic.

Internal Control and Management | nformation Systems

Along with management, the board of direxie responsible for Inovio's internal control andnagement information systems. The Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors meets with lias/independent registered public accounting fijmarterly to review Inovio's financial
statements and to review Inovio's financial repariprocedures.

I ndependence from Management

To ensure that the board of directors fiemstindependently of management, Inovio has ségthe office of chairman of the Board fr
that of Chief Executive Officer. Further the indagent directors meet on a regular basis as ofteeesssary to fulfill their responsibilities,
including at least annually in executive sessiothauit the presence of non-independent directorsvaarthgement. James L. Heppell, Simon
Benito, Tazdin Esmail, Riaz Bandali, Robert Riedled Stephen Rietiker are each independent und@&t\is& Amex listing standards.

Modified Plurality Voting Policy

On December 5, 2008, the Inovio Board akBlors, upon recommendation from its Nominatiod @orporate Governance Committee
adopted a Modified Plurality Voting Policy as arddithn to its Corporate Governance Policy. The Miedi Plurality VVoting Policy provides
that any nominee for director in an uncontestedtigle who receives (a) a greater number of votathtweld"” from his or her election than vc
"for" his or her election and (b) votes "withhefddm his or her election that constitute thirtyeipercent (35%) or more of the outstanding
shares of Inovio common stock, must promptly teridgior her written resignation following the cécttion of the stockholder vote. The
Inovio board of directors, in accordance with thegedures set out in the policy and upon a recordatén from the Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committee, shall either acggt resignation or defer its acceptance for neerttean thirty days to enable the Inovio
board to maintain compliance with applicable rided regulations. Inovio shall promptly disclosetsdetermination on any pending
resignation via a Current Report on Form 8-K. Ayopthe Modified Plurality Voting Policy is postéd Inovio's website as part of Inovio's
overall Corporate Governance Policy.

Code of Ethics

Inovio has adopted a Code of Ethics, whipplies to all directors, officers and employeesluding the principal executive officer,
principal financial and accounting officer and aolier. The purpose of the Code of Ethics is tonpote honest and ethical conduct. The Code
of Ethics was previously filed with our Annual Repon Form 10-K for the year ended December 314280Exhibit 14.1 and is incorporated
by reference as Exhibit 14.1 to this report. Thel€of Ethics is also available on Inovio's webaite available in print, without charge, upon
written request to the Secretary at 11494 Sorrgattey Road, San Diego, CA 92121-1318. Any amendmtmor waivers of the Code of
Ethics will be promptly posted on the Inovio's wighatwww.inovio.conor in a report on Form 8-K, as required by appliedaws.
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COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(a) OF THE SECURITIES EXC HANGE ACT OF 1934

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requinesio's officers, directors and persons who bergfy own more than ten percent of our
common stock to file with the Securities and Exgde@@ommission initial reports of ownership and répof changes in beneficial ownership
of our common stock. Officers, directors and 10%maater stockholders are required by the SEC a¢iguk to furnish us with copies of all
Section 16(a) forms they file.

Based solely on Inovio's review of the espdf such reports furnished to Inovio's manageinelitves that all officers, directors and
greater than ten percent stockholders complied thétfiling requirements of Section 16(a) for theayended December 31, 2008.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
2008 Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth compensaiidiormation for 2008 and 2007 for our Presiderd &mief Executive Officer, the Chief
Financial Officer and HR Manager, the two othercnive officers serving at December 31, 2008, ammér executive officer who served
during 2008, and the Managing Director of Inovio &Bllectively, the "Named Executive Officers"), ede salary and bonus exceeded
$100,000 for 2008.

Stock Option
Salary Bonus Awards Awards All Other

Name and Principal Position Year (1) (2 3) (4) Compensatior Total
(@ ] (b) © ©) (©) () ©) (h)
Dr. Avtar Dhillon, 200¢ $369,41° — $102,21¢ $178,33: $ 18,72%5)%$656,02!

President and Chief Executive Offic 2007 $357,50: $116,37! $ 69,18¢ $391,39: $ 5,347 $939,80:
Peter Kies 200¢ $220,78: — — $ 98,93 —  $319,71¢

Chief Financial Officer and HR Manag 2007 $206,96¢ $ 26,00( —  $128,24- —  $361,81(
Michael Fons 200¢ $197,06: — — $59,83 $ 3,22( $260,11-

Vice President, Corporate Developm 2007 $188,18( $ 16,62: — $8187. $ 3,32« $290,00¢
Punit Dhillon, 200¢ $171,87¢ — — $85517 $ 3,900 $261,29:

Vice President, Operations and Financt 2007 $145,73t $ 13,30( — $94,02¢ $ 3,900 $256,96:
Dietmar Rabussa 200¢ $ 69,50¢ — — $ 1548t $ 114,720 $199,71°

Vice President, Research and Developme 2007 $185,39: — — $63927 $§ 5,200 $254,51¢
lacob Mathieser 200¢ $188,55¢ — $ 63,42( $ 51,54 — $303,51¢

Managing Director, Inovio AS(¢ 2007 $179,44! — $166,05( $ 62,98t — $408,48:

1) Salary includes contributions made by the empldgdaovio's 401(k) plan.
2) There were no bonuses paid for the year 2008. Bpayient for 2007 were made in February 2008.
3) Represents the compensation costs of stock awaaltsiated for financial reporting purposes for ylear utilizing the provisions «

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SHAR). 123R, rather than an amount paid to or redlizy the named executive
officer. See Note 10,
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(4)

©®)
(6)
@)

®)

"Stockholder's Equity," to our Audited Consolidatédancial Statements for information concerning 8FAS 123R values, which are
based on the fair value of our common stock ordite of grant. There can be no assurance thattA& $23R amounts will ever be
realized. The stock award to Dr. Dhillon includesnpensation expense related to a 2007 restricbett stvard of 75,000 shares of
which 18,750 shares vested immediately at a fdirevaf $3.69 per share. The total value of the dwaas $276,750, and the remaining
value vests annually in March over the next thregry. The stock award to Dr. Dhillon also includespensation expense related to a
2008 restricted stock award of 75,000 shares ofhwhB,750 shares vested immediately at a fair vail$8.87 per share. The total va

of the award was $65,250, and the remaining vadstsvannually in February over the next three yddrs stock award to

Mr. Mathiesen includes compensation expense retatadestricted stock award in 2007 of 90,000 ehaf which 45,000 shares vested
immediately at a fair value of $3.69 per share. el value of the award was $332,100, and theaneimg value will vest in December
2009.

Represents the compensation costs of stock optilnalated for financial reporting purposes for ylear utilizing the provisions ¢
SFAS No. 123R, rather than an amount paid to dizeshby the named executive officer. See Note'$fckholder's Equity" to our
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for $sumptions made in determining SFAS 123R valuemlffaamounts expensed for
grants that were made in prior years are includ@iédre can be no assurance that the SFAS 123R aswilihever by realized by the
named executive officer.

Consists of $6,058 of 401-k match and $12,667aer expenses for Dr. Dhillon's spouse reimbursgduant to our travel policy.
Officer was promoted from Executive Director, Finarand Operations in January 20

Officer resigned on May 2, 2008. Amounts includealil other compensation reflect severance paynpaitson a k-weekly basis
through October 2008 as well as all unused accvaedtion and paid time off.

Managing Director of Inovio AS salary paid in Nomgvan Kroners but translated to U.S. Dollars usheydaverage exchange rate
2008.

Grants of Plan Based Awards

The following table sets forth certain infaation with respect to stock and option awards@thér plan-based awards granted to our

named executive officers during 2008. Amounts regmnéng Estimated Future Payouts Under Non-Equitemtive Awards (i.e. thresholds,
targets and minimums), and Estimated Future Paydutier Equity Incentive Plan Awards (i.e. threslsolérgets and
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minimums) have not been reported in the followialglé as they are not applicable to our compensatiogram during 2008.

All Other
Option Grant Date
All Other Awards: Exercise ol
Stock Number of Fair Value
Awards: Securities Base Price of Stock
Number of  Underlying of Option and Option
Grant Shares of Awards
Name Date Stock (#)(1  Options (#) ($/Share)  Awards ($)
(@) (b) (©) (d) (e) )
Avtar Dhillon, 2/1/200¢ — 75,000 $ 0.87 $ 35,01(
President and Chief Executive Offi 2/1/200¢ 75,00( — — $68,25(
12/9/200t¢ — 100,00 $ 0.5C $ 32,36(
Peter Kies 2/1/200¢ — 30,00 $ 0.87 $ 14,00«
Chief Financial Officer an 7/9/200¢ — 60,00 $ 1.06 $34,23(
HR Managel! 12/9/200i — 40,00 $ 0.5C $ 12,94«
Michael Fons 2/1/200¢ — 20,000 $ 0.87 $34,23(
Vice President, Corpora 7/9/200¢ — 60,00 $ 1.06 $ 9,33¢
Developmen 12/9/200¢ — 20,00 $ 05C $ 6,47:
Punit Dhillon, 2/1/200¢ — 50,00 $ 0.87 $ 23,34(
Vice President, Finance a 7/9/200¢ — 60,00 $ 1.06 $34,23(
Operations 12/9/200i — 70,00 $ 0.5C $22,65:
lacob Mathieser 7/9/200¢ — 50,00 $ 1.06 $ 28,52

Managing Director, Inovio A!

1) The amount reflects the number of restricted stavelirds granted on February 1, 2008 pursuant ta@8& Omnibus Incentive Ple
with a grant date fair value of $0.87 per share.

Options Exercised
There were no options exercised by our mhexecutive officers during 2008.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table

The following tables set forth certain imfation with respect to outstanding equity awaodhe named executive officers under our
equity incentive plans during 2008.

OPTION AWARDS

Number of

Securities Number of
Underlying Securities
Unexercise( Underlying Option
Unexercised  Exercise Option
Options (#) Options (#) Expiration
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Price ($) Date
(@) (b) (c) (d) (e)
Avtar Dhillon 100,00( 2.0¢ 10/09/201.
President and CE! 25,00( 1.64 04/28/201.
124,99¢ 1.9¢ 06/27/201.
12,49¢ 1.0C 10/24/201.
62,50( 1.0¢ 01/09/201.
81,24¢ 2.5z 08/07/201.
37,49¢ 5.0C 11/06/201:
125,00( 5.0C 12/31/201:
150,00( 3.82 01/14/201!
56,25( 18,75( 2.8¢ 03/06/201!
112,50( 112,50( 3.1€ 03/07/201
18,75( 56,25( 0.87 02/01/201!
25,00( 75,00( 0.5C 12/09/201!

931,24t 262,50(

Peter Kies 37,50( 1.9¢ 06/27/201;
CFO and HR Manage 7,50( 1.0C 10/24/201;
12,50( 1.24 03/24/201.

14,37¢ 2.5z 08/07/201.

20,00( 4.4€¢ 02/24/201!

33,75( 11,25( 2.8¢ 03/06/201!

37,50( 37,50( 3.1€ 03/07/201

7,50( 22,50( 0.87 02/01/201:

15,00( 45,00( 1.0¢€ 07/09/201:

10,00( 30,00( 0.5C 12/09/201.

195,62 146,25(

Michael Fons 37,50( 5.3z 06/16/201.
VP, Corporate Developme 15,00( 5,00( 245 03/22/2011
10,00( 10,00( 3.1€ 03/08/201

12,50( 12,50( 3.7t 05/03/201

5,00( 15,00( 0.87 02/01/201!

15,00( 45,00( 1.0¢€ 07/09/201!

5,00( 15,00( 0.5C 12/09/201!

100,00 102,50(
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OPTION AWARDS

Number of
Securities Number of
Underlying Securities
Unexercise( Underlying Option
Unexercised  Exercise Option
Options (#) Options (#) Expiration
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Price ($) Date
(@) (b) (©) (d) (e)
Dietmar Rabussay(: 3,75(C 16.52 02/06/201i
VP, Research and Developmi 50C 6.0C 08/24/201i
6,25( 6.2¢ 05/16/201.
7,50( 1.8C 10/23/201.
7,50( 1.6¢ 04/28/201.
7,50( 1.0C 10/24/201.
12,50( 1.2¢ 03/24/201
19,937 2.5z 08/07/201.
10,00( 4.4¢ 02/24/201!
33,75( 11,25( 2.8¢ 03/06/201!
12,50( 12,50( 3.1€ 03/07/201
121,68 23,75(
Punit Dhillon 25,00( 2.7¢ 06/30/201:
VP, Finance and Operatio 6,25( 2.5z 08/07/201.
15,00( 4.3z 02/24/201!
26,25( 8,75(C 245 03/22/2011
20,00( 20,00( 3.1€ 03/08/201
7,50( 7,50(C 3.7t 05/03/201
12,50( 37,50( 0.87 02/01/201!
15,00( 45,00( 1.0¢ 07/09/201:
17,50( 52,50( 0.5C 12/09/201!

145,00( 171,25(

lacob Mathiesel 15,00( 5,00( 245 03/22/2011
Managing Director, Inovio A! 10,00( 10,00( 3.1€ 03/08/201
12,50( 12,50( 3.7t 05/03/201

12,50( 37,50( 1.0€ 07/09/201:

50,00( 65,00(

1) Dietmar Rabussay resigned effective May 2, 2008dwvawvremains with Inovio as a consultant. All opsdisted remain outstandin

STOCK AWARDS
Number of Fair Market
Unvested
Name Shares (#)(1 Value ($)
(@) (b) (c)
Avtar Dhillon 93,75( 187,31
President & CEC
lacob Mathiesen 45,00( 166,05(

Managing Director, Inovio A!

138,75(  353,36:

(1)  The amount reflects the number of unvested resttistock awards outstanding at December 31, 2008.
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Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Partipation

In 2008, the Compensation Committee coedisf James L. Heppell (Chair), Simon Benito, TaZeémail and Robert W. Rieder, each of
whom is an independent director under the NYSE Alisting standards. Other than James L. Heppelb ista former officer of Inovio, no
member of the Compensation Committee is a formeument officer or employee of Inovio.

During 2008, Avtar Dhillon, our Chief Exdiue Officer, served as a director of BC Advant@g€C) Funds, Inc. James L. Heppell, a
member of our Compensation Committee, serves asderdg and Fund Manager of BC Advantage (VCC) Fuhmds

No other persons who were members of thegamsation Committee during 2008 had any relatipsstequiring disclosure.
Compensation of Directors

During 2008, Inovio paid each non-emplogligector of Inovio (other than the Chairman of Bmard) an annual retainer fee of $19,000
and paid the Chairman of the Board an annual retdée of $35,000. We pay or reimburse all reaslenekpenses associated with directors'
attendance at and participation in board and coteenineetings and other company business whicteatdirattends. For 2008, Inovio also
paid an additional $9,000 to the Compensation Cdtaechairman as compensation for services astimmittee's chairman, an additional
$14,000 to the Audit Committee chairman as compenséor services as that committee's chairman,amedditional $5,000 to the
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee otaairas compensation for services as that comnsitteair. Inovio also pays each I-
employee director $1,500 for attendance at eachidBo&eting conducted in person and $750 for eacrdmeeting conducted telephonically.

Inovio does not pay director fees to it®diors who are also Inovio employees. Thus, Dill@hdoes not receive director fees.

Non-employee directors are eligible to reeefrom time to time, grants of options to pursdahares of common stock under the Plan as
determined by the full Board of Directors. Duritngtyear ended December 31, 2008, Inovio granteged®-options to purchase a total of
225,000 shares of its common stock to its non-eyg@dalirectors. Mssrs. Bandali, Benito, Esmail, HehRieder and Rietiker received 15,000
shares each, at an exercise price of $0.89. Mtikereand Mr. Gan also received 30,000 shares apoh joining the Board of Directors in
2008, exercisable at $1.05 and $0.89, respectilreixugust 2008, Mr. Heppell also received optitmpurchase 75,000 shares of common
stock, exercisable at $1.03 per share. In Dece2®@B, Mr. Chong also received options to purch&e0D shares of common stock,
exercisable at $0.50 per share, which were diseldiim conjunction with his resignation from the Bibaf Directors as reported on Form 8-K
on February 6, 2009.

Director Compensation Table

The following table sets forth certain imfaation with respect to director compensation dy@008. Amounts representing Stock Awards,
Non-equity Incentive Plan Compensation and All Other
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Compensation are not included in the following ¢ad they are not applicable to our compensatiogram during 2008.

Fees
Earned or

Paid in Option

Cash Awards Total
Name $) ®> ()
@ (b) (c) (d)
James Heppe 58,25( 42,14« 100,39:
Simon Benitc 48,00C 26,37¢ 74,37¢
Tazdin Esmai 39,00C 26,37¢ 65,37¢
Riaz Bandal 28,00C 26,37¢ 54,37¢
Robert Riede 31,75( 33,60 65,35’
Stephen Rietike 23,25( 12,69 35,94:
Patrick Gar 15,50( 3,18: 18,68:

Chin Cheong Chong(! — — —

(2) In December 2008, Mr. Chong also received optiorurchase 15,000 shares of its common stock, isabie at $0.50
which were disclaimed in conjunction with the resijon from the Board of Directors as reported om#8-K on
February 6, 2009.

(2) Represents the compensation costs of stock optainalated for financial reporting purposes for ylear utilizing the
provisions of SFAS No. 123R, rather than an amgaid to or realized by the director. See Note Biptkholder's
Equity" to our Audited Consolidated Financial Staénts for the assumptions Stockholders' made eréting
SFAS 123R values. Ratable amounts expensed fotsgitsat were made in prior years are included. &lean be no
assurance that the SFAS 123R amounts will eveeéljzed by the director.

Employment Contracts, Termination of Employment andChange-in-Control Arrangements

Inovio has written employment agreements wach of its Executive Officers which have batgdfas exhibits in filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 8- file April 3, 2006 for Dr. Avtar Dhillon and Mr. Be Kies; on August 21, 2007 for
Dr. Michael Fons; and on March 12, 2008 for Mr. Pillon.

Under the employment agreement with Dr.aARhillon dated October 10, 2001, Dr. Dhillon ssnas our President and Chief Executive
Officer. Dr. Dhillon's employment agreement prowder an initial annual salary of $200,000 and peig increases, as determined by the
Board from time to time, but no less than an anin@kase at least equal to the percentage incnedlse cost of living in the San Diego Area
over the previous year. Dr. Dhillon is also endtte an annual bonus and stock option awards ti&icemilestone objectives agreed to between
the Board and Dr. Dhillon each year are met, asrdéhed by the Board, and four weeks of paid vacatiach year. The term of Dr. Dhillon's
employment agreement is for 10 years ending Oct®p2011, unless sooner terminated by Dr. Dhillobylnovio. If Dr. Dhillon's
employment agreement is terminated by Inovio othan for cause as set forth in the agreement arcasmsequence of Dr. Dhillon becoming
permanently disabled, or if the employment agredrisaterminated by Dr. Dhillon within 180 days afte"change of control" of Inovio as
defined in the agreement, or by Dr. Dhillon forradch by Inovio, Dr. Dhillon is entitled to receigdump sum severance payment equal to two
times his annual salary and bonus at the timerofitetion, plus the continuation of his health tféagor payment of the amount necessary to
secure the same) for one year after terminatioDr.|Dhillon's employment agreement is terminatgdrimvio as a consequence of Dr. Dhillon
becoming permanently disabled, Dr. Dhillon is éaditto receive a lump sum severance payment egums tannual salary at the time
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of termination and his bonus based on the amousticti bonus most recently paid to him, pro ratethfdanuary 1 of the year of termination
through date of termination.

Under the employment agreement with Petes Kdated December 15, 2003, Mr. Kies serves a€bief Financial Officer. Mr. Kies'
employment agreement provided for an initial anraaéry of $180,000 to be periodically increasedigh amounts as determined by the
Board from time to time. Mr. Kies is also entitledan annual bonus (which may consist of cashkstostock options) if certain milestone
objectives agreed to between the Board and Mr. Eaeh year are met, three weeks of paid vacaticim ysar and such stock options as ma
approved by the Board. The term of Mr. Kies empleptragreement is for 10 years ending December@¥3,2inless sooner terminated by
Mr. Kies or by Inovio. If Mr. Kies's employment agment is terminated by Inovio other than for caasseet forth in the agreement or as a
consequence of Mr. Kies becoming permanently deshhir if the employment agreement is terminatetbyKies for a breach by Inovio,
including termination of employment following a ctgee of control, Mr. Kies is entitled to receiveevsrance payment, payable in such regular
intervals as may determined by Inovio, equal too(@-half of his annual salary for the year pritite date of termination, and (b) his bonus
based on the amount of such bonus most recentiytpdiim, pro rated from January 1 of the yearafination through date of termination.

Under the employment contract with Dr. MiehFons, dated August 31, 2007, Mr. Fons servesia¥ice President, Corporate
Development. Dr. Fon's employment agreement previdiean initial annual salary of $195,050 to baqatcally increased by such amounts
determined by the Board from time to time. Dr. F@nalso entitled to an annual bonus (which maysttrof cash, stock or stock options) if
certain milestone objectives agreed to betweeBtad and Dr. Fons each year are met, three wdglaavacation each year, and such stock
options as may be approved by the Board. The télbr.d-ons employment agreement is for 10 yearsngndlugust 30, 2017, unless sooner
terminated by Dr. Fons or by Inovio. If Dr. Fonsioyment agreement is terminated by Inovio othantfor cause as set forth in the
agreement or as a consequence of Dr. Fons becgaintanently disabled, or if the employment agreénssierminated by Dr. Fons for a
breach by Inovio, including termination of employméollowing a change of control, Dr. Fons is detitto receive a severance payment,
payable in such regular intervals as may determiiyelthovio, equal to (a) one-half of his annuabsglfor the year prior to the date of
termination, and (b) his bonus based on the amafusiich bonus most recently paid to him, pro rétech January 1 of the year of termination
through date of termination.

Under the employment contract with Puniflbh, dated March 12, 2008, Mr. Dhillon servesoas Vice President, Finance and
Operation. Mr. Dhillon's employment agreement pdesi for an initial annual salary of $176,000 tgbeaodically increased by such amounts
as determined by the Board from time to time. Mmillon is also entitled to an annual bonus (whiclyrgonsist of cash, stock or stock optic
if certain milestone objectives agreed to betwéenBoard and Mr. Dhillon each year are met, threeks of paid vacation each year, and such
stock options as may be approved by the Board tdime of Mr. Dhillon's employment agreement is fOrylears ending March 12, 2018, unless
sooner terminated by Mr. Dhillon or by Inovio. IfrMDhillon's employment agreement is terminatedrnmyio other than for cause as set forth
in the agreement or as a consequence of Mr. DHillmoming permanently disabled, or if the employnagmeement is terminated by
Mr. Dhillon for a breach by Inovio, including tern@tion of employment following a change of contidt, Dhillon is entitled to receive a
severance payment, payable in such regular infeasmay determined by Inovio, equal to (a) onédfdiis annual salary for the year prior to
the date of termination, and (b) his bonus basethe@mmount of such bonus most recently paid tq pimrated from January 1 of the year of
termination through date of termination.
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Our executive officers participate, whitey are employees, in all employee benefits maiathby Inovio, including any group disability
plan, insurance plan, medical and dental plansaa@entitled to reimbursement of all reasonabteofypocket Inovio-related expenses.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth the Compargduity compensation plan information as of Decan®i, 2008:

Number of Weighted-

securities to be average Number of securities
exercise
issued upon price of remaining available
exercise of outstanding for future issuance
outstanding under equity
Plan options options compensation plans
Equity compensation plans approved by securityérg|
2007 Omnibus Incentive Pl 1,465,81: $ 0.9C 42,93¢
Amended 2000 Stock Option PI 3,136,15. 3.0¢€ —
1997 Stock Option Pla 14,75( 15.5¢ —
4,616,71. $ 2.4Z 42,93¢

2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan

The following summary of the Inovio Biomedi Corporation 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan (thiariB, for which option awards were
granted during 2008 is qualified in its entiretythe specific language of the Plan, a copy of widdhcorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.:
our Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on K4y2007, and available to any stockholder upguest to Peter Kies, by phone at
(858) 597-6006, fax at (858) 597-0451, emapkies@Inovio.comor mail at 11494 Sorrento Valley Rd., San Dieg4,92121-1318.

General. The Plan provides for the grant of IncentivecBtOptions ("ISOs") and Nonstatutory Stock Opti¢idSOs"). As of March 2,
2009, we had outstanding options under the Planutohase an aggregate of 1,392,062 shares of aunoa stock at per share exercise prices
ranging from $0.25 to $3.75.

Shares subject tothe Plan.  In the event of any stock dividend, stock spéterse stock split, recapitalization, combiratio
reclassification, or similar change in the capitalicture of Inovio, appropriate adjustments wdllrhade to the shares subject to the Plan, and t
outstanding options. To the extent any outstandptgn under the Plan expires or terminates paaxercise in full or if Inovio repurchases
shares issued upon exercise of an option, the slbhmmmon stock for which that option is not eiszd or the repurchased shares are
returned to the Plan and will again be availabteédsuance under the Plan.

Administration. The Compensation Committee of the Board adngirégshe Plan. All option grants are approved leyGompensation
Committee, except that our Chief Executive Offiaad/or Chairman of the Board of Directors may approption grants to persons below the
level of Vice President of Inovio to a maximum ividual grant of 50,000 options. With respect to plaeticipation of individuals whose
transactions in Inovio's equity securities are sabfo Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Adi9#4, the Plan must be administered in
compliance with the requirements, if any, of Ruld-13 under the Exchange Act. Subject to the prowisiof the Plan, the Compensation
Committee determines the persons to whom optioms$oabe granted, the number of shares to be covgredch option, whether an option i
be an ISO or a NSO, the terms of vesting and esadity of each option, including the effect themeof an optionee's termination of service,
the type of consideration to be paid to Inovio upaarcise of an option, the duration of each optéod
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all other terms and conditions of the options. Adawgly, future grants under the Plan are not ygéeninable.

Eligibility.  Generally, all employees, directors and coastit of Inovio or of any present or future parergubsidiary corporations of
Inovio are eligible to participate in the Plan.addition, the Plan also permits the grant of oitmprospective employees, consultants and
directors in connection with written offers of emyinent or engagement. Any person eligible undePiaa may be granted a NSO. However,
only employees may be granted ISOs.

Terms and conditions of options.  Each option granted under the Plan is evidebgegl written agreement between Inovio and the
optionee specifying the number of shares subjetttd@ption and the other terms and condition®efdption, consistent with the requirements
of the Plan. The exercise price per share mustl eqlast the fair market value of a share of ln@vwcommon stock on the date of grant of the
stock option. The exercise price of any ISO gramtea person who at the time of grant owns stodsessing more than 10% of the total
combined voting power of all classes of stock a@iile or any parent or subsidiary corporation ofvieg referred to as a 10% Stockholder, n
be at least 110% of the fair market value of asladiinovio's common stock on the date of grant.

Generally, the exercise price may be paickish, by check, or in cash equivalent, by tenflshares of Inovio's common stock owned by
the optionee having a fair market value not leas e exercise price, by the assignment of thegas of a sale or a loan with respect to ¢
or all of the shares of common stock being acquingsh the exercise of the option, by means of an®ory note, by any lawful method
approved by the board or by any combination ofégh&@he Compensation Committee may neverthelesictebe forms of payment permitted
in connection with any option grant.

The Compensation Committee will specify wioptions granted under the Plan will become egalde and vested. Shares subject to
options generally vest and become exercisablestaliments, subject to the optionee's continued@mnpent or service or achievement of
specified milestones.

Changein control.  Upon a change in control, as defined in theflee Compensation Committee may arrange for¢haigng or
successor corporation to assume or substitute pdans for the options outstanding under the Planthe extent that the options outstanding
under the Plan are not assumed, substituted faxencised prior to such event, generally, they teiiminate.

Termination or amendment.  Unless sooner terminated, no 1ISOs may be gitamtder the Plan after July 30, 2010. The Board may
terminate or amend the Plan at any time, but, ner@iment may adversely affect an outstanding optitimout the consent of the optionee,
unless the amendment is required to preserve tenGpstatus as an ISO or is necessary to comiptyamy applicable law.

Federal Income Tax Consequences of the 2007 Omnibucentive Plan

The following summary is intended only agemeral guide as to the United States federahiectax consequences under current law of
participation in the Plan and does not attemptescdbe all possible federal or other tax consegeenf such participation or tax consequences
based on particular circumstances.

ISOs.  An optionee recognizes no taxable income foula income tax purposes as the result of thetgnaexercise of an ISO
qualifying under Section 422 of the Internal Reve@ode of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). Optiowbkesdo not dispose of their shares for
two years following the date the option was gramedithin one year following the exercise of thgion will normally recognize a long-term
capital gain or loss equal to the difference, i, dretween the sale price and the purchase priteecthares. If an optionee satisfies such
holding periods upon a sale of the shares, Inovilo w
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not be entitled to any deduction for federal incamepurposes. If an optionee disposes of sharsniivo years after the date of grant or
within one year from the date of exercise, refeteeds a disqualifying disposition, the differefiedween the fair market value of the shares on
the exercise date, and the option exercise primetorexceed the gain realized on the sale if thpasition is a transaction with respect to which
a loss, if sustained, would be recognized, wiltdeed as ordinary income at the time of dispositimy gain in excess of that amount will be a
capital gain. If a loss is recognized, there wdlro ordinary income, and such loss will be a ehfiss. A capital gain or loss will be long-term
if the optionee's holding period is more than 12the. Generally, for federal income tax purposesyio should be able to deduct any ordir
income recognized by the optionee upon the disfyiradi disposition of the shares, except to the mixtiee deduction is limited by applicable
provisions of the Code or the regulations thereunde

The difference between the option exerpisee and the fair market value of the shares erettercise date of an ISO is an adjustment in
computing the optionee's alternative minimum tagabtome and may be subject to an alternative mimrtax which is paid if the tax excee
the regular tax for the year. Special rules mayyapjith respect to certain subsequent sales oftfages in a disqualifying disposition, certain
basis adjustments for purposes of computing tiegraitive minimum taxable income on a subsequeatafahe shares and certain tax credits
that may arise with respect to optionees subjetttd@lternative minimum tax.

NSOs. Options not designated or qualifying as ISOslvd NSOs. NSOs have no special tax status. Aioiopé generally recognizes
taxable income as the result of the grant of sucbpion. Upon exercise of a NSO, the optionee adismmecognizes ordinary income in an
amount equal to the difference between the opti@nogse price and the fair market value of the eb@n the exercise date. If the optionee |
employee, the ordinary income generally is sulti@etithholding of income and employment taxes. Ugfeasale of stock acquired by the
exercise of a NSO, any gain or loss, based oniffezehce between the sale price and the fair ntar&leie on the exercise date, will be taxe
capital gain or loss. A capital gain or loss wil long-term if the optionee's holding period is entiran 12 months. No tax deduction is
available to Inovio with respect to the grant &0 or the sale of the stock acquired pursuartabgrant. Inovio generally should be entitled
to a deduction equal to the amount of ordinary ineagecognized by the optionee as a result of thecese of a NSO, except to the extent the
deduction is limited by applicable provisions o tBode or the regulations thereunder.

401(k) Plan

Inovio has in place a contributory retiregrplan (the "401(k) Plan”) for all full time emplees age 21 and older with at least 12 mont
service, which is designed to be a tax deferred placcordance with the provisions of Section &pbf the Code. The 401(k) Plan provides
that each participant may contribute up to 15%iefn her salary and Inovio may make a contribuéqoal to a percentage of salary
contributed by the participant to his or her planaunt at the end of each plan year. Under theld®lan, employees may elect to enroll on
January 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1 of anyhptaar, provided that they have been employed byidnfor at least three months. Subject to
the rules for maintaining the tax status of the(kpPlan, an additional contribution by Inovio mag made at Inovio's discretion.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth informatiaa of March 16, 2009, with respect to the bendfmienership of Inovio's common stock by
(i) each person known to Inovio to be the benefficieners of more than 5% of its common stock,d@xh of Inovio's directors and hominees
for director, (iii) each of Inovio's executive aféirs, and (iv) all of Inovio's directors and exéaibfficers as a group.
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Beneficial ownership is determined in adesrce with the rules of the SEC. In computing thmber of shares beneficially owned by a
stockholder and the percentage of ownership ofdteakholder, shares of common stock underlyingeshaf convertible preferred stock,
options or warrants held by that stockholder thatcnvertible or exercisable, as the case mawitiein 60 days of March 16, 2009 are
included. Those shares, however, are not deemsthading for the purpose of computing the percentagnership of any other person. Each
stockholder's percentage of ownership in the falgvtable is based upon 44,041,800 shares of Inmuiomon stock outstanding as of
March 16, 2009.

Amount and Nature of

Beneficial Ownership of Percent of Class o
Beneficial Owner of Shares of Common Stock(1)(: Shares of Common Stoc ~ Shares of Common Stoc
5% Stockholders(3)
None
Directors, Director Nominees and Executive Office
Avtar Dhillon(4) 1,164,35 2.5¢%
James L. Heppell(: 226,51¢ *
Riaz Bandali(6 86,65" *
Simon X. Benito(7 99,98: *
Tazdin Esmail(8 150,72: *
Robert W. Rieder(9 34,99¢ *
Stephen Rietiker(1( 330,00( *
Patrick Gan(11 9,99¢ *
Peter Kies(12 235,20: *
Michael Fons(13 121,27! *
Punit Dhillon(14) 181,21 *
All executive officers and directors as a group({tl) person: 2,640,92! 5.92%

* Less than 1%

(1)  This table is based upon information supplied Hicefs, directors and principal stockholders. Exapshown otherwise in the tak
the address of each stockholder listed is in chheawio at 11494 Sorrento Valley Rd., San Diegalifornia 92121-1318.

2) Except as otherwise indicated in the footnotedisftable and pursuant to applicable community ergplaws, the persons named in
table have sole voting and investment power witipeet to all shares of common stock. Beneficial@nship is determined in
accordance with the rules of the SEC and geneiratlydes voting or investment power with respecieourities.

3) To Inovio's knowledge, as of March 16, 2009, navitial or group beneficiary held 5% or more ofdtsmmon stock.

4) Includes 1,029 shares underlying warrants thataneertible or exercisable, respectively, withindgd's of March 16, 2009, al
1,024,996 shares of common stock issuable pursaamtions exercisable within 60 days of March 2@09.

(5) Includes 1,029 shares underlying warrants thatangertible or exercisable, respectively, withind&ys of March 16, 2009, and
212,809 shares of common stock issuable pursuanitions exercisable within 60 days of March 1620
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(6) Includes 2,941 shares underlying Series C Pref@teck and 1,029 shares underlying warrants tleat@anvertible or exercisable,
respectively, within 60 days of March 16, 2009, 82¢b00 shares of common stock issuable pursuanitions exercisable within
60 days of March 16, 2009.

©) Includes 1,544 shares underlying warrants thatangertible or exercisable, respectively, withindgys of March 16, 2009, and 91,:
shares of common stock issuable pursuant to opérescisable within 60 days of March 16, 2009.

(8) Includes 1,029 shares underlying warrants thataneertible or exercisable, respectively, withindgy/s of March 16, 2009, and
141,250 shares of common stock issuable pursuanptions exercisable within 60 days of March 18020

9) Includes 34,999 shares of common stock issuabkupat to options exercisable within 60 days of Mak6, 2009
(10) Includes 30,000 shares of common stock issuabkupat to options exercisable within 60 days of Mak6, 2009.
(11) Includes 9,999 shares of common stock issuableipotgo options exercisable within 60 days of Mat6h2009.

(12) Includes 514 shares underlying warrants that angertible or exercisable, respectively, within @y of March 16, 2009, and 233,1
shares of common stock issuable pursuant to opéirescisable within 60 days of March 16, 2009.

(23) Includes 121,250 shares of common stock issualskupnt to options exercisable within 60 days of éhat6, 2009.

(14) Includes 1,029 shares underlying warrants thatameertible or exercisable, respectively, withindéd's of March 16, 2009, and
180,000 shares of common stock issuable pursuantions exercisable within 60 days of March 18020

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS
Procedures for Approval of Related Party Transactims

Our executive officers, directors and pipat stockholders, including their immediate famitfembers and affiliates, are prohibited from
entering into a related party transaction with utheut the prior consent of our Board of Directdfée have an unwritten policy that any req
for us to enter into a transaction with an exeautfficer, director, principal stockholder or arfysach persons' immediate family members or
affiliates in which the amount involved exceeds@G0R0 must first be presented to our Board of Diexcfor review, consideration and
approval. In approving or rejecting the proposectament, our Board of Directors will consider tekevant facts and circumstances available
and deemed relevant, including, but not limitedtte, risks, costs, and benefits to the Companytettms of the transactions, the availability of
other sources for comparable services or prodaot, if applicable, the impact on director indeparae. Our Board of Directors shall only
approve those agreements that, in light of knoweueanstances, are in, or are not inconsistent with best interests, as determined in good
faith by the Board. We currently have no relatedypransactions requiring such approval.

Director Independence
See Item 10 "Directors, Executive Officaral Corporate Governance” for a discussion of bosthber independence.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FIRM FEES

During the years ended December 31, 2088807, Inovio retained Ernst & Young LLP to prowiservices as follows:

Year Audit Fees  Tax Fees  Total Fees
2008 $568,53: $51,83( $620,36:
2007 $583,72: $98,20( $681,92:

Audit Fees.  Audit fees include fees for the audit of Indsiannual consolidated financial statements arslffeethe review of Inovio's
interim financial statements. Audit fees also idgwther services that generally only the independeditor can reasonably provide, including
comfort letters, statutory audits, attest serviedsl consents and assistance with and review afrdents filed with the SEC.

Tax Fees. Tax fees include fees for services performethkyprofessional staff in the tax department ofSE& Young LLP except for
those tax services that could be classified ag andiudit-related services. These include tax danpe and various tax consultation fees.

None of the fees listed above were apprdyethe Audit Committee in reliance on a waivemfrpre-approval under Rule 2-01(c)(7)(i)(C)
of Regulation S-X.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedurs

The Audit Committee on an annual basisawsiaudit and non-audit services performed byrtdependent registered public accounting
firm for such services. The Audit Committee mayogse-approve particular services on a case-by4masis. All audit and non-audit services
are pre-approved by the Audit Committee, which aers, among other things, the possible effechefgerformance of such services on the
accounting firm's independence. The Audit Commiltag considered the role of Ernst & Young LLP iayiding services to Inovio for the
year ended December 31, 2008 and has concludedutiatservices are compatible with Ernst & YoundPlslindependence as Inovi
independent registered public accounting firm.

The Audit Committee will only approve thaservices that would not impair the independendb@independent registered public
accounting firm and which are consistent with thies of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Under this policy, the Audit Committee neeat least annually to review and where appropepfove the audit and non-audit services to
be performed by Inovio's independent registeredipalscounting firm. Any subsequent requests toehtire independent registered public
accounting firm perform any additional services thessubmitted in writing to the Audit Committee ttne Chief Financial Officer, together
with the independent registered public accounting,fwhich written request must include an affirfoatfrom each that the requested services
are consistent with the Securities and Exchangeriegion and Public Company Accounting Oversightrtzarules on auditor independence.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES
1. Financial Statemen
Consolidated financial statements required to leel thereunder are indexed on Page F-2 hereof.
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2. Financial Statement Schedules

Schedules not listed herein have been edliecause the information required to be set tbein is not applicable or is included in the
Financial Statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits
The following exhibits are filed as parttbfs annual report on Form 10-K:

Ezmggr Description of Document
2.1# Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of MerganB Among Inovio Biomedical Corporation, Inoviaduisition, LLC, anc
VGX Pharmaceuticals, Inc. dated December 5, 2088uded a®\nnex Ato the registrant's Registration Statement on Fo##).
(File No. 33:-156035), filed on January 23, 200

3.1(8) Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatinocofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of theisggnt's Registration Statement
on Form &3 (File No. 33-108752) filed on September 12, 20C

(b) Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restatetifidate of Incorporation as filed with the DelargaSecretary of State on
September 10, 2004 (incorporated by reference bobix3.1 of the registrant's Current Report onrR@-K filed September 16,
2004).

(¢) Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Rest@rtificate of Incorporation as filed with the |Beare Secretary of State on
March 31, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Extiti of the registrant's Current Report on Fo-K filed on April 4, 2005)

3.2(8) Certificate of Incorporation of Inovio AcquisitidBorporation dated June 23, 2008 (incorporated feyeace to Exhibit 3.2(a) of
registrant's initial registration statement on F@&-4 (File No. 33-156035) on December 10, 200

(b) Certificate of Conversion of Inovio Acquisition Guration to Inovio Acquisition, LLC dated Octobek, 2008 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2(b) of registrant’s initiegistration statement on Forr-4 (File No. 33-156035) on December 10, 200

(€) Certificate of Formation of Inovio Acquisition, LL@ated October 31, 2008 (incorporated by referémxhibit 3.2(c) of registrant
initial registration statement on Forr-4 (File No. 33-156035) on December 10, 200

3.2(a) Certificate of Designations, Rights and PrefererfeSeries C Convertible Preferred Stock of Regigtfincorporated by reference
Exhibit 3.3 of the registrant's Registration Stageton Form -3 filed on June 21, 2004

(b) Certificate of Decrease of Shares of Series C Cativel Convertible Preferred Stock of Registrantgiporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.4 of the registrant's Registration Stageton Form -3 filed on June 21, 2004

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Inovio Biomedicalp@aation, as amended through November 30, 20@bi(oorated by referen
to Exhibit 3.2 of the registrant’s Forr-K filed on December 6, 2007

3.5 Operating Agreement of Inovio Acquisition, LLC, ddtOctober 31, 2008 (incorporated by referencextold 3.5 of registrant's
initial registration statement on Forr-4 (File No. 33-156035) on December 10, 200

82




Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number Description of Document
4.1  Amended 2000 Stock Option Plan, as amended bBdlked of Directors through March 6, 2006 with apals by Stockholders
through May 5, 2006 (incorporated by referencesxhikit 4.1 of the registrant's Registration Stataten Form S-8 filed on July 28,
2006).
4.2 Forms of Incentive and Nonstatutory Stock Optiormefgnents used in connection with the 2000 Stocko®jtlan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the registrant's Reegi®on Statement on Forn-4/A (File No. 33:-58168) filed on April 5, 2001
4.37 Warrant to Purchase Common Stock, dated Septensh@000 by and between the Registrant and the sityeof South Florida
Research Foundation (incorporated by referencebibi 10.6 of the registrant's Form-Q filed on November 9, 200C
44T Warrant to Purchase Common Stock, dated Septensh@000 by and between the Registrant and Dr. RicBébert (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the registrant'srffrd.(-Q filed on November 9, 200C
45T Warrant to Purchase Common Stock, dated Septensh@000 by and between the Registrant and Dr. RicHaller (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of the registrant'srffrd.(-Q filed on November 9, 200C
4.6t Warrant to Purchase Common Stock, dated Septensh@000 by and between the Registrant and Dr. Markszeski (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the registrant'srfrd.(-Q filed on November 9, 200C
4.7 Investors Rights Agreement, dated July 14, 2008yden the Registrant and the Purchasers listedcbedsile 1 thereto (incorporat
by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the registrant's iRegtion Statement on Forn-3 (File No. 33-108752) filed on September 12, 20(
4.8 Specimen Common Stock certificate (incorporateddbgrence to Exhibit 4.8 of the registrant's Regtgin Statement on Form S-3
(File No. 33:-108752) filed on September 12, 20C
4.9 Investor Rights Agreement dated as of May 10, 2804nd between the registrant and the purchasgicabed on the schedule
thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.ghe registrant's Registration Statement on Fo-3 filed on June 21, 2004
4.1C Form of Series C Common Stock Purchase Warrantidst@f May 10, 2004 by and between the registadtthe purchasers
indicated on the schedule thereto (incorporatecefsrence to Exhibit 4.3 of the registrant's Regtgin Statement on Form S-3 filed
on June 21, 2004
4.11 Registration Rights Agreement dated December 305 20y and among the registrant and the investamsaad on the signature pages
thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 98.8egistrant's Form 8-K filed with the Securiteasd Exchange Commission on
January 6, 2006
4.1z Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated asmtegber 15, 2006 by and between the registraneéacid of the purchasers
listed on Schedule 1 to the Securities Purchaseekgent (Exhibit 10.23 herein) (incorporated by nexfee to Exhibit 4.3 of the
registrant's Current Report on Fori-K filed on September 20, 200¢
4.1 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of Septetie2006 by and among registrant and certain tovendicated on a schedule

thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16f.the registrant's Quarterly Report on Forr-Q filed on November 9, 200€
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Exhibit
Number Description of Document

4.14 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant to be bgethd between the registrant and each of the paeeh listed on Schedule 1 to
the Securities Purchase and Exchange AgreemeniifE%D.25 herein) (incorporated by reference tdibit 4.24 of the registrant's
Annual Report on Form -K filed on March 16, 2007

4.15% First Amended and Restated Inovio Biomedical Caxpon 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporateddsgrence to Exhibit 4.2 «
the registrant's Registration Statement on Fc-8 filed on May 9, 2008}

4.1€* Form of Restricted Stock Award Grants under the720@nibus Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated bgnefice to Exhibit 4.3 to the
Registrant's Registration Statement on Fo-8 filed on May 14, 2007

4.17t Form of Incentive and No@ualified Stock Option Grants under the 2007 OmsiBtock Incentive Plan (incorporated by referen
Exhibit 4.4 to the Registrant's Registration Staetron Form S-8 filed with the Securities and ExgeCommission on May 14,
2007).

10.1 Lease Agreement by and between the registrant axds\Sorrento Glen LLC dated August 26, 1999 (iporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.15 of the registrant's Registration &ta¢ént on Form-1, as amended (File No. ¢-88427), filed on October 5, 199¢

10.2T License Agreement dated September 20, 2000 by emeebn the registrant and the University of Soudhidfa Research
Foundation, Inc. (incorporated by reference to BitHi0.5 of the registrant's Form-Q filed on November 9, 200C

10.2  Asset Purchase Agreement by and among the RedigBanetronics, Inc., a subsidiary of the Regidtrand Harvard
Bioscience, Inc. dated December 24, 2002 (incotpdrhy reference to Exhibit A to the registrant&ibitive Proxy Statement filed
on January 7, 2003

10.4 Preferred Stock and Warrant Purchase Agreemend datef May 10, 2004 by and between the registadtthe purchasers indica
on the schedule thereto (incorporated by referéméshibit 4.1 of the registrant's Registrationt&taent on Form S-3 filed on
June 21, 2004

10.5T  Non-Exclusive License and Research Collaboration Apere dated as of May 21, 2004 by and among thstregt and
Merck & Co., Inc. and Genetronics, Inc., a subsidi the registrant (incorporated by referenc&xbibit 10.1 to the Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q filed on August 13, 2004

10.€ Lease Agreement by and between the registrant amdr@o Centre Tenancy in Common dated Novembe2@®4 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 of the registrant's AalrfReport of Form 10-K for the year ended Decen®ier2004, filed on March 15,
2005).

10.7 Lease Amendment #3 by and between the registrahiarus Sorrento Glen LLC dated January 21, 20@(porated by reference
to Exhibit 10.17 of the registrant's Annual RepafrEorm 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed omadd5, 2005)

10.6  Stock Purchase Agreement dated January 25, 20@8dgmong the registrant, Inovio AS and the Shadeh® of Inovio AS

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to therént Report on Form-K filed on January 31, 200%
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Exhibit
Number Description of Document
10.¢  Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of Deaelbb@005, among registrant and each purchasetifidel on the signature pages

thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 98.1he registrant's Report of Forr-K, filed on January 6, 200€

10.1C License Agreement dated September 15, 2006 betreggsirant and Inovio Asia Pte. Ltd. (incorporatsdreferenced to Exhibit 10
to registrant's Quarterly Report on Forn-Q filed on November 9, 200€

10.11 Securities Purchase Agreement dated Septembef@6,ietween registrant and purchasers named th@reorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 of the registrant's Current Repartorm &K filed on September 20, 200¢

10.12  Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement, amgldinSecurities Purchase Agreement filed as ExhibR7 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the registrant's CuriReport on Form-K filed on October 16, 2006

10.17  Securities Purchase and Exchange Agreement betwgistrant and Inovio Asia Pte. Ltd. and the puselsa named therein, dated
September 15, 2006 (incorporated by referencechibi 10.2 to registrant's Quarterly Report onadr0-Q filed on November 9,
2006).

10.1¢ Preferred Exchange Agreement dated September 05, [®8ween registrant and certain holders of S€&iPseferred Stock
(incorporated by referenced to Exhibit 4.4 of thgistrant's Registration Statement on Fo-3, filed January 19, 2007

10.1t  Securities Purchase Agreement dated May 14, 20@&fing to the Direct Financing between registrard purchasers named therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of thgisgant's Current Report on Fort-K, filed May 16, 2007)

10.1¢ Letter Agreement Dated August 3, 2007 between Regisand Asia Life Sciences Venture Consulting (irecorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the registrant's CuriReport on Form-K filed August 6, 2007)

10.17 Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (incotedray reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the registraBtsrent Report on Form 8-K
filed August 6, 2007)

10.1¢+ Employment Agreement dated August 31, 2007 by ateiéen the registrant and Dr. Michael Fons (incafeal by reference to
Exhibit 99.2 of the registrant's Current Reportamm ¢-K/A filed September 10, 2007

10.1¢* Employment Agreement for Punit Dhillon dated Malléh 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 98.the registrant's Current
Report on Form -K/A, filed March 14, 2008)

10.2C* Consulting Agreement dated May 3, 2008 by and betmietmar Rabussay and Genetronics, Inc. (incatpdrby reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the registrant's Current Reportramm ¢-K, filed May 7, 2008)

10.21+ Addendum to P. Kies Employment Agreement, dateg 2u2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibitl16f. the registrant's
Current Report on Form-K, filed July 8, 2008)

10.2:* Form of Employment Agreement by and between thistregpt and Dr. Michael Fons, for use effectiveyampon closing of the

Merger (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10a2Ziled with the registrant's registration statatran Form S-4 (File No. 333-
156035) on December 10, 200
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Ezmggr Description of Document
10.2:+ Form of Employment Agreement by and between ¢igéstrant and Punit Dhillon, for use effective oalyon closing of the Merger
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 agifikdth the registrant's registration statement om#S-4 (File No. 333-156035) on
December 10, 2008

10.2¢  Form of Employment Agreement by and between thistragt and Peter Kies, effective only upon closifithe Merger
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 agifikdth the registrant's registration statement om¥#S-4 (File No. 333-156035) on
December 10, 2008

10.25% Form of Employment Agreement by and between thistraagt and Dr. Avtar Dhillon, for use effectivelpmpon closing of the
Merger (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10a25iled with the registrant's registration stataten Form S-4 (File No. 333-
156035) on December 10, 200

14.1 Inovio Biomedical Corporation Code of Ethics fom&g Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit1 of the registrant's Annt
Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, filed omdid5, 2005)

21.1 Subsidiaries of the registral

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfing.

24.1 Power of Attorney (included on signature pay

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuié&ecurities Exchange Act Rule -14(a).
31.z Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursugecurities Exchange Act Rule -14(a).

32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adbptarsuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

# The registrant hereby agrees to furnish the staffa confidential basis, a supplemental copy of@nitted schedule upon the staff's
request.

+ Designates management contract, compensatory pemamgement.

T We have applied with the Secretary of the Secsgriigd Exchange Commission for confidential treatroéoertain information

pursuant to Rule 24b-2 of the Securities ExchangteoA1934. We have filed separately with our agadion a copy of the exhibit
including all confidential portions, which may bede available for public inspection pending theuiies and Exchange
Commission's review of the application in accoragawith Rule 24b-2.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduolp authorized on March 31, 2009.

Inovio Biomedical Corporation

By: /s/ AVTAR DHILLON

Avtar Dhillon
President and Chief Executive Offic

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, thatkeperson whose signature appears below constantsppoints Avtar Dhillon
and Peter Kies, and each of them severally, higeotrue and lawful attorney-in-fact with powersafbstitution and resubstitution to sign in his
or her name, place and stead, in any and all cégmdio do any and all things and execute anyadlridstruments that such attorney may deem
necessary or advisable under the Securities Exehangof 1934 and any rules, regulations and remoénts of the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission in connection with the Annughétt on Form 10-K and any and all amendments dieastfully for all intents and
purposes as he or she might or could do in peesuhhereby ratifies and confirms all said attorAey&ct and agents, each acting alone, and
his or her substitute or substitutes, may lawfdityor cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seéeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the Registrant and in the capacities and oré#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ AVTAR DHILLON President, Chief Executive Offic

(Principal Executive Officer), Direct

March 31, 200

Avtar Dhillon
/s/ PETER KIES Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer and March 31, 200
Peter Kies Principal Financial Officer
/sl JAMES L. HEPPELL
Director March 31, 200
James L. Heppe
/sl RIAZ BANDALI
Director March 31, 200
Riaz Bandal
/sl TAZDIN ESMAIL
Director March 31, 200

Tazdin Esmai
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Signature

/s/ SIMON X. BENITO

Simon X. Benitc

/s/ ROBERT W. RIEDER

Robert W. Riede

/s/ STEPHEN RIETIKER

Stephen Rietike

/sl PATRICK GAN

Patrick Gar

Title

Director

Director

Director

Director
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March 31, 200

March 31, 200

March 31, 200

March 31, 200
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INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORPORATION

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourf&imm F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,@&t®ecember 31, 20! F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations for eacheofears ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equityfmh of the years ended December 31, 2008, 2aD2G0t F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheoyéars ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-8

F-1




Table of Contents

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Inovio Biomedical Corporation

We have audited the accompanying cons@itbtlance sheets of Inovio Biomedical Corporati®of December 31, 2008 and 2007 and
the related consolidated statements of operatgioskholders' equity and cash flows for each otttinee years in the period ended
December 31, 2008. These financial statementdareesponsibility of the Company's management.régponsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €igat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanatdtements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the consolidated financial
position of Inovio Biomedical Corporation at Deceeni831, 2008 and 2007 and the consolidated restits operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended Dece&ihe008, in conformity with U.S. generally actspaccounting principles.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF
San Diego, California
March 27, 200¢

F-2




Table of Contents

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and equivalen

Shor-term investment

Accounts receivabl

Prepaid expenses and other current a

Total current assets
Long-term investment
Auction rate security right
Fixed assets, ni
Intangible assets, n
Goodwill

Other asset

Total assets

Inovio Biomedical Corporation

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expel
Accrued clinical trial expense¢

Line of credit

Common stock warran

Deferred revenu

Deferred ren

Total current liabilities

Deferred revenue, net of current port
Deferred rent, net of current porti
Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci

Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stoc—par value $0.001; Authorized shares: 10,000,080eid and outstanding: 71 and 113,38

December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, resplc

Common stock—par value $0.001; Authorized shar@8;®0,000, issued and outstanding: 44,116,800
44,023,050 at December 31, 2008 and 43,870,98943,84.4,739 at December 31, 2007, respecti

Additional paic-in capital

Receivables from stockholde
Accumulated defici

Accumulated other comprehensive inca
Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

As of December 31,

2008

2007

14,115,28 $ 10,250,92
—  16,999,60
671,18 1,139,96
477,28t 613,65¢
15,263,75  29,004,15
9,169,47' —
4,281,49. —
353,80 401,72"
5,850,541 6,186,43
3,900,71: 3,900,71:
167,25( 282,00(
38,987,02 $ 39,775,02
1,367,300 $ 1,807,30!
399,91¢ 573,76
12,109,42 —
224.,58: 367,07:
523,54 544,41
84,81 61,94¢
14,709,58 3,354,49!
4,269,15; 4,335,801
14,89¢ 99,71:
887,25( 950,25(
19,880,88 8,740,26
— 112
44,02: 43,81
171,868,91  170,730,62
— (50,000)
(152,812,94) (139,847,32)
6,15¢ 157,53
19,106,14  31,034,75

$ 38,987,02 $ 39,775,02

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Inovio Biomedical Corporation

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Revenue:
License fee and milestone payme $ 791,40 $ 2,793,470 $ 1,337,10
Revenue under collaborative research and develdpanemgement 1,077,96 1,854,30: 962,20°
Grants and miscellaneous revel 228,26« 159,94¢ 1,168,861
Total revenue 2,097,63. 4,807,72! 3,468,17!
Operating expenses
Research and developm:e 5,750,49. 9,625,94 8,509,78!
General and administrati\ 10,005,60 11,080,20 8,304,58
Total operating expense: 15,756,09 20,706,14 16,814,37
Loss from operations (13,658,46) (15,898,42) (13,346,19)
Other income, ne 49,00¢ 3,421,58! 320, 70¢
Interest income, ne 643,83¢ 1,272,39 681,54¢
Net loss (12,965,62) (11,204,44) (12,343,94)
Imputed and declared dividends on preferred s — (23,33Y) (2,005,66)
Net loss attributable to common stockholder: $(12,965,62) $(11,227,77) $(14,349,60)
Amounts per common shar—basic and diluted:
Net loss $ 0.30) $ (0.27) % (0.40)
Imputed and declared dividends on preferred s — — (0.0¢)
Net loss attributable to common stockholder: $ (0.30) $ (0.27) $ (0.4¢)

Weighted average number of common shares outstandj—basic and dilutec ~ 43,914,00 41,493,41 31,511,68

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Inovio Biomedical Corporation

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance at December 31, 2C

Exercise of stock options for ca

Issuance of common stock for patents and othets

Issuance of stockholder note receive

Issuance of common stock for cash, net of issuaosts of
$1,161,07(

Issuance of common stock for consulting serv

Conversions of preferred stock to common si

Stocl-based compensatic

Imputed and declared dividen

Comprehensive los
Net loss attributable to common stockholc
Foreign currency translation ge

Total comprehensive lo:

Balance at December 31, 2C
Exercise of stock options for ca
Exercise of warrants for ca:
Cashless exercise of warra
Conversions of preferred stock to common st
Conversions of ordinary shares to common s
Cash receipt towards stockholder notes receiv
Issuance of common stock for consulting serv
Issuance of common stock for cash, net of issuaosts of $110,31
Stocl-based compensatic
Comprehensive los
Net loss attributable to common stockholc
Unrealized gain on investmer
Foreign currency translation ge

Total comprehensive lo:
Balance at December 31, 2C

Preferred stock

Common stock

Accumulated

other Total

Additional Receivables Accumulated Comprehensive stockholders
Number Number paid-in From

of shares Amount of shares Amount  capital  stockholders deficit (loss) income equity
1,562,42. 1,56z 29,468,75 29,46¢ 137,739,95 — (114,269,94) (30,29%) 23,470,74
— — 148,62¢ 14¢ 251,28( — — — 251,42¢
— — 86,95¢ 87 128,83¢ — — — 128,92:
— — — — 86,03( (86,03() — — —
— — 4,074,006 4,07¢ 5,058,93. — — — 5,063,00!
— — 49,26 48 99,95: — — — 100,00(
(534,35) (534 1,763,98. 1,76¢ (1,230 — — — —
— — 45,000 45 1,546,66: — — — 1,546,70
— — 2,871 8 1,873,31 — — — 1,873,32
— — — — — —  (14,349,60) — (14,349,60)
— — — — — — — 67,34( 67,34(
— — — — — — — — (14,282,26)
1,028,06' $ 1,02¢ 35,639,52 $35,63¢ $146,783,73 $ (86,03()$(128,619,54) $ 37,04t $ 18,151,86
— — 94,56 94 218,40° — — — 218,50:
— — 3,08: 3 7,394 — — — 7,397
— — 38,097 38 (38) — — — —
(914,68)  (91F) 960,23t 961 (46) — — — —
— — 2,201,64. 2,20 5,347,79: — — — 5,349,99!
— — — — — 36,03( — — 36,03(
— — 263,75( 264 610,76: — — — 611,02¢
— — 4,595,09. 4,59t 16,059,82 — — — 16,064,42
— — 18,75( 18 1,702,791 — — — 1,702,80!
— — — — — —  (11,227,77) —  (11,227,77)
_ — — — — — — 9,94¢ 9,94¢
— — — — — — — 110,54: 110,54:
— — — — — — — —  (11,107,29)
113,38: $ 11Z 43,814,73 $43,81f $170,730,62 $ (50,000$(139,847,32) $ 157,53: $ 31,034,75

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Inovio Biomedical Corporation

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (Co ntinued)

Balance at December 31, 20
Exercise of stock options for ca
Conversions of preferred stock to common st
Reserve for stockholder note receiva
Issuance of common stock for consulting sen
Stocl-based compensatic
Comprehensive los
Net loss attributable to common stockholc
Unrealized loss on investmer
Foreign currency translation lo

Total comprehensive lo:
Balance at December 31, 20

Preferred stock

Common stock

Accumulated

other Total

Additional Receivables Accumulated Comprehensive stockholders
Number Number paid-in From

of shares Amount of shares Amount  capital  stockholders deficit (loss) income equity
113,38: $ 11Z 43,814,73 $43,81f $170,730,62 $ (50,000)$(139,847,32) $ 157,53: $ 31,034,75
— — 1,25( 1 1,087 — — — 1,08¢
(113,31) (119 113,31 11z — — — — —
— — — — — 50,00( — — 50,00(
— — 56,25( 55 46,52( — — — 46,57¢
— — 37,50( 38 1,090,68! — — — 1,090,72.
— — — — — —  (12,965,62) —  (12,965,62)
— — — — — — — (9,94%) (9,945
— — — — — — — (141,42) (141,42)
— — — — — — — — (13,116,99)
71 — 44,023,05 $44,02: $171,868,91 — $(152,812,94) $ 6,15¢ $ 19,106,14

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Inovio Biomedical Corporation

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activitie!

Depreciatior

Amortization of intangible asse

Change in value of common stock warre

Unrealized loss on trading securit

Recognition of auction rate securities rig

Stoclk-based compensatic

Compensation for services paid in common s!

Amortization of deferred tax liabilitie

Deferred ren

Impairment of long term investmer

Loss on disposal of fixed ass!

Realization of loss carryforwart

Revenue from conversion of note paye

Accretion of discount on availal-for-sale securitie
Changes in operating assets and liabilit

Accounts receivabl

Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Accounts payable and accrued expel

Deferred revenu

Net cash used in operating activitie

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of lor-term investment
Proceeds from lor-term investment
Purchases of capital ass
Capitalization of patents and other as:

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitie
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net oarssicost

Proceeds from line of crec

Repayment of line of crec

Reserve for stockholder note receiva
Repayment of stockholder note receive
Proceeds from issuance of shares to minority iati
Payment of preferred stock cash dividt

Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivale
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents, end of peric

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

Year ended December 31,

2008

2007

2006

$(12,965,62) $(11,204,44) $(12,343,94)

195,28! 185,68: 206,74
797,74 831,95 767,90(
(142,48)  (3,173,62) (135,18;)
4,380,52 — _
(4,281,49) — —
1,090,72.  1,702,80:  1,546,70°
46,57 611,02¢ 100,00(
(63,000) (63,000) (63,000)
(61,94¢) (66,837) (57,38%)
114,75( — —
9,79: — —

— 389,88: —
— — (10,810
(60,34%) (86,670) —
464,82 (726,889 (57,63
19,51¢ 507,23 (400,41
(583,84 (321,08 (233,89))
(87,527 (99,806  3,637,76:
(11,126,51) (11,513,74)  (7,043,14)
(4,500,00) (18,602,98) (24,000,00)
8,000,000 16,400,000  9,300,00
(121,94¢) (141,63Y) (46,749
(461,85:) (504,09)  (1,318,43)
2,916,20  (2,848,71) (16,065,17)
1,08¢  16,290,32  8,975,73!
12,220,49 — _
(111,07) — —
50,00( — —

— 36,03( —

— —  5,349,99
— (23,33%) (132,34)
12,160,51  16,303,01  14,193,38
(85,84Y) (11,230) 69,97
3,864,35  1,929,32. _ (8,844,96)
10,250,92 8,321,600 17,166,56

$ 14,115,28 $10,250,92 $ 8,321,60!
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INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. The Company

Inovio Biomedical Corporation, or "Inovi'Delaware corporation, organized in 2001, ismaSiagobased biomedical company focu:
on the development of next-generation vaccinesewent or treat cancers and chronic infectiousadiss. Such vaccines, which could
potentially protect millions of people from dehdliton or death from diseases without adequatentexats, may represent multi-billion dollar
market opportunities. Historically, successful depenent of this new generation of vaccines—DNA waes—has been hindered by the lack
of safe, efficient and cost effective DNA delivanethods capable of enabling their potency. Howdnewio's electroporation-based DNA
delivery technology has shown potential in preiclhand clinical studies to play a pivotal rolefailitating delivery and enhancing the
potency of preventive and therapeutic vaccines.

On July 7, 2008, Inovio and VGX Pharmaagls, Inc. ("VGX"), a privately-held developer o vaccines, executed a definitive
merger agreement providing for the issuance ofimekiares in exchange for all of the outstandirayisges of VGX and the merger of an
acquisition subsidiary of Inovio with VGX (the "Mger"). Inovio and VGX subsequently negotiated ariaded merger agreement (the
"Amended Agreement"), which the parties executeeoember 5, 2008. Completion of the Merger underAmended Agreement is subject
to registration with the SEC of the Inovio secestto be issued in the Merger, receipt of apprireah both companies' stockholders, and other
customary closing conditions.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentatio

Inovio incurred a net loss attributabletnmon stockholders of $13.0 million for the yeaded December 31, 2008 and had an
accumulated deficit of $152.8 million as of Decem®&, 2008. Management believes that Inovio's eashequivalents of $14.1 million at
December 31, 2008 are sufficient to meet its pldnmerking capital needs through December 31, 200%ontinue its product development
Inovio plans to raise additional working capitaidthigh equity or debt financing. There can be nom@sse that additional sources of capital
be available at favorable terms, if at all. If linmis not able to secure additional funding, Inowidl be required to scale back its research and
development programs, preclinical studies andadinrials, and general and administrative actigithnd may not be able to continue in
business. These consolidated financial statement®tinclude any adjustments to the specific antwand classifications of assets and
liabilities, which might be necessary should Inob@®unable to continue in business. Inovio's codatdd financial statements as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2008 have been prepam@dang concern basis, which contemplates thezagadn of assets and the settlemer
liabilities and commitments in the normal coursduos$iness for the foreseeable future.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financiaiestents include the accounts of Inovio Biomedicatpg@ration and its domestic and foreign
subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and traiisas have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financiateaments in accordance with U.S. generally acdegteounting principles requires us to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reportezliata of
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INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con tinued)
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assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, aatbdetlisclosure of contingent assets and liatsliieovio bases its estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions tedielieved to be reasonable under the circumstatimesesults of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of asmed liabilities that are not readily apparentfrather sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates under different assumptiom®ditions. On an ongoing basis, Inovio reviewsitimates to ensure that these estimates
appropriately reflect changes in the business oreasinformation becomes available.

Cash and equivalents

Equivalents are highly liquid investmentsghased with original maturities of three monthsegs and are stated at cost, which
approximates market value. At December 31, 200&thvere no cash equivalents held in money marketSuAt December 31, 2007, cash
equivalents included $3.7 million in money marketds.

Accounts receivabl

Trade accounts receivable are recordemvaiéed amounts and do not bear interest. Inovitbpas ongoing credit evaluations of our
customers' financial condition. Credit is extenttedustomers as deemed necessary and generallyndoesjuire collateral. Management
believes that the risk of loss is significantly wedd due to the quality and financial position of oustomers. No allowance for doubtful
accounts was deemed necessary at December 31a26@®07.

Long-term investments

Inovio's investments consist of auctiore récurities ("ARS") which are on deposit with ganéinancial institution and are stated at fair
market value. All of Inovio's investments are cifisd as municipal debt securities as of Decemldgr2B08 and 2007, and are ARS which h
contractual maturities in excess of ten years asdtrto par on a monthly basis. See Note 3 fohdéurdiscussion of the Company's long-term
investments.

Auction Rate Securities Rigt

Auction Rate Security Rights ("ARS Rightstinsist of the right to sell ARS held by the Comphack to the financial institution which
sold them to the Company, at par, at its sole digom, any time during the period from June 30,@2@kough July 2, 2012, and gives the
financial institution the right to purchase thede3\or sell them on the Company's behalf at parrmeythrough July 2, 2012. See Note 3 for
further discussion of the Company's ARS Rights.

Fixed asset

Property and equipment are stated at cubtlapreciated using the straight-line method tiverestimated useful life of the assets,
generally three to five years. Leasehold improvemare amortized over the shorter of the remaitengp of the related leases or the estimated
economic useful lives of the improvements. Repaird maintenance are expensed as incurred.
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Cost method investments

Investments in corporate entities with les a 20% voting interest are accounted for utttiecost method. Inovio monitors these
investments for impairment and makes appropriataagons in carrying values if it is determinedttha impairment charge is required, based
primarily on the financial condition and near-tepnospects of these companies.

The Company's cost method investments sbakinvestments in two non-public companies &,820 and $10,250 for the year ended
December 31, 2008, as compared to $25,000 and®I®5pr the year ended December 31, 2007, resdctDuring the year ended
December 31, 2008 the Company recorded an $114h¥Eirment charge on one of its cost method investsidue to certain events
indicating a decline in the non-public companyis ¥alue.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents costs which were inesscof the fair value in our acquisition of INOA8.

In accordance with Statement of Financiet@unting Standards ("SFAS") No. 1420odwill and Other Intangible Assetgoodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives are not aimed but instead are measured for impairment allyy.or when events indicate that
impairment exists. Our accounting policy with respte reviewing goodwill for impairment is a tweeptprocess. The first step of the
impairment test compares the fair value of our réipg unit with its carrying value including allatesl goodwill. If the carrying value of our
reporting unit exceeds its fair value, then theosecstep of the impairment test is performed tosusathe impairment loss, if any. We test
goodwill for impairment at the entity level which ¢onsidered our reporting unit. Our estimate wf\falue is determined using both the
Discounted Cash Flow method of the Income Appraaahthe Guideline Public Company method of the MaApproach. The Discounted
Cash Flow method estimates future cash flows oboisiness for a certain discrete period and theeodints them to their present value. The
Guideline Public Company method computes valuecatdrs ("multiples™) from the operating data of setected publicly traded guideline
companies. After these multiples were evaluateprgpiate value indicators were selected and agptighe operating statistics of the
reporting unit to arrive at indications of valu@e8ifically, we relied upon the application of Tidtavested Capital based valuation multiples
each guideline company. In applying the Income ladket Approaches, premiums and discounts wergméted and applied to estimate the
fair values of the reporting unit. To arrive at thdicated value of equity under each approachthere assigned a relative weighting to the
resulting values from each approach to determinetir the carrying value of the reporting unit exd=its fair value, thus requiring step 2 of
the impairment test.

We conduct the impairment test annuall\Nawember 30th for each fiscal year for which godtisievaluated for impairment. We are
also aware of the requirement to evaluate goodwilimpairment at other times should circumstararése pursuant to the guidance provide
SFAS 142, paragraph 26. To date, we have conclidedhe fair value of the reporting unit signifitly exceeded the carrying value and
therefore, step 2 of the impairment test has nbegen performed.

Intangible Asset

Intangible assets acquired as part oftbeib AS acquisition are amortized using the straline method over their estimated period of
contractual and cash flow benefit, which is 18 gear
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Patents are recorded at cost and amorntizied) the straight-line method over the expecteduldives of the patents or 17 years,
whichever is less. Cost is comprised of the comatiten paid for patents and related legal costhmdhagement determines that development of
products to which patent costs relate is not regslyrcertain or that costs exceed recoverable yalugh costs are charged to operations.

License costs are recorded based on thedhie of consideration paid and amortized usivgdtraight-line method over the shorter of the
expected useful life of the underlying patentsherterm of the related license agreement.

Intangible assets subject to amortizatiot lang-lived assets are reviewed for impairmeneméver events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset nodypa recoverable in accordance with SFAS No. lIddudsed below. Additional factors we
consider include the operational performance ofamguired businesses, estimates of future casts floarket conditions, and other qualitative
factors. Any estimates and assumptions we usefoewing potential impairments are consistent witin internal planning. See Notes 7 anc
for further discussion of the Company's goodwilll @mangible assets.

Income taxe

Inovio accounts for income taxes usinglidugility method of tax allocation. Future inconsxes are recognized for the future income tax
consequences attributable to differences betwendtrying values of assets and liabilities and ttespective income tax bases. Future
income tax assets and liabilities are measuredyusiacted income tax rates expected to apply abtevincome in the years in which
temporary differences are expected to be recovaredttled. The effect on future income tax asaetkliabilities of a change in rates is
included in earnings in the period that includes¢hactment date. Future income tax assets arglegtim the consolidated financial statem:
if realization is considered more likely than not.

Revenue recognitic

Revenue is recognized in accordance witB 8. 104,Revenue Recognition in Financial Statemesutsl EITF Issue 00-2Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverabl.

License fees are comprised of initial fard milestone payments derived from collaboraiisenising arrangements. Inovio continues to
recognize non-refundable milestone payments up@athievement of specified milestones, providedhiiiestone payment is substantive in
nature and the achievement of the milestone waseasbnably assured at the inception of the agneeitm®vio defers payments for milestone
events which are reasonably assured and recoghigesratably over the minimum remaining periodnaf performance obligations. Payments
for milestones which are not reasonably assurettreaged as the culmination of a separate earmirgress and are recognized as revenue
the milestones are achieved.

Inovio has adopted a strategy of co-devielppr licensing our gene delivery technology fpesific genes or specific medical indications.
Accordingly, Inovio has entered into collaboratiesearch and development agreements and has r@éending for pre-clinical research and
clinical trials. Payments under these agreemeritg;hware non-refundable, are recorded as reventleas
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related research expenditures are incurred pursadhe terms of the agreements and provided cdlibty is reasonably assured.

Inovio receives non-refundable grants uredeilable government programs. Inovio records gawent grants applicable towards current
expenditures as revenue when there is reasonahleaase that the Company has complied with all itimmd necessary to receive the grants,
collectibility is reasonably assured, and the eglagxpenditures have been incurred.

Research and development expel

Since Inovio's inception, virtually all ife Company's activities have consisted of reseamdhdevelopment efforts related to developing
electroporation technologies. Research and devedapexpenses consist of expenses incurred in peirigrresearch and development
activities including salaries and benefits, faigtand other overhead expenses, clinical trialstract services and other outside expenses.
Research and development expenses are chargedrtdiops as they are incurred. Inovio reviews arwiues clinical trials expense based on
work performed, which relies on estimates of totats incurred based on patient enrollment, congpletf studies and other events.

Net loss per shar

Net loss per share is calculated in aceurdavith SFAS No. 12&arnings Per ShareBasic loss per share is computed by dividing the
net loss for the year by the weighted average numibeommon shares outstanding during the yeaut&d loss per share is calculated in
accordance with the treasury stock method andatsftbe potential dilution that would occur if sdties or other contracts to issue common
stock were exercised or converted to common stBitice the effect of the assumed exercise of constank options and other convertible
securities was anti-dilutive for all periods pretseh basic and diluted loss per share are the same.

The following table summarizes potentiaintoon shares that were excluded from historicaldoasd diluted net loss per share calcula
because of their anti-dilutive effect:

As of As of As of
December 31, December 31, December 31,
Common stock equivalents 2008 2007 2006

Options to purchase common st¢ 4,616,71. 3,465,46. 2,798,90!
Warrants to purchase common st 6,890,44 8,892,00! 8,663,70!

Convertible preferred stoc 104,40¢ 217,72( 1,177,95!
Non-vested restricted common stc 138,75( 101,25( —
Total 11,750,32 12,676,43 12,640,55

Leases

Leases are classified as either capitaperating leases. Leases which transfer substgralabf the benefits and risks incidental to the
ownership of assets are accounted for as if theieam acquisition of an asset and incurrence obéigation at the inception of the lease. All
other leases are accounted for as operating lease$o's San Diego headquarters facility leasdctvhas escalating payments, is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the term of five yeaisthe end of the original
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lease term, Inovio has the option of renewing ldse for an additional five-year lease term aramual rate equal to the fair market rental
value of the property, as defined in the leaseeagemt. This lease represents the primary expertseammitment as indicated in Note 11
"Commitments" below. Other leases exist for thewor facility and for office machinery, such as @pj wherein lease expense is records
incurred.

Stock-based compensation

Inovio accounts for stock-based compengsati@accordance with SFAS No. 123(Bjare-Based Paymeninovio estimates the fair val
of stock options granted using the Black-Schold®appricing model. The Black-Scholes option prigimodel was developed for use in
estimating the fair value of traded options, whieve no vesting restrictions and are fully traredfés. In addition, option valuation models
require the input of highly subjective assumptidnsluding the expected stock price volatility sepected option life. Inovio amortizes the
fair value of the awards on a straight-line ba&lsoptions grants are amortized over the requiséevice period of the awards. Expected
volatility is based on historical volatility. Theqgected life of options granted is based on histdexpected life. The risk-free interest rate is
based on the U.S. Treasury yield in effect at ithe bf grant. The forfeiture rate is based on histd data and Inovio records stock-based
compensation expense only for those awards thabquected to vest. The dividend yield is basedherfact that no dividends have been paid
on common stock historically, and none are curyestbected to be paid.

Assumptions used in the Black-Scholes madelpresented below:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
Risk-free interest rat 1.38%- 3.18% 4.07%-4.67% 4.68%- 4.96%
Expected volatility 69%- 91% 93%- 98% 98%- 109%
Expected life in year 4 6 6

Dividend yield — — —
Other Accumulated Comprehensive Loss

Components of comprehensive loss are regantthe consolidated financial statements inpgr@od in which they are recognized. The
components of comprehensive loss for us includéasst unrealized gains and losses on investmextfoaeign currency translation
adjustments. The components of accumulated othmpezhensive loss are indicated on the Consolidatettments of Stockholder's Equity.

Pending Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronounces

In November 2007, the EITF issued EITF ésBlo. 07-1Accounting for Collaborative Arrangements Relatedhte Development and
Commercialization of Intellectual Propert@ompanies may enter into arrangements with othepemies to jointly develop, manufacture,
distribute, and market a product. Often the adéigsiassociated with these arrangements are comblogtine collaborators without the creation
of a separate legal entity (that is, the arrangensevperated as a "virtual joint venture"). Theaagements generally provide that the
collaborators will share, based on contractualfyngel calculations, the profits or losses from éissociated activities. Periodically, the
collaborators
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share financial information related to product raves generated (if any) and costs incurred thattnigger a sharing payment for the combi
profits or losses. The consensus requires collaaa such an arrangement to present the refatttivities for which they act as the princi
on a gross basis and report any payments receiged(fnade to) other collaborators based on othglicgble GAAP or, in the absence of of
applicable GAAP, based on analogy to authoritagi®eounting literature or a reasonable, rational, @msistently applied accounting policy
election. EITF Issue No. 07-1 is effective for ablbrative arrangements in place at the beginningeo&nnual period beginning after
December 15, 2008. The Company does not expeethietion of EITF Issue No. 07-1 to have a matémiglact on its consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFASIMG(R),Business CombinationsSFAS No. 141(R) changes the requirements for an
acquirer's recognition and measurement of the sisseuired and liabilities assumed in a busineshawation, including the treatment of
contingent consideration, pre-acquisition contirgyes, transaction costs, in-process research arelagement and restructuring costs. In
addition, under SFAS No. 141(R), changes in an isedentity's deferred tax assets and uncertaipdaitions after the measurement period
will impact income tax expense. This statemenffiscéive for the Company with respect to busineaslsination transactions for which the
acquisition date is after December 31, 2008. The@my is currently evaluating the impact that SF¥S 141(R) will have on its consolidal
financial statements, including specifically evaing the impact upon consummation of the proposedgdr with VGX, if completed. The
impact of adopting SFAS No. 141(R) on the Compaggtssolidated financial statements depends oretinestof any future business
combination transactions.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFASI80, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financ&thtements (an amendment of
Accounting Research Bulletin, or ARB, No. !SFAS No. 160 requires that noncontrolling (mindrityterests be reported as a component of
equity, that net income attributable to the paesmt to the noncontrolling interest be separatedptified in the income statement, that changes
in a parent's ownership interest while the paretains its controlling interest be accounted foe@sity transactions, and that any retained
noncontrolling equity investment upon the decomtdion of a subsidiary be initially measured at falue. This statement is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2008,shadl be applied prospectively. However, the prestéon and disclosure requirements of
SFAS No. 160 are required to be applied retrospelgtifor all periods presented. The retrospectimasentation and disclosure requirements of
this statement will be applied to any prior peripdssented in financial statements for the fisearyending December 31, 2009, and later
periods during which the Company has a consolidstdidiary with a noncontrolling interest. As ofé@mber 31, 2008, the Company does
not have any consolidated subsidiaries in whichetiea noncontrolling interest.

In April 2008, the FASB issued Staff PagitiNo. 142-3Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Asg8-SP No. 142-3"). FSP
No. 14:-3 amends the factors to be considered in assungptised to determine the useful lives of recogniztsthgible assets recognized
under SFAS No. 142. The new guidance applies tmgible assets with contractual lives that are medundividually or with a group of asst
as well as those assets acquired in a businessiratiob. The new guidance is effective for fiscahys beginning after December 15, 2008
interim periods. The Company will adopt the statehm January 1, 2009 and is currently evaluatirgitpact FSP No. 142-3 will have on its
consolidated financial statements.
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In November 2008, FASB ratified EITF Issde. 08-7,Accounting for Defensive Intangible AssedTF 08-7 applies to defensive
intangible assets, which are acquired intangibdetasthat the acquirer does not intend to actiusé/but intends to hold to prevent its
competitors from obtaining access to them. As tlassets are separately identifiable, EITF 08-7iregwan acquiring entity to account for
defensive intangible assets as a separate unitofiating which should be amortized to expense theeperiod the asset diminished in value.
Defensive intangible assets must be recognizegiratdlue in accordance with SFAS 141R and SFAS EBIFF 08-7 is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning &terember 15, 2008. The Company will adopt EITF @G8tdanuary 1, 2009 and is currently
evaluating the potential impact of EITF 08-7 oncitmsolidated financial statements when implemented

Adoption of Recent Accounting Pronouncem

In September 2006, the Financial AccounStgndards Board, or FASB, issued SFAS No. Faif, Value MeasurementsSFAS No. 157
establishes a framework for measuring fair valuadoordance with GAAP, clarifies the definitionfair value within that framework, and
expands disclosures about the use of fair valuesumements. It also responds to investors' reqf@sexpanded information about the exter
which companies measure assets and liabilitiegiavélue, the information used to measure faingand the effect of fair value measurem
on earnings. SFAS No. 157 applies whenever otlagdsirds require (or permit) assets or liabilitebeé measured at fair value, and does not
expand the use of fair value in any new circumsanS8FAS No. 157 was effective for the Companyasndry 1, 2008. The adoption of SF
No. 157 did not have a material impact on the Camjsaconsolidated financial statemel

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS M@, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioal Liabilities—Including an
amendment to FASB Statement No. 135AS No. 159 allows certain financial assetsladilities to be recognized, at the Company's
election, at fair market value, with any gainsasses for the period recorded in the statemenpefations. SFAS No. 159 includes available-
for-sale securities in the assets eligible for tréatment. Currently, the Company records thealized gains or losses for the period in
comprehensive income (loss) and in the equity sedf the balance sheet. SFAS No. 159 was effeftivhe Company on January 1, 2008.
The Company did not elect to adopt the fair valpttom under SFAS No. 159 on any assets or liagditiot previously carried at fair value,
except for the Auction Rate Securities Rights ("ARiIghts") that were recorded in connection with @empany's acceptance of the offer of
ARS Rights from UBS as more fully described in N8te

In June 2007, the EITF issued EITF IssueNe3,Accounting for Nonrefundable Advance Payments fozdS or Services to be Used in
Future Research and Development Activi. The consensus requires companies to defer aritghlcagprepaid, nonrefundable research and
development payments to third parties over theopettat the research and development activitieparf®rmed or the services are provided,
subject to an assessment of recoverability. EIBEdNo. 07-3 is effective for new contracts enténgal beginning on January 1, 2008. The
adoption of EITF Issue No. 07-3 did not have a miaténpact on the Company's consolidated finansiatements.
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Currently, the Company records the unredligains or losses on available-faite securities for the period in comprehensiverme (loss
and in the equity section of the balance sheet. SRA. 159 was effective for the Company on Janta®008. The Company did not elect to
adopt the fair value option under SFAS No. 159 mpn assets or liabilities not previously carriedait value, except for the Auction Rate
Securities Rights ("ARS Rights") that were recordedonnection with the Company's acceptance obffex of ARS Rights from its
investment provider, UBS Financial Services, lacsubsidiary of UBS AG ("UBS"), as more fully débed below.

SFAS No. 157 establishes a three-tienfaline hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs ugedeasuring fair value. These tiers include:
Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as duwiees in active markets; Level 2, defined asitather than quoted prices in active
markets that are either directly or indirectly alvadle; and Level 3, defined as unobservable injpughich little or no market data exists,
therefore requiring an entity to develop its owauasptions.

The Company's financial assets measurtdratalue on a recurring basis subject to theld&ae requirements of SFAS No. 157 at
December 31, 2008 are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements at
Reporting Date Using

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
Total (Level 3)
Auction rate securities, lo-term $ 9,169,47. $ 9,169,47.
Auction rate securities rights, lo-term 4,281,49. 4,281,49.
Total $13,450,96 $13,450,96

The Company has determined that no iterret the criteria for definition within the level I 2 hierarchies. Level 3 assets held as of
December 31, 2008 include municipal debt obligatiaith an auction rate reset mechanism issued bjaipalities. These auction rate
securities ("ARS") are AAA-rated debt instrumenithwiong-term maturities and interest rates thatraset at short-term intervals through
auctions. Due to conditions in the global creditkess, in 2008, these securities, representing agdae of $13.6 million, had insufficient
demand resulting in multiple failed auctions. Agsult, these effected securities are currentlyliqoid and the interest rates have been reset tc
predetermined higher rates. Due to the illiquidestsf these investments, the Company has classifietlalance of its ARS as long-term
investments in the balance sheet as of Decemb&088,

In December 2008, the Company, via its Wholned subsidiary Genetronics, Inc., or "Genetsh which holds the ARS, accepted an
offer of ARS Rights from UBS. The ARS Rights perthié¢ Company to require UBS to purchase the Conmpa&RS at par value at any time
during the period of June 30, 2010 through Jul®@,2. If the Company does not exercise its ARS Righe ARS will continue to accrue
interest as determined by the auction processeotetims of the ARS if the auction fails. If the AR&jhts are not exercised before July 2, 2012
they will expire and UBS will have no further olditipn to buy the Company's ARS. UBS has the diggréd purchase or sell the Company's
ARS at any time without prior notice so long as @@mpany receives a payment at par upon any salsposition. UBS will only exercise its
discretion to purchase or sell the Company's ARShe purpose of restructurings, dispositions beosolutions that will provide the Compe
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with par value for its ARS. As a condition to actieg the offer of ARS Rights, the Company releaS&S$ from all claims except claims for
consequential damages relating to its marketingsahes of ARS. The Company also agreed not to sereeclass representative or receive
benefits under any class action settlement or tovdésnd.

In conjunction with the acceptance of tHRARIghts, Genetronics also amended its existiag &greement with UBS Bank USA,
increasing the existing credit line up to $12.1lioml, with the ARS pledged as collateral. Genetrsriully drew down on the credit line in
December 2008 (See Note 4).

Typically the fair value of ARS approximatear value due to the frequent resets throughulBon process. While the Company
continues to earn interest on its ARS at the maringontractual rates, these investments are noémilyrtrading and therefore do not currer
have a readily determinable market value. Accollgirthe estimated fair value of the ARS no longap@ximates par value. The Company
used a discounted cash flow model to determinestienated fair value of its investment in ARS aisdARS Rights as of December 31, 2008.
The assumptions used in preparing the discountgd ftav model include estimates for interest rati@sing and amount of cash flows and
expected holding period of the ARS and ARS Rights.

The Company elected to measure the ARStRigider the fair value option of SFAS No. 159 fitigate volatility in reported earnings
due to their linkage to the ARS, and recognizedia gf approximately $4.3 million and recorded aresponding long-term investment.
Reflecting management's intent to exercise its ARfhits during the period of June 30, 2010 througi 2, 2012, the Company transferred its
ARS from investments available-for-sale to tradsegurities. As a result of this transfer and asdbmpany no longer intends to hold the ARS
until the fair value recovers, the Company recogdian other-than-temporary impairment loss of agprately $4.4 million, representing a
reversal of the related temporary valuation alloweathat was previously recorded in other comprekiedsss. Management believes this loss
is primarily attributable to the limited liquiditgf these investments and has no reason to beliete@hy of the underlying issuers are presently
at risk of default. The recording of the fair valfethe ARS Rights and the recognition of the ottemtemporary impairment loss resulted i
net impact to the Consolidated Statement of Opmratior the year ended December 31, 2008 of appiately $99,000, which was recordec
other expense. The ARS Rights will continue to leasured at fair value utilizing Level 3 inputs utite earlier of their maturity or exercise.
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The following table provides a summary b&cges in fair value of the Company's Level 3 faialhassets as of December 31, 2008:

Auction Rate

Securities
Balance at January 1, 20 $ —
Transfers in to Level 14,050,00
Total unrealized losses included in other exp¢ (4,380,52)
Recognition of ARS Right 4,281,49.
Purchases and settlements (i (500,000
Balance at December 31, 20 $13,450,96

Total loss included in other expense in the codabdid statement of operations relating to assédsai®ecember 31,20 $ (99,039

4. Line of Credit

On August 26, 2008, the Company receiveitadrom UBS Bank USA ("UBS") that the Companypplcation had been approved for a
$5.0 million uncommitted demand revolving line oédit ("Line of Credit") secured by ARS held by tBempany in an account with UBS
Financial Services, Inc. (the "Collateral Accountt) provide additional working capital. On Decemb®, 2008, the Company amended its
existing loan agreement with UBS Bank USA, incragghe existing credit line up to $12.1 million tivithe ARS pledged as collateral. The
Company fully drew down on the line of credit ond@mber 23, 2008. Advances under the Line of Ctehit interest at LIBOR plus 1.00%
(the "Spread Over LIBOR"). UBS may change the Spf@aer LIBOR at its discretion when the Collatezahsisting of ARS may be sold,
exchanged or otherwise conveyed by the Compangrfiss proceeds that are, in the aggregate, notHasshe par value of such securities.
The loan will be treated as a "no net cost loag'if will bear interest at a rate equal to the agerrate of interest paid to the Company on the
pledged ARS, and the net interest cost to the Cosnpéll be zero.

5. Major Customers and Concentration of Credit Risk

% of Total % of Total % of Total
Customer 2008 Revenue 2007 Revenue 2006 Revenue
Merck $ 631,54¢ 30% $3,268,88: 68% $1,535,54! 44%
Wyeth 846,69 4C  1,118,02. 23 — —
Valentis — — — 655,12: 19
U.S Army grani 92,95¢ 4 21,42 — 898,93: 26
All other 526,43t 26 399,39¢ 9 378,58 11
Total Revenut $2,097,63 100% $4,807,72! 10C% $3,468,17! 10C%

During the years ended December 31, 2008807, we recognized revenue from our collabonadiod licensing agreements with Merck
and Wyeth, which were executed in May 2004 and Nuar 2006, respectively. As of December 31, 2088/$00 or 59%, and $221,000 or
33%, of our total accounts receivable balance GfL$®B00, was attributable to Merck and Wyeth, retpely. As of December 31, 2007,
$240,000 or 21%, and $889,000 or 78%, of our ftabunts receivable balance of $1.1 million, wasbatable to Merck and Wyeth,
respectively.
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There is minimal credit risk with these ttusers based upon collection history, their siz# famancial condition. Accordingly, we do not
consider it necessary to record a reserve for leatiddle accounts receivable.

6. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets at December 31, 2008 and 2085ist of the following:

Accumulated
depreciation
and Net book
Cost amortization value

As of December 31, 200
Machinery, equipment and office furnitt $1,397,82' $(1,205,53)) $192,29:
Leasehold improvemen 341,13 (179,619 161,51

$1,738,96. $(1,385,15) $353,80°

As of December 31, 200
Machinery, equipment and office furnitt  $2,026,99: $(1,836,96) $190,02¢
Leasehold improvemen 734,31 (522,61 211,70:

$2,761,30¢ $(2,359,58) $401,72°

Depreciation expense for the years endiagenber 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $195,000, #1B&nd $207,000, respectively. In
accordance with SFAS No. 144, the company deterirtimet the carrying value of these long-lived asgets not impaired for the periods
presented.

7. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 1€&hodwill and Other Intangible Assetthe Company's goodwill is not amortized, butubject to an
annual impairment test. The following sets forth thtangible assets by major asset class:

December 31, 200: December 31, 200
Useful Accumulated Net Book Accumulated Net Book
Life (Yrs) Gross Amortization Value Gross Amortization Value

Non-Amortizing:

Goodwill(a) $ 3,900,71 $ — $3,900,71 $ 3,900,71 $ — $ 3,900,71:
Amortizing:

Patents 8-17 5,685,96. (3,255,23) 2,430,73! 5,224,10° (2,775,71) 2,448,39

Licenses 8-17 1,198,78  (947,72) 251,06( 1,198,78  (854,49) 344,28

Other(b) 18 4,050,000 (881,25( 3,168,751 4,050,000 (656,25() 3,393,75!

Total Intangible asse 10,934,74 (5,084,20) 5,850,541 10,472,89 (4,286,46) 6,186,43!

Total goodwill and intangible ass 14,835,45 (5,084,20) 9,751,25: $14,373,60 $(4,286,46))$10,087,14

(@)  Goodwill was recorded from the Inovio AS acquisitio January 2005. In 2007 we recorded a reduatid@oodwill of $390,00(
related to the realization of foreign net operalwss carry forwards.
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(b) Other intangible assets represent the fair valuecqtiired contracts and intellectual property fitben acquisition of Inovio AS. At th
time of the acquisition, we determined the remajniseful life for the acquired contractual relagbips to be approximately 18 years,
reflecting the period over which the contractuddtienships would contribute to our cash flows, sistent with the guidance in
SFAS 142, paragraph 11. We evaluated the useéubfithe acquired contractual relationships bagpetha review of the legal life of
the underlying patents and discussions with theagament of Inovio AS regarding estimates of eatbra useful economic life as it
related to the acquired contracts. Based on tleeters, we determined that our relevant markessate cash flows would likely
decline after 18 years, when the key patents itlat¢he acquired contracts expire. We expectttteticquired contractual relationsh
will continue to provide positive cash flows thrdugt least 18 years, as determined at the timeafisition.

Aggregate amortization expense on intaegisisets was $798,000, $832,000 and $768,000efgretirs ended December 31, 2008, 2007
and 2006, respectively. Amortization expense rdl&entangible assets at December 31, 2008 fdr e&the next five fiscal years and beyond
is expected to be incurred as follows:

2009 $ 703,54
2010 652,82
2011 603,14¢
2012 554,80:
2013 504,16
Thereaftel 2,832,06!

$5,850,54!

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Comydaas completed its annual impairment tests amd/édile analysis for goodwill and other

non-amortizing intangible assets, respectivelyd liefoughout the year. The Company conducts thaimment test annually on November®0
for each fiscal year for which goodwill is evale@tfor impairment. There were no impairments ordinmpent indicators present and no loss
was recorded during the year ended December 3B, 200

8. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expensescarblger 31, 2008 and 2007 consist of the following:

As of As of
December 31  December 31

2008 2007
Trade accounts payak $ 377,330 $ 394,78t
Accrued compensatic 372,01t 559,68!
Other accrued expens 617,95: 852,83«

$1,367,301  $1,807,30!

9. Deferred Revenue

We defer revenue recognition of cash rdsdipm licensing and other agreements and receghim ratably over the minimum
remaining period of our performance obligationse Eombined
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9. Deferred Revenue (Continued)

current and long-term deferred revenue balance & fillion consists primarily of an unrecognizealdnce of $3.9 million arising from the
$4.5 million payment received from Wyeth in NovemB606 for the 15 year collaborative and licensaiggeement.

10. Stockholders' Equity
Preferred Stocl

Outstanding as of
December 31,

Authorized Issued w
Series A Preferred Stock, par $0.( 1,00(¢ 817 — —
Series B Preferred Stock, par $0.( 1,00(C 75C — —
Series C Preferred Stock, par $0.( 1,091 1,091 71 71
Series D Preferred Stock, par $0.( 1,966,29. 1,966,29. —  113,31:

The following is a summary of changes i@ tlumber of outstanding shares of our preferretkdtar the years ended December 31, 2006,
2007 and 2008:

Series # SeriesE  Series C Series D
Shares Outstanding as of January 1, 2 52 10C 337 1,561,93!
Preferred Shares convert (52) (100 (235 (533,969
Shares Outstanding as of December 31, : — — 10z 1,027,96
Preferred Shares convert (31) (914,65¢)
Shares Outstanding as of December 31, : — — 71 113,31:
Preferred Shares convert — — — (113,31)
Shares Outstanding as of December 31, : — — 71 —

The shares of the Company's outstandinigS€r Preferred Stock have the following pertinégtits and privileges, as set forth in the
Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of puration and its Certificates of Designations, Réggmd Preferences related to the various
series of preferred stock.

Dividend Preference

The holders of all series of the Compapy&ferred stock are entitled to receive dividendsgari passu basis with the holders of comr
stock, when, if and as declared by the Companyadof Directors.

In addition, the holders of the Series €fénred Stock received a mandatory dividend rag&6fper annum per outstanding share of
Series C Preferred Stock, payable quarterly, basatie $10,000 Liquidation Preference of such sttamugh the period ending on May 20,
2007. These dividends were paid in cash or comrtamk £qual to the equivalent cash amount dividethey20 day preceding average closing
price. The Company could only elect to pay thedbwids in shares of common stock if the averagéng/gwice of the shares of common stock
for the 20 days immediately preceding the dividpagment date was equal to or greater than the csioveprice of either of the relevant se
of Preferred Stock. All dividends were paid to ¢atsling Series C Preferred Stockholders on eachiegtend payment date. No dividends
were paid to holders of our Series C
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Preferred Stock during the year ended Decembe2@®18. We paid cash dividends to holders of oureSddi Preferred Stock of $23,000 during
the year ended December 31, 2007.

Rights on Liquidatior

In the event of any voluntary or involuntdiguidation, dissolution or winding up of the Cpamy (a "liquidation event”), before any
distribution of assets of the Company shall be ntad® set apart for the holders of common stdog&,Holders of Series C Preferred Stock, pari
passu, are entitled to receive payment of suchsasf¢he Company in an amount equal to $10,00Gpare of such series of preferred stock,
plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends therebether or not earned or declared).

If the assets of the Company availabladfstribution to stockholders exceed the aggregateunt of the liquidation preferences payable
with respect to all shares of each series of predestock then outstanding, then, after the paymesitich preferences is made or irrevocabl
aside, the holders of the Company's common stezkrtitled to receive a pro rata portion of sudetsbased on the aggregate number of
shares of common stock held by each such holderholders of the Company's outstanding prefermecksthall participate in such a
distribution on a pro-rata basis, computed basetthemumber of shares of common stock which woelthéld by such preferred holders if
immediately prior to the liquidation event all bfetoutstanding shares of the preferred stock had benverted into shares of common stock at
the then current conversion value applicable th sacies.

A Change of Control of the Company (asmdiin the Certificates of Designations, Rights Bneferences) is not a liquidation event
triggering the preferences described above, amgisad addressed by separate terms in the Seflestificates of Designations, Rights, and
Preferences.

Although the liquidation preferences arexcess of the par value of $0.001 per share oftrapany's preferred stock, these preferences
are equal to or less than the stated value of shates based on their original purchase price.

Voting Rights

The holders of all series of the Compapy&ferred stock outstanding have full voting rightsl powers equal to the voting rights and
powers of holders of the Company's common stockaaectntitled to notice of any stockholders' megtmaccordance with the Company's
Bylaws. Holders of the Company's preferred stoekeantitled to vote on any matter upon which holaéthe Company's common stock have
the right to vote, including, without limitatiorhe right to vote for the election of directors ttigge with the holders of common stock as one
class.

Actions Requiring the Consent of Holders of ConblertPreferred Stoc

As long as a certain number of shares dfi saries of the Company's preferred stock issndti@respective "Date of Original Issue" for
such series are outstanding, the consent of dtdeagjority of the shares of that series of preféistock outstanding are necessary to approve:

(&) Any amendment, alteration or repégl)any of the provisions of the relevant seri@sttificate of Designation, including any
increase in the number of authorized shares of sehs

F-22




Table of Contents

INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con tinued)
10. Stockholders' Equity (Continued)

or (ii) the Company's Certificate of IncorporationBylaws in a manner that would adversely affaetrights of the holders of the
relevant series of preferred stock;

(b) the authorization, creation, offealesor increase in authorized shares by the Comphagy stock of any class, or any sect
convertible into stock of any class, or the authatibn or creation of any new series of prefertedisranking in terms of liquidation
preference, redemption rights or dividend rightsj passu with or senior to, the relevant serigsreferred stock in any manner;

(c) the declaration or payment of anyidbwd or other distribution (whether in cash, stoclkther property) with respect to the
Company's capital stock or that of any subsidiatiyer than a dividend or other distribution purduarthe terms of the relevant series
of preferred stock or other series of preferredlstmted in the relevant Certificate of Designatiand

(d) except for the holders of the SebeBreferred Stock, the redemption, purchase or@bguisition, directly or indirectly, of
any shares of the Company's capital stock or aritg glibsidiaries or any option, warrant or othightrto purchase or acquire any such
shares, or any other security, other than ceraipEted redemptions of preferred stock, certaistanting warrants, the repurchase of
shares at cost from employees of the Company wgramiration of employment in accordance with writtgmeements pursuant to
which the shares were issued, or other specifipdrobase or redemption rights pursuant to writgne@ments outstanding at the tim
original issuance of the preferred stock in questio

These specific voting rights are applicdblethe Series C Preferred Stock as long as at &% of the number of shares of Series C
Preferred Stock issued on the Date of Originaldggmain outstanding, and the same threshold applithe Series D Preferred Stock. As of
December 31, 2008, there were no voting rights neimg

Participation Rights

Holders of the Series C Preferred Stoclehthe right to participate with respect to the Camys issuance of any equity or equity-linked
securities or debt convertible into equity or inigththere is an equity component ("Additional S&@s") on the same terms and conditions as
offered by the Company to the other purchasersicif &dditional Securities. However securities igssaeissuable upon any of the following
are not deemed "Additional Securities": (A) the wenrsion of outstanding preferred stock or exerofselated warrants, or the issuance of
shares of common stock as payment of dividendslidehs of preferred stock, (B) the exercise of wayrants or options outstanding prior to
the authorization or issuance of the series ofgprefl stock in question (C) the issuance (at issian exercise prices at or above fair market
value) of common stock, stock awards or optionseunar the exercise of any options granted pursteareny Board-approved employee stock
option or similar plan for the issuance of optiongapital stock of the Company, (D) the issuarfcghares of common stock pursuant to a
stock split, combination or subdivision of the dartgling shares of common stock, and (E) for evalnadf the rights of the Series C Preferred
Stock only, in connection with a bona fide joinhigre or development agreement or strategic pattiygrthe primary purpose of which is not
to raise equity capital.

Each time the Company proposes to offerAuigitional Securities, it is obligated to providach holder of shares of the Series C
Preferred Stock notice of such intention including terms of such
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intended offering (including size and pricing) &hd anticipated closing date of the sale. Theskepes stockholders then have a specified
period in which to respond to the Company to ele@urchase or obtain, at the price and on thegepecified in the Company's notice, up to
that number of such Additional Securities whichagwsuch holder's Pro Rata Amount. The "Pro Ratauxt! for any given holder of shares
of the Series C Preferred Stock equals that podfdhe Additional Securities offered by the Comparhich equals the proportion that the
number of shares of common stock that such prefesteckholder owns or has the right to acquirdnétotal number of shares of common
stock then outstanding (assuming in each casautheohversion and exercise of all convertible amdrcisable securities then outstanding).

The holders of the Series C Preferred Shasle the right to pay the consideration for thelifidnal Securities purchasable upon such
participation with shares of such series of Pref#i®tock, which will be valued for such purposthatapplicable series' Liquidation Preference
plus any accrued and unpaid dividends for suchgaepHowever, when shares of such preferred stecksed as participation consideration,
then such holder's Pro Rata Amount is increasetn@iudecreased) to the extent necessary to degiahtimber of Additional Securities as are
convertible into or exchangeable for such numbeshafres of Common Stock as is obtained by divi@@dhe Liquidation Preference
attributable to such holder's shares of the aplplécaeries of Preferred Stock plus any accrueduapdid dividends on such Preferred Stock by
(b) the Conversion Value then in effect for suchrsl, and in such event the Company shall be dbtiga sell such number of Additional
Securities to each such holder, even if the aggedge Rata Amount for all such holders exceedsffugegate amount of Additional Securi
that the Company had initially proposed to offes.tfie extent that not all holders of a particukeniess of preferred stock elect to participate up
to their full Pro Rata Amounts, the participatingders of that series of preferred stock have itijie to increase their participation according

The participation rights of the holderstod Series C Preferred Stock may not be assignerdrsferred, other than assignment to any
wholly-owned subsidiary or parent of, or to anypmation or entity that is, within the meaning loé tSecurities Act, controlling, controlled by
or under common control with, any such holder. Assult of transfers, the holders of the Seriesé&@dPred Stock outstanding as of
December 31, 2008 no longer had such participatgins.

During our October 2006, December 2005 Jartlary 2005 common stock offerings, we informddérs of our outstanding Series A, B,
and C Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock whtipipation rights, of their ability to participatn the respective offering based upon the
pricing of the transaction and the applicable lit@tion preference for the series of preferred sharticipating. These participating stockholc
obtained incremental shares of common stock asudt & exercising their participation rights, teby converting their outstanding shares of
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock at a lowfégrang price compared to their current convergivice. The right to participate was
available only for a limited period time in relatito the specific transaction and the exercisé@feixisting participation right did not reflect or
create a lasting change in the holders' convegsivileges. Some of the participating stockholdead previously converted a portion of their
shares of the Company's preferred stock pursuahetooptional conversion rights, and most of plaeticipating stockholders wholly conver:
their remaining shares of the Company's preferteckghrough exercise of their participation rightghe noted offerings.
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The Series C Preferred Stock each providénblder of such shares an optional conversidit egd provide a mandatory conversion upon
certain triggering events.

Right to Convert The holder of any share or shares of Seriese@Ped Stock has the right at any time, at suaitiér's option, to
convert all or any lesser portion of such holdsinares of the Preferred Stock into such numbeullyf paid and non-assessable shares of
Common Stock as is determined by dividing (i) thgragate Liquidation Preference applicable to tmtiqular series of preferred shares, plus
accrued and unpaid dividends thereon by (ii) th@ie@ble Conversion Value (as defined in the refteries' Certificate of Designations,
Rights and Preferences) then in effect for suctesef preferred shares. The Company is not oldidyat issue any fractional shares or scrip
representing fractional shares upon such convessidrinstead shall pay the holder an amount in egshl to such fraction multiplied by the
current market price per share of the Company'sntomstock.

Mandatory Conversion The Company has the option upon thirty (30)sdayor written notice, to convert all of the oatstling shares of
the Series C Preferred Stock into such numberllyf fiaid and non-assessable shares of common atikdetermined by dividing (i) the
aggregate Liquidation Preference of the sharekeofdlevant series of preferred stock to be coadgrtus accrued and unpaid dividends
thereon by (ii) the applicable Conversion ValuedaBned in the relevant series' Certificate of iDeations, Rights and Preferences) then in
effect, if at any time after twelve months followithe Original Issue Date of each such seriesefepred stock all of the following triggering
events occur:

(i) The registration statement coverdigof the shares of common stock into which theipalar series of preferred stock is
convertible is effective (or all of the shares oframon stock into which the preferred stock is cotibbke may be sold without restriction
pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act @31@s amended);

(i) the Daily Market Price (as definedthe applicable Certificates of Designations, Régind Preferences) of the common stock
crosses a specified pricing threshold for twentjhefthirty consecutive trading days prior to tlaedthe Company provides notice of
conversion to the holders; and

(iii) the average daily trading volumelgfact to adjustment for stock dividends, subdivisiand combinations) of the common
stock for at least twenty of the thirty consecutiragling days prior to the date the Company pravitgtice of conversion to the holders
exceeds 25,000 shares.

As of December 31, 2008, our outstandirageh of the Series C Preferred Stock were conleitito 104,409 shares of our common
stock at a conversion price of $6.80 per share tlam@pplicable Daily Market Price of the commawcktfor triggering mandatory conversion
equaled $18.00 per share. As of December 31, 2098 vere no shares of Series D Preferred Stocktamating.

Imputed and Declared Dividends on Preferred S

The holders of our Series A and B PrefeBtatk were entitled to receive an annual dividanthe rate of 6%, payable quarterly, through
September 30, 2006. These dividends were payalgkesim unless the closing price of our common sHareahe 20 trading days immediately
preceding the
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dividend payment date was equal to or greater tivaconversion price of such shares, in which ewentay have elected to pay the divide

to the holders in common stock. As part of thisdbwd to holders of Series A and B Preferred Stagkissued a total of 2,871 common shares
valued at $8,000, and paid $15,000 in cash dur@@$2There were no shares of Series A or B Prafeé3teck outstanding on December 31,
2008, 2007 or 2006, respectively.

The holders of our Series C Preferred Stoekentitled to receive an annual dividend atréte of 6%, payable quarterly, through May 20,
2007. These dividends are payable in cash unlessidking price of our common shares for the 28itgadays immediately preceding the
dividend payment date is equal to or greater tharconversion price of such shares, in which ewentay elect to pay the dividends to the
holders in common stock. As part of this dividewe, paid cash of $23,000 during fiscal 2007 to halae our Series C Preferred Stock. We
paid cash $117,000 during fiscal 2006 to holdemsurfSeries C Preferred Stock and accrued $15@0gkftain holders of our Series C
Preferred Stock who participated in our October&2@quity financing, during fiscal 2006. No dividengere paid to holders of our Series C
Preferred Stock during the year ended Decembe2(B13.

During 2006, we recorded an imputed divitleharge of $1.9 million during the three monthdezhDecember 31, 2006, related to the
investors who converted $1.2 million of their Seri& Preferred Stock investment into 473,744 sharesr common stock as part of our
October 2006 private placement. This imputed divieharge was calculated using guidance contamégnierging Issues Task Force
("EITF") Issue No. 00-27Application of Issue No. 98-5 to Certain Convesdibistruments As part of this private placement, these investor
received 304,450 additional shares of our commaocksias compared to the number of shares of oumzmstock into which their existing
Series C Preferred Stock could have been convartddr the original terms of the Series C Prefe8tatk. Under EITF Issue No. 00-27, this
incremental number of shares of our common stockmaltiplied by the price of our common stock oa dtommitment date of the original
Series C Preferred Stock issuance, or $6.08 pee stracalculate the $1.9 million imputed dividestthrge associated with this beneficial
conversion.

Common Stock

In August 2007, we entered into an agredmith an outside consulting advisor pursuant taclhwe issued 230,000 registered shares of
common stock and registered warrants to purcha@®Q@6 shares of common stock, as payment of a efumdable retainer in connection with
the engagement of its services. The warrants issaed an exercise price of $3.00 per share, aned@reisable through August 6, 2012. As of
December 31, 2008, none of these warrants havedesnised.

In May 2007, we completed a registered tydinancing, whereby we sold 4,595,094 sharesunfoommon stock resulting in gross
aggregate cash proceeds of $16.2 million.

In March 2007, we entered into an agreerirewhich we agreed to issue a total of 90,000rietet] shares of our common stock in equal
quarterly installments in exchange for consultiegrges. As of December 31, 2008, we had issue@lallO0 restricted common shares.

In January 2007, we exchanged for 2,201r64tticted shares of our common stock and wartargsirchase up to 770,573 restricted
shares of our common stock for 2,201,644 ordinbares of our Singapore subsidiary Inovio Asia Pté. (IAPL), pursuant to the terms of the
Securities Purchase

F-26




Table of Contents

INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con tinued)

10. Stockholders' Equity (Continued)

and Exchange Agreement under which the ordinarseshaere originally issued by IAPL in October 2G066$5.3 million. The warrants issu
have an exercise price of $2.87 per share andxareisable through October 13, 2011. As of Decer8tie2008, none of these warrants have
been exercised.

In March 2007, we terminated our exclusiwgalty-free license to IAPL allowing our subsidido use certain of our intellectual property,
which had been issued in October 2006 prior tootidnary share financing described above, in exghdar 6,584,365 ordinary shares of
IAPL. Upon termination we retained the IAPL ordipahares received in the license transaction.

In October 2006, we completed a registeféeting with foreign investors, whereby we sol@724,067 shares of our common stock and
issued warrants to purchase 1,425,919 shares aoumon stock which resulted in gross aggregate pesceeds of $9.9 million. As part of
this offering, we informed holders of our then daigling Series C Preferred Stock who held partipaights, of their ability to participate in
the respective offering based upon the pricindiefttansaction and the applicable liquidation pefee for their series of preferred shares with
such rights. Some of these participating stockhsltiad previously converted a portion of their sBaof preferred stock pursuant to their
optional conversion rights, and most of these pipdting stockholders wholly converted their renranshares of the Company's preferred
stock through exercise of their participation rigght this offering. By electing to participate hig offering, these participating preferred
stockholders converted 115.12 shares of previdaslyed Series C Preferred Stock and $14,571 ofiedatividends into 479,722 restricted
shares of our common stock and warrants to purch@s®02 restricted shares of our common stocks& lparticipating stockholders received
304,450 additional restricted shares of our comstook as compared to the number of shares of aurmmm stock into which their existing
Series C Preferred Stock could have been convartddr the original terms of the Series C PrefeB&atk. As a result, we recorded an
imputed dividend charge of $1.9 million relatedhe participating stockholders who converted $1illan of their previous Series C Preferr
Stock investment. We calculated this imputed dim@tleharge pursuant to the guidance contained irr@intelssues Task Force ("EITF") Iss
No. 0(-27, Application of Issue No. 98-5 to Certain Convesdibistruments where the incremental number of shares of oumsomstock
which was received by our participating Series €f€red Stockholders was multiplied by the pricewf common stock on the commitment
date of the original Series C Preferred Stock issaaor $6.08 per share, to calculate the impuitéideshd charge associated with this benefi
conversion. All warrants issued in connection vaitlt 2006 registered offering have an exercise @mic?2.87 per share and are exercisable
through October 13, 2011. As of December 31, 2608¢ of these warrants have been exercised.

In July and October 2006, we issued 2580 24,261 shares of our common stock, respectitein outside consulting company in
payment of a non-refundable retainer in conneatitth the engagement of its services.

In June 2006, we issued 86,956 common shara licensing company in exchange for variodsria and other assets and a $50,000
shareholder note receivable.

Warrants
In addition to warrants granted as discdsd®ve, the Company has issued the following eidit warrants.
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Participants in our December 2005 privdéegment were issued five-year warrants to purchassgygregate of 3,462,451 shares of our
common stock with an exercise price of $2.93 pareshexercisable through December 30, 2010. AseaEhber 31, 2008, none of these
warrants have been exercised.

In connection with the leasing of our newporate headquarters, the Company issued a waeorgorchase 50,000 shares of our common
stock at $5.00 per share to the landlord of thaséel facility in December 2004. This warrant is iediately exercisable and expires on
December 6, 2009, five years from the date of iss@aThis warrant was valued on the date of issuasing the Black-Scholes pricing model.
The fair value of this warrant, $121,000, will lszognized ratably over the five-year term of tresé&as rent expense. As of December 31,
2008, none of these warrants have been exercised.

Participants in our Series C Preferred IStftering in May 2004 were issued five-year watsato purchase 561,084 shares of our
common stock at an exercise price of $8.80 perslexiercisable through May 10, 2009. The placemgents for the Series C Preferred Stock
offering were also issued five-year warrants tachase 152,519 shares of our common stock at anisagrice of $6.80 per share, exercisable
through May 10, 2009. As of December 31, 2008, rafrthese warrants have been exercised.

On September 15, 2000, we entered intxalugive license agreement with the University otith Florida Research Foundation, Inc.
(USF), whereby USF granted us an exclusive, wodeéviicense to USF's rights in patents and patguitcgtions generally related to needle
electrodes ("License Agreement"). Pursuant to flserise Agreement, we granted USF and its desigmaeants to acquire 150,000 common
shares for $9.00 per share until September 14,.20flthe total warrants granted, 75,000 vesteti@tiate of grant and the remainder will vest
upon the achievement of certain milestones. Thedtbnon-forfeitable vested warrants were valuegba®,000 using the Black- Scholes
pricing model and were recorded as other asselsanitedit to additional paiihcapital. The remaining 75,000 warrants are ftafde and wil
be valued at the fair value on the date of veatisigg the Black- Scholes pricing model. As of Deben31, 2008, no warrants issued in
connection with this licensing agreement had beemnoised.

In July 2008, warrants to purchase 2,002 &tares of our common stock expired, issued im@ction with our Series A and B Preferred
Stock offerings.

Stock options

The Company has one active stock and casiebincentive plan, our 2007 Omnibus Incentive Rtlze "Incentive Plan"), pursuant to
which we have granted stock options and restristedk awards to executive officers, directors amgleyees. The plan was adopted on
March 31, 2007, approved by the stockholders on #]&007, and approved by the stockholders as aademd May 2, 2008. The Incentive
Plan reserves 1,750,000 shares of our common ftoédsuance as or upon exercise of incentive asvgrdnted and to be granted at future
dates. At December 31, 2008, we had 42,938 sh&msomon stock available for future grant and hatstanding 138,750 shares of unvested
restricted common stock, 101,250 shares of veststrdicted stock, and options to purchase 1,4658afes of common stock. The awards
granted and available for future grant under tleemtive Plan generally have a term of ten yearsy@merally vest over a period of three years.
The Incentive Plan terminates by its terms on M&th2017.
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10. Stockholders' Equity (Continued)

The Incentive Plan supersedes all of oavipus stock option plans, which include our 1983ck Option Plan, under which we had
options to purchase 14,750 shares of common staistamding and our Amended 2000 Stock Option Riader which we had options to

purchase 3,136,152 shares of common stock outsadiDecember 31, 2008. The terms and conditibtisecoptions outstanding under these
plans remain unchanged.

Total compensation cost under SFAS No. R28§r our stock plans for the years ended Decer@lbeP008, 2007 and 2006 was
$1.0 million, $1.6 million, and $1.3 million of wth $286,000, $354,000 and $423,000 was includeelsi@arch and development expenses anc
$746,000, $1.2 million and $921,000 was includedéneral and administrative expenses, respectively.

At December 31, 2008 and 2007, there w&2 D0 and $1.3 million of total unrecognized congagion cost, respectively, related to
unvested stock options, which is expected to begrized over a weighted-average period of one year.

The Company accounts for options grantatbtoemployees in accordance with Emerging Issas& Force ("EITF") No. 96-18,
Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issue@ther Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Confjiime with Selling, Goods or Servic,
and Statement of Financial Accounting Standard £S5 No. 123(R),Share-Based PaymenThe fair value of these options at the
measurement dates was estimated using the BlaakeScpricing model.

Total stock-based compensation for optignasited to non-employees for the years ended Deze®ih 2008, 2007 and 2006, was
$58,000, $119,000, and $203,000, respectively.fA3cember 31, 2008 and 2007, 1,076,031 and 45%Pp83ns remained outstanding,
respectively.

The following table summarizes total stogkions outstanding at December 31, 2008:

Options outstanding Options exercisable
Weighted-
average Weighted-
remaining
contractual life  Weighted averags average
Options Options exercise
Exercise price outstanding (in years) exercise price exercisable price
$0.00- $2.00 1,914,71 81 $ 1.0 868,66¢ $ 1.2%
$2.01- $4.00 2,231,99: 69 $ 297 1,662,14. $ 2.9z
$4.01- $6.00 386,49¢ Bal 8 4.9t 386,49¢ $ 4.9t
$6.01- $8.00 68,75( 44 3% 6.22 68,75( $ 6.22
$8.01- $22.00 14,75( 0t % 15.5¢ 14,75C $ 15.5¢
4,614,71. 72 % 24z 3,000,811 $ 2.8:

At December 31, 2008, the aggregate intrimalue of options outstanding was $9,000, theeggte intrinsic value of options exercisable
was $2,000, and the weighted average remainingaiotl term of options exercisable was 6.3 years.

At December 31, 2007, the aggregate intrimalue of options outstanding was $150; the aggpeintrinsic value of options exercisable
was $150 and the weighted average remaining cdn&daterm of options exercisable was 6.1 years.
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Stock option activity under our stock optjglans was as follows:

Weighted-average

Number of
shares exercise price
Balance, December 31, 20 2,383,88! $ 3.5¢
Grantec 872,75( 2.5¢
Exercisec (148,62 1.6¢
Cancellec (309,110 4.64
Balance, December 31, 20 2,798,90! 3.22
Grantec 963,12! 3.2(
Exercisec (94,569 2.31
Cancellec (202,000 4.57
Balance, December 31, 20 3,465,46: 3.1¢
Grantec 1,474,501 0.8¢
Exercisec (1,250 0.81
Cancellec (321,999 3.1¢
Balance, December 31, 20 4,616,71. $ 2.42

The weighted average exercise price wesoHar the 233,185 options which expired duringyhar ended December 31, 2008, $6.36 for
the 118,250 options which expired during the yemteel December 31, 2007 and $5.53 for the 167,68@n3pwhich expired during the year
ended December 31, 2006.

The weighted average grant date fair vakreshare was $0.46 for options granted durinyéae ended December 31, 2008, $2.51 for
options granted during the year ended Decembe2®17 and $2.18 for options granted during the geded December 31, 2006.

The aggregate intrinsic value of optionereised was $138 during the year ended Decemb&08B, $95,000 during the year ended
December 31, 2007 and $158,000 during the yeardeDdeember 31, 2006.

A summary of the Company's nonvested ksttishares as of December 31, 2008 and activiipgithe year is as follows:
Weighted-

average
Number of  grant-date

shares fair value
Nonvested at January 1, 20 101,25( $ 3.6¢
Grantec 75,00( 0.87
Vested (37,500 2.2¢
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 138,75( § 2.5t

As of December 31, 2008, there was $179¢3@6tal unrecognized compensation cost relatetbtovested stock-based compensation
arrangements. That cost is expected to be recafjoizer a weighted-average period of 1.1 years.
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11. Commitments

On January 28, 2005, the Company movediiatoeadquarters of 22,867 square feet in Sandi€glifornia. This lease runs through
February 28, 2010. The annual rent for this legsegerty was $433,901 in the first two years ans2$467 in year three and four of the
original lease term. The annual rent for the fitid final year of the original lease term is $480,2At the end of the original lease term, we
have the option of renewing this lease for an dali fiveyear lease term at an annual rate equal to thenfaiket rental value of the propet
as defined in the lease agreement.

In January 2008, we entered into a newifiadéase in Oslo, Norway to support our reseantl development activities conducted thro
our subsidiary Inovio AS. The term of the leastoisthree years and may be terminated with threethsonotice. Monthly rent is
approximately $3,000 per month.

Rent expense was $422,000, $490,000, a8@,$d0 for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2002006, respectively. This amount is
net of sublease income of $103,000, $38,000 an®B8respectively. Future minimum lease paymentieunon-cancelable operating leases
as of December 31, 2008 are as follows:

2009 $539,82!
2010 138,15:
2011 5,64(
Thereaftel —
Total $683,61"

In the normal course of business, the Camjga party to a variety of agreements pursuamtttich we may be obligated to indemnify
the other party. It is not possible to predict tii@ximum potential amount of future payments undesé types of agreements due to the
conditional nature of our obligations and the uridgcts and circumstances involved in each pagicagreement. Historically, payments made
by us under these types of agreements have nat haaterial effect on our business, consolidatedltesf operations or financial condition.

12. Litigation

From time to time the Company becomes wewlin various lawsuits, claims and proceedingatirgg to the conduct of our business. The
Company is currently involved in the following tjition:

Pyrce v. Inovio Biomedical Corporation, GenetronBismedical Corporation, Genetronics, Inc., Ino¥i8, DOES 1 to 50, Superior
Court of California, County of San Diego, Case R6-2007-000758899-CU-BC-CTL (Hon. Ronald L. Styff)e plaintiff, a former consultant
to Inovio AS, commenced this civil lawsuit agaittst Company and various subsidiaries in state aouBeptember 28, 2007. Plaintiff's
original counsel withdrew from the case, plaimifis proceedingro seuntil obtaining a new attorney who appeared in &apier of 2008 and
filed a nine-count amended complaint. The Coumnised three of Plaintiff's counts and Plaintiérdafter filed a nine-count second amended
complaint by which Plaintiff seeks approximately8®7000 in damages. The plaintiff has not yet sefmeslio AS. The Company disputes the
allegations and intends to vigorously defend adairesm.
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In accordance with SFAS 10%;counting for Income Taxes deferred tax asset or liability is determinaddd on the difference between
the financial statement and tax basis of assetdiaitities as measured by the enacted tax ratéshwwill be in effect when these differences
reverse. We provide a valuation allowance agaiestiaferred tax assets unless, based upon thelsleadlvidence, it is more likely than not
that the deferred tax asset will be realized.

The components of the provision (beneéit)ihcome taxes are shown below:

As of As of As of
December 31 December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2006
Current:
Federa $ — 3 — % —
State — — —
Foreign — — —
$ — 8 — ¢ —
Deferred:
Federal $ —  $ —  $ _
State — — —
Foreign (63,000 327,00( (63,000

(63,000 $ 327,000 $ (63,000

The reconciliation of income tax attribuatn operations computed at the statutory taxsrténcome tax expense (recovery), using a
35% statutory tax rate, is:

Year ended Year ended Year ended

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2008 2007 2006

Income taxes at statutory ra $(4,538,00) $(3,786,00) $(4,368,00i)
State income tax, net of federal ber (668,00() (742,000 (659,00()
Change in valuation allowan 5,328,00! (6,445,00) 4,636,00!
IRC Section 382 limitatiol — 12,749,00 —
Fair value warran 50,00( (1,192,001 —
Other (235,001) (257,000 328,00(

$ (63,000 $ 327,000 $ (63,000

The income tax expense (recovery) has besorded as a reduction to general and adminigtratipenses, as its effect is immaterial.

F-32




Table of Contents

INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con tinued)
13. Income Taxes (Continued)

Significant components of our deferreddasets and liabilities as of December 31, 2008280d are shown below:

As of As of
December 31, December 31,
2008 2007
Deferred tax asset
Capitalized research exper $ 3,566,000 $§ 929,00(
Net operating loss carry forwar 24,891,00 23,019,00
Research and development and other tax ¢ 2,152,001 1,356,001
Other 4,049,001 4,028,00!
34,658,00 29,332,00
Valuation allowanct (34,658,00) (29,332,00)
Total deferred tax asse — —
Deferred tax liabilities
Acquired intangible: (887,000 (950,25()
Net deferred tax liabilitie (887,000 $ (950,25()

The net deferred tax liability of $887,08®0f December 31, 2008, resulted from the acdprisdf Inovio AS and reflects the net effect of
temporary differences between the carrying amofimtangible assets for financial statement repgrfpurposes and the amount used for
income tax purposes. The liability will be amortizaver the life of the underlying intangible, whiish18 years and will be accounted for as an
income tax recovery.

As of December 31, 2008, we had federal@alifornia tax net operating loss carry forwar@igpproximately $59.4 million and
$58.0 million, respectively. The federal loss cdogwards will begin to expire in 2019 unless pmisly utilized. The California loss carry
forwards will begin to expire in 2013. The diffecenbetween the federal and California tax lossydamvards is primarily attributable to the
capitalization of research and development expefiose3alifornia income tax purposes and the 50%0%o limitation of California loss carry
forwards. In addition, we have federal and staseaech tax credit carry forwards of $1.2 milliord&1.5 million, respectively. The federal tax
credit carry forwards will begin to expire in 202Zhe California research tax credit carry forwaddsnot expire. At December 31, 2008, the
Company had foreign tax loss carry forwards relabetthe acquisition of Inovio AS of approximatelg.$ million. The foreign net operating
loss carry forwards begin to expire in 2011.

Utilization of the NOL and tax credit caioywards will be subject to a substantial annuaittion under Section 382 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, and similar state provisitugsto ownership change limitations that have aeclpreviously or that could occur in the
future. These ownership changes will limit the amtaaf NOL and tax credit carryforwards and othefieded tax assets that can be utilized to
offset future taxable income and tax, respectivielygeneral, an ownership change, as defined b{ide882, results from transactions
increasing ownership of certain stockholders ofipudyoups in the stock of the corporation by mthran 50 percentage points over a thyeer
period. An analysis was performed of ownershipvitgtthrough December 31, 2008 which indicated thattiple ownership changes have
occurred in previous years which created annual
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13. Income Taxes (Continued)

limitations on the Company's ability to utilize NQInd tax credit carryovers. Such limitations waéult in approximately $12.7 million of tax
benefits related to NOL and tax credit carryforveatigiat will expire unused. Accordingly, the relad@L and R&D credit carryforwards have
been removed from deferred tax assets accompaniadbrresponding reduction of the valuation alloe& Due to the existence of the
valuation allowance, limitations created by futovenership changes, if any, related to our operatinrihe U.S. will not impact our effective
tax rate.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, whitdrifies the accounting for uncertainty in incotages recognized in a company's financial
statements in accordance with Statement of FinkAcieounting Standards No. 108ccounting for Income TaxdsIN 48 prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement proces®fmrding in the financial statements uncertainp@sitions taken or expected to be taken in
a tax return. Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidenan the de-recognition, classification, interext penalties, accounting in interim periods,
and disclosure requirements for uncertain tax jprsit We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 beginrlaguary 1, 2007. The adoption of FIN
did not impact the Company's financial conditiasults of operations or cash flows. As of Decen3der2008, the Company has not recorded
any uncertain tax benefits.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. aadous foreign and state jurisdictions. Due to legses incurred, we are essentially subject to
income tax examination by tax authorities from maeption to date. Our policy is to recognize ietrexpense and penalties related to income
tax matters as tax expense. At December 31, 20880mot have any significant accruals for interelstted to unrecognized tax benefits or
penalties.

14. 401(k) Plan

In 1995, our U.S. subsidiary adopted a KPR(ofit Sharing Plan (the "Plan") covering subsilly all of its employees. The defined
contribution plan allows the employees to contbatpercentage of their compensation each yeacuWently match 50% of our employees'
contributions, up to 6% of their annual compensat@ur contributions are recorded as expense ia¢chempanying consolidated statemen
operations and totaled $58,000, $55,000 and $45d@08e years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 ad@, 28spectively.

15. Segment Information

The Company operates in one business segmtre United States and Europe. Revenues aibuttble to the geographical area based
on the location of the customer. During the yealirgn December 31, 2008 revenues in Europe and tlited)States totaled $285,000 and
$1.8 million, respectively. During the year endbgcember 31, 2007 revenues in Europe and the USitgés totaled $267,000 and
$4.5 million, respectively, and during the yeariagdDecember 31, 2006 revenues in Europe and tlited)States totaled $262,000 and
$3.2 million, respectively. Long-lived assets withihe United States consist primarily of patenis ather intellectual property. Long-lived
assets outside the United States consist primafrigoodwill and intangible assets. As of Decemlier2908, long-lived assets in Europe and
the United States totaled $7.1 million and $2.7iani| respectively. As of December 31, 2007, Idivgd assets in Europe and the United St
totaled $7.7 million and $2.8 million, respectivedind as of December 31, 2006, long-lived assefsimpe and the United States totaled
$7.9 million and $2.9 million, respectively.
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In March 2004, we announced the selectfo@uontiles Transnational Corp., a global pharmaicaliservices organization, as the clinical
research organization ("CRQ") for our clinical Bign the U.S. and Europe. In addition, the investtrdivision of this CRO, Qfinance, Inc., v
an investor in our Series A, B and C Preferred I5tBaring the year ended December 31, 2006, Qfiealmc. converted 50, 100 and 109
shares respectively, of our Series A, B and C PredeStock into a total of 725,788 of our commoarsk. Total clinical trial expenses paid to
Quintiles Transnational Corp. for the years endeddinber 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, were $0, $2300%371,000, respectively.

17. Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Informatin

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31 December 31  December 31

2008 2007 2006
Supplemental schedule of financing activiti

Conversion of minority interest into common st $ — $5,349,99! $ —
Interest paic $ 31,17C $ — 3 —
Imputed dividends on preferred stc $ — $ — $1,851,05!
Common stock issued in connection with declaredidivds on preferred stc  $ — $ — $ 22,26¢
Cashless exercise of warra $ — $ 38 $ —
Conversions of preferred stock to common si $ 112 $ 961 $ 1,76¢
Issuance of common stock for patents and othets $ — $ — $ 128,92
Issuance of common stock in exchange for sharehalate receivabl $ — 3 — $ 86,03
Leasehold improvements financed by landl $ 35217 $ 92,48¢ $ 172,05
Investment received in exchange for licensing agerg $ — $ — $ 125,00(

18. Inovio AS

On December 31, 2007, the Company's whmlmed Norwegian subsidiary Inovio AS transferredaia patent and other intellectual
property rights ("IPR") to our wholly owned U.S bsidiary Genetronics Inc. The value assigned teghights was $1.9 million, which was
determined by and was the responsibility of managenof Inovio, who considered in part preliminargnv performed by a valuation specia
in Norway. All Norwegian tax gains associated wvififs transfer of the patents and IPR was offsgryr year tax loss carry forwards.
Subsequent to year-end, the Company changed the ofiimovio AS to Inovio Tec AS. SimultaneouslyetBompany incorporated a new
Norwegian wholl-owned subsidiary under the name Inovio AS, forghepose of organizing a research effort direcbedhtds the
development of specific cancer vaccine candiddies.Company expects funding for this program tabeut $5.0 million over the next seve
years. In January 2008, all employees, employeeeagents, lease agreements and fixed assets weséetrad from Inovio Tec AS to Inov
AS.

19. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following unaudited quarterly financiaformation reflects all normal recurring adjustiteg which are, in the opinion of managem
necessary for a fair statement of the resultsefriterim
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periods. The four quarters for per share figureg n add for the year because of the different lImemof shares outstanding during the year.

The results of operations for any period are noessarily indicative of the results to be expeétedny future period. Summarized unaudited
guarterly data for the years ended December 318 26@ 2007, are as follows:

Quarter Ended  Quarter Ended  Quarter Ended  Quarter Ended

December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
2008 2008 2008 2008

Consolidated Statement of Operations:
Revenue:
License fee and milestone payme $ 179,820 $ 214,82' $ 203,92: $ 192,82¢
Revenue under collaborative research and developanemgemen (81,240 239,91 459,11( 460,18!
Grants and miscellaneous revel 228,26« — — —
Total revenue 326,84" 454,73 663,03 653,01
Operating Expenses:
Research and developmt 1,199,45! 1,274,38 1,679,26. 1,597,38!
General and administrati\ 2,588,98! 1,928,92! 3,086,18! 2,401,50!
Total operating expense: 3,788,44. 3,203,31! 4,765,44. 3,998,89.
Loss from operations (3,461,59) (2,748,57) (4,102,41) (3,345,87)
Interest income, ne 56,70¢ 97,00¢ 191,37: 298,74¢
Other income, ne (170,849 307,16: (112,73) 25,421
Net loss attributable to common stockholder: $(3,575,73) $(2,344,40) (4,023,77) (3,021,70)
Amounts per common shi—basic and dilutec
Net loss attributable to common stockholder: $ (0.0 $ (0.05 $ (0.09 % (0.07)
Weighted average number of common st—basic and dilute: 44,011,800 43,929,65  43,874,73  43,837,73
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Quarter Ended  Quarter Ended  Quarter Ended  Quarter Ended

December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
2007 2007 2007 2007

Consolidated Statement of Operations:
Revenue:
License fee and milestone payme $ 2,212,85. $ 136,87( $ 209,26' $ 234,48¢
Revenue under collaborative research and develapanemgemen 1,054,03: 265,97( 286,31: 247,99(
Grants and miscellaneous revel 54,85¢ 83,67 — 21,42
Total revenue 3,321,73 486,51: 495,57 503,90:
Operating Expenses:
Research and developmt 1,866,32. 2,335,37 2,907,83 2,516,41.
General and administrati\ 3,266,76 3,177,72. 2,344,55 2,291,16.
Total operating expense: 5,133,08! 5,513,10. 5,252,38 4,807,57.
Loss from operations (1,811,35) (5,026,59) (4,756,81) (4,303,67)
Interest income, ne 357,51« 405,02: 286,79: 223,06¢
Other income, ne 427,90¢ 1,927,06. 727,30 339,30!
Net loss (1,025,93) (2,694,50) (3,742,71) (3,741,29)
Imputed and declared dividends on preferred s — — (8,249 (15,09
Net loss attributable to common stockholder: (1,025,93) $(2,694,50) $(3,750,95) $(3,756,38)
Amounts per common she—basic and dilutec
Net loss attributable to common stockholder: $ (0.02) $ (0.06) $ (0.09 % (0.10)
Weighted average number of common sk—basic and dilute: 43,812,90 43,699,68 40,674,94  37,694,63
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Exhibit 21.1

INOVIO BIOMEDICAL CORPORATION
Subsidiaries

Subsidiary Name(1)

Jurisdiction of Organization
Genetronics, Inc

Delaware
Inovio AS Norway
Inovio Tec AS Norway
Inovio Asia Pte. Ltd. Singapore

1) In accordance with Instructions (ii) to Exhibit {2 the Exhibit Table in Item 601 of RegulatiorKSRegistrant has omitted from the

above table one of its subsidiaries because suditednsubsidiary does not constitute a significgauttsidiary of registrant as of the end
of the year covered by this report.
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeeecincthe Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos:151 69, 333-142938, 333-136126, 333-
120061, 333-100077, 333-58168; Form S-3 Nos. 338-1¢, 333-134084, 333-131332, 333-123619, 333-11,83%3-116696, 333-111287,
333-108752 and 333-76738; Form S-4 No. 333-156088)ovio Biomedical Corporation and the relateddprectuses of our report dated
March 27, 2009, with respect to the consolidatedritial statements of Inovio Biomedical Corporatiogluded in this Annual Report
(Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2008.

/sl Ernst & Young LLF
San Diego, Californi
March 27, 200¢
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification of CEO Pursuant to
Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-&p(
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Avtar Dhillon, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Knofvio Biomedical Corporation
2. Based on my knowledge, ttreport does not contain any untrue statement oht@mal fact or omit to state a material f

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement,atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in al
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls ar
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a)Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d)-15(f))tfee registrant and have:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ¢tesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestipularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpg; or caused such internal control over finahaporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readersdsurance regarding the reliability of finanecégorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantelasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport oul
conclusions about the effectiveness of the dise®santrols and procedures, as of the end of tHegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control over financial reporting tleaturred during th
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrant's internal contrgko financial reporting; ar

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anlblve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorternal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditongl #he audit committee of the registrant's boardikgctors (or persons performi
the equivalent functions):

(@  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesiethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaize report financial
information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registrant's internal control over financial rejagt

Date: March 31, 200 /s/ AVTAR DHILLON

Avtar Dhillon
President and Chief Executive Offic
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Exhibit 31.2
Certification of CFO Pursuant to
Securities Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-&}(
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Peter Kies, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Knofvio Biomedical Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométéde a material fa

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement,atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in al
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented
in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls ar
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a)Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d)-15(f))tfee registrant and have:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ¢tesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestipularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpg; or caused such internal control over finahaporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readersdsurance regarding the reliability of finanecégorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantelasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport oul
conclusions about the effectiveness of the dise®santrols and procedures, as of the end of tHegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsanternal control over financial reporting tleaturred during th
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regists fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrant's internal contrgko financial reporting; ar

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anlblve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorternal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditongl #he audit committee of the registrant's boardikgctors (or persons performi
the equivalent functions):

(@  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesiethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaize report financial
information; and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registrant's internal control

Date: March 31, 200 /s/ PETER KIES

Peter Kies
Chief Financial Officel
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Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of WimBiomedical Corporation (the "Company") on Fot®K for the year ending December 31,
2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the "Report"), eachefundersigned, in the capacities and on
the date indicated below, hereby certifies, purst@i8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuadéstion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that to his knowledge:

D) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSetction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operatio
of the Company.

March 31, 2009 /sl AVTAR DHILLON

Avtar Dhillon
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

/sl PETER KIES

Peter Kies
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office




QuickLinks
Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1358 Adlopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002



